
Summons to Meeting

Tuesday 5 June 2018

Executive
Wednesday 13 June 2018, 10.00 am

Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington
Membership:

Councillor Alan Smith (Chair) Councillor Mark Fryer (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Gayle Roach on 01900 702502.

Agenda
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 4)

To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 16 May 2018.

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Questions  
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

5. Members' Announcements  

6. Capital Outturn Report 2017/18  (Pages 5 - 18)

7. Revenue Outturn Report 2017/18  (Pages 19 - 56)

Page 1



8. Council Plan Quarter 4 Performance Report 2017/18  (Pages 57 - 114)

9. Reducing Inequalities - Planned use of Priorities Fund  (Pages 115 - 124)

10. Investment in The Wave - Maryport  (Pages 125 - 130)

The Chairman will move:-  
“That under Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 
of part 1 of Schedule 12 (a) of the Act.”

11. Future Options for Workington Town Centre  (Pages 131 - 136)

Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:

Wednesday 11 July 2018, 10.00 am
Council Chamber, Allerdale House

Page 2



At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington 
on Wednesday 16 May 2018 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Mark Fryer (Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

An apology for absence was received from  Councillor Alan Smith

Staff Present

B Carlin, I Frost, N Hardy, K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, G Roach, A Seekings, E Thompson 
and R Wilkinson

14. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 April 2018 were signed as a correct 
record.

15. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

16. Questions 

None received.

17. Members' Announcements 

None received.

18. Maryport Delivery Plan 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Place Development submitted a report which sought members to 
consider and approve the Maryport Delivery Plan.

As part of the Allerdale Economic Growth Plan which set out a range of 
interventions to enhance the livability of Allerdale’s local centres, Maryport had 
been identified as a priority area for action. A delivery plan had therefore been 
developed to help guide future regeneration for Maryport, to enable the town to 
fulfil its role as a key residential, employment and visitor centre.

The Executive considered it an excellent Plan, one which was achievable, 
highlighted ideas and opportunities and the potential for the town to create its 
own identity, with the support of the Town and Borough Council. It recognised 
the importance of the involvement of the local community people and groups 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



but also the need for strong and continuous commitment and leadership from 
the Borough Council to ensure its successes.

Councillor C McCarron-Holmes moved the recommendations within the report; 
this was seconded by Councillor B Cannon. The recommendations were 
unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

Not to accept the Delivery Plan.

The reason for the decision

To consider the proposed Maryport Delivery Plan for approval.

The decision

Resolved:

That - 

1. The Maryport Delivery Plan be approved and the Council commits to 
support its implementation

2. A stakeholder steering group be established that will involve key partners 
who will set overall direction, support communication and act as 
ambassadors for the programme. To support this an Officer Programme 
Board will ensure that the programme of work and individual projects are 
managed to deliver the agreed outputs and outcomes on time and 
budget

3. A Programme Manager be appointed to lead the implementation of the 
Delivery Plan.  

The meeting closed at 10.20 am

Page 4



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 13 June 2018

 Capital Outturn 2017/18

The Reason for the Decision To provide Councillors with information 
regarding the 2017/18 capital programme 
and seek approval to carry-forward 
budgeted amounts to 2018/19.

Summary of options considered Any options considered are detailed in 
the report

Recommendations Members are asked to:

1. Note the draft capital outturn 
position 

2. Approve the carry forward of 
£2,786,408 to 2018/19 to enable 
previously approved capital 
schemes to be completed

3. Approve the carry forward of 
£102,262 Disabled Facility Grant 
to 2018/19 and to allocate this to 
discretionary Disabled Facility 
Grant budget

Financial /  Resource Implications To ensure that sufficient resources are 
available to support the capital 
programme in 2018/19.

Legal / Governance Implications None

Community Safety Implications None directly 

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

None directly

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

Not applicable

Wards Affected None directly

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

None directly

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Cllr  Barbara Cannon

Lead Officer  Catherine Nicholson, Head of Financial 
Services
Telephone: 01900 702503
E-mail: 
catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N
Financial Y Employment (internal) N
Legal N Partnership N
Social Inclusion N Asset Management N
Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This report summarises the capital outturn position for 2017/18 and associated 
budget carry forward requests. Further details are included in the accompanying 
appendices.

2.0      Summary Capital Outturn Position

2.1 The Capital Outturn for 2017/18 is summarised in table 1. This shows:
 the revised capital budget of £5.935m
 actual expenditure of £3.034m
 an underspend compared to the revised budget of £2.901m 
 budget carry forward requests of unspent budget of £2.787m
 a remaining underspend of £114k

Page 6



Table 1: Capital Outturn Expenditure by Portfolio 2017/18 

Portfolio
Revised 
Budget Outturn

Outturn 
Variance

Budget 
C/F Variance

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Economic Growth 2,500 551 (1,949) 1,949 0
Corporate Resources 711 342 (369) 369 0
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 2,180 1,707 (473) 383 (90)
Localities & Environmental 394 286 (108) 86 (22)
Transformation 150 148 (2) 0 (2)
Total Capital Expenditure 5,935 3,034 (2,901) 2,787 (114)

Table 2: Capital Outturn Financing

Financing Source Revised 
Budget Outturn

Outturn 
Variance

Budget 
C/F Variance

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Capital Grants & Contributions:
Housing 1,890 1,668 (222) 222 0
Non-Housing 200 0 (200) 200 0

2,090 1,668 (422) 422 0
Allerdale B.C. Resources:
Capital Receipts 280 3 (277) 277 0
Revenue Earmarked Reserves 231 231 0 0 0
Revenue Budget 13 3 (10) 0 (10)
General Fund Balances 730 264 (466) 453 (13)
Prudential Borrowing 2,591 865 (1,726) 1,635 (91)

3,845 1,366 (2,479) 2,366 (114)
Total financing 5,935 3,034 (2,901) 2,787 (114)

3.0 Budget Carry Forward Requests

3.1 Budget Carry forwards totalling £2,786,408 have been requested to be carried 
forward to 2018/19.  These are the result of changes to the timing of expenditure 
across financial years compared to the expenditure profile incorporated into the 
revised 2017/18 capital budget. Budget carry forwards do not impact on the 
overall scheme expenditure. Details of individual budget carry forward requests 
are set out in Appendix D.   

Page 7



4.0     Explanations of Key Variances (after budget carry forward requests)

4.1 Details of key variances after taking account of budget carry forwards shown in 
table 1 are provided in the following tables

Scheme: Variance Description
 £’000  

Housing, Health & Wellbeing

Securing Affordable 
Homes (20)

The scheme was budgeted to provide five grants per year, but 
only one grant has been allocated and paid. This leaves a 
remaining budget of £40k, of which £20k will be carried 
forward to 2018/19 and £20k has been identified as a saving.

Central Heating 
Fund (70)

This scheme is to install central heating systems in homes 
that currently have no heating. The supplier will receive 
additional funding from the Energy Company Obligation 
(ECO) which has reduced the amount that the Authority is 
required to contribute to the scheme

Total variance (90)

Scheme: Variance Description
 £’000  

Localities & Environmental

P&D Machines (22)

This scheme includes the replacement of Pay and Display 
machines and signage. The scheme is expected to be 
delivered under budget. After adjusting for budget carry 
forwards the remaining underspend has been identified as a 
saving.

Total variance (22)

5.0 Capital Resources

5.1 Appendix E provides a summary of the movements in capital resources during   
2017/18. Further details are set out in the following paragraphs.  

Capital Receipts

5.2 The balance of capital receipts at the start of the financial year was £377,592. 
During the year £83,980 was received from the disposal of Braithwaite and 
Keswick public conveniences. A total of £3,339 was applied in 2017/18 leaving a 
balance available for allocation of £458,233. 

5.3 £322,000 has been committed, leaving a balance of £136,233 available for 
allocation. This will be taken into account in future budget setting processes and 
will be allocated in line with the approved capital strategy. 

Page 8



Capital Grants
5.4 The balance of capital grants at the start of the financial year was £1,563,083. 

During the year £1,341,308 was received. A total of £1,667,979 was applied in 
2017/18 leaving a balance available for allocation of £1,236,412. All of this 
balance has either been committed or ring-fenced leaving no balance available 
for allocation

6.0    Recommendations 

 Members are asked to:
6.1 Note the draft capital outturn position 

6.2 Approve the carry forward of £2,786,408 to 2018/19 to enable previously 
approved capital schemes to be completed

6.3 Approve the carry forward of £102,262 Disabled Facility Grant to 2018/19 and to 
allocate this to discretionary Disabled Facility Grant budget.

                                             Catherine Nicholson
                                         Head of Financial Services

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Appendix A

Capital Outturn Monitoring Overview

Capital Outturn Expenditure and Financing against budget 2017/18

Current Outturn Outturn Budget
Carry

Forward

 Variance
Budget  Variance

£ £ £ £ £

Spend Against Budget 
Economic Growth 2,500,000 551,300 (1,948,700) 1,948,700 0
Corporate Resources 711,049 341,922 (369,127) 369,127 0
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 2,179,662 1,706,656 (473,006) 382,848 (90,158)
Localities & Environmental 394,346 286,119 (108,227) 85,733 (22,494)
Transformation 150,000 148,432 (1,568) 0 (1,568)

TOTAL - Capital Outturn 'Spend' 5,935,057 3,034,429 (2,900,628) 2,786,408 (114,220)

Financing

External Funding Sources
DFG Housing Grant 1,076,564 1,000,771 (75,793) 75,793 0
SCP Housing Grant 318,985 173,096 (145,889) 145,889 0
Central Heating Fund Grant 494,113 494,113 0 0 0

0
LEP Growth Deal funding 200,000 0 (200,000) 200,000 0
Total - External Funding Sources 2,089,662 1,667,979 (421,683) 421,683 0

ABC Resources
Capital Receipts 280,339 3,339 (277,000) 277,000 0
Revenue Earmarked Reserves 230,840 230,840 0 0 0
Revenue Receipt 12,860 3,381 (9,479) 0 (9,479)
General Fund Balances 729,856 263,265 (466,591) 452,947 (13,643)
Prudential Borrowing 2,591,500 865,624 (1,725,876) 1,634,778 (91,098)
Total - ABC Resources 3,845,395 1,366,449 (2,478,946) 2,364,726 (114,220)

TOTAL - Capital Outturn 'Financing' 5,935,057 3,034,429 (2,900,628) 2,786,408 (114,220)

Total Net Outturn:

Expenditure 5,935,057 3,034,429 (2,900,628) 2,786,408 (114,220)
Financing 5,935,057 3,034,429 (2,900,628) 2,786,408 (114,220)

0 0 0 0 (0)

P
age 11



Appendix B
Capital Outturn - Spend Against Budget

Revised Virements / Current Outturn Outturn Budget C/F  Variance
Cost Budget Adjustments Budget  Variance

 Centre Description £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Economic Growth

8012 Lillyhall Development 200,000 200,000 0 (200,000) 200,000 0
8013 Reedlands Road Development 250,000 250,000 0 (250,000) 250,000 0
8005 Strategic Acquisitions 1,297,000 1,297,000 551,300 (745,700) 745,700 0
8006 Lilly Hall - Land Purchase 753,000 753,000 0 (753,000) 753,000 0

TOTAL - Economic Growth 2,500,000 0 2,500,000 551,300 (1,948,700) 1,948,700 0
 Corporate Resources

8509 Public Toilets Review Works 149,860 149,860 35,733 (114,127) 114,127 0
8007 Demolition Moorclose Sport Centre 234,906 34,282 269,188 244,188 (25,000) 25,000 0
8009 WTC Coast Line Feature 12,714 (2,015) 10,699 10,699 0 0 0
8501 Resurfacing works (Brow Top Car Park) 50,000 1,303 51,303 51,303 0 0 0
8601 Helena Thompson Museum Development 180,000 180,000 0 (180,000) 180,000 0
8505 Workington Hall Repair Scheme 50,000 50,000 0 (50,000) 50,000 0

TOTAL - Corporate Resources 677,480 33,569 711,049 341,922 (369,127) 369,127 0
Housing, Health & Wellbeing

8001 Disabled Facilities Grants 646,564 77,378 723,942 723,942 0 0 0
8011 Discretionary Grants 350,000 (77,378) 272,622 196,829 (75,793) 75,793 0
8003 Health Homes (Empty Homes) 50,000 50,000 1,118 (48,882) 48,882 0
8004 Securing Affordable Homes 50,000 50,000 9,483 (40,517) 20,000 (20,517)
8107 Housing Improvement Projects 257,626 257,626 112,253 (145,373) 145,373 0
8301 Cluster of Empty Homes 51,359 51,359 51,359 0 0 0
8302 Central Heating Fund 674,113 674,113 596,671 (77,442) 7,800 (69,642)
8014 Flood resilience 100,000 100,000 15,000 (85,000) 85,000 0

TOTAL -Housing, Health & Wellbeing 2,179,662 0 2,179,662 1,706,656 (473,006) 382,848 (90,158)
Localities & Environmental

8615 Fleming Square restoration 30,000 30,000 3,587 (26,413) 26,413 0
8512 Replacement P and D Machines (inc. signage) 121,033 121,033 39,200 (81,833) 59,320 (22,513)
8906 New Leisure Facility 93,882 (33,569) 60,313 60,024 (289) 0 (289)
8514 MSCP equipment 183,000 183,000 183,308 308 0 308

TOTAL - Localities & Environmental 427,915 (33,569) 394,346 286,119 (108,227) 85,733 (22,494)
Transformation

8701 IT Equipment (ABC Only) 40,000 40,000 39,060 (940) 0 (940)
8706 Refurbishment of customer service area 110,000 110,000 109,372 (628) 0 (628)

TOTAL - Transformation 150,000 0 150,000 148,432 (1,568) 0 (1,568)

5,935,057 0 5,935,057 3,034,429 (2,900,628) 2,786,408 (114,220)

P
age 12



Use of resources to finance the capital programme. Appendix C

Capital Outturn Monitoring - Financing

Current Outturn Budget C/F  Variance
17/18 Budget

Description £ £ £ £

External Funding Sources
DFG Housing Grant 1,076,564 1,000,771 75,793 0
SCP Housing Grant 318,985 173,096 145,889 0
Central Heating Fund Grant 494,113 494,113 0 0
LEP Growth Deal funding 200,000 0 200,000 0

TOTAL - External Funding 2,089,662 1,667,979 421,683 0

ABC Resources
Capital Receipts 280,339 3,339 277,000 0
Revenue Earmarked Reserves 230,840 230,840 0 0
Revenue Receipt 12,860 3,381 0 (9,479)
General Fund Balances 729,856 263,265 452,947 (13,643)
Prudential Borrowing 2,591,500 865,624 1,634,778 (91,098)

TOTAL - ABC Resources 3,845,395 1,366,449 2,364,726 (114,220)

TOTAL - 'FINANCING' 5,935,057 3,034,429 2,786,408 (114,220)

P
age 13



Appendix D

Scheme: Budget C/F Financed By Description
£

Economic Growth
Lillyhall - Land
Purchase

753,000 Capital Receipts £97k
General Fund £285k
Prudential Borrowing £371k

The acquisition process was on-going at the end of 2017/18. The
purchase was completed in April 2018. The budget is required to be
carried forward to 2018/19 to allow the Authority to finance this
purchase.

Strategic Acquisitions -
Lillyhall - Land
Purchase Stamp Duty

30,000 Prudential Borrowing Stamp duty payable in relation to the Lillyhall land purchase will be
paid in early 2018/19 now that the sale has completed in April 2018

Strategic Acquisitions 715,700 Prudential Borrowing £551k of this budget has been used in 2017/18 for the purchase at
Otley Road, Keswick. A further £30k has been allocated to the cost
of stamp duty payable in relation to the purchase at Lillyhall which
will be paid in 2018/19.
The remaining £716k will be carried forward to 2018/19 where it will
remain available to take advantage of property acquisition and
development opportunities that support achievement of Council
Priorities.

Lillyhall Development 200,000 LEP Growth Deal funding The funding for this scheme is being reviewed. No expenditure will
be incurred until 2018/19.

Reedlands Road
Development

250,000 Prudential Borrowing A budget of £250k was profiled to be spent in 2017/18, based on the
revised delivery timetable this will not be required until 2018/19.

1,948,700

P
age 14



Corporate Resources
Public Toilets Review
Works

114,127 General Fund £39k
Prudential Borrowing £75k

The timing of expenditure is driven by the need for investment to
progress the transfer of these facilities. The remaining balance is
expected to be required in 2018/19 to allow the project to continue

Helena Thompson
Museum Development

180,000 Capital Receipt Following receipt of estimated costs for the proposed scheme, which
were higher than had been budgeted, it has not been possible to
undertake the works previously planned. The budget will be carried
forward to 2018/19, with plans for the budget to be reviewed.

Workington Hall Repair
Scheme

50,000 General Fund £45k
Prudential Borrowing £5k

Commencement of the scheme has been delayed until  2018/19 due
to a requirement to undertake an additional Ecological Survey. The
survey commenced in May 2018.

Demolition Moorclose
Sport Centre

25,000 General Fund £25k budget will be allocated to a contribution to a new boiler system
for the Moorclose community centre to be paid in 2018/19

369,127

Appendix D

Scheme: Budget C/F Financed By Description
£

P
age 15



Housing, Health & Wellbeing
Disabled Facilities
Grants - Discretionary

75,793 External Funding Availability of suitable contractors and complexity of grant works has
led to delays in deliverying the scheme. All of the remaining budget is
now fully allocated and will be utilised in 2018/19. The introduction of
this new grant scheme has been welcomed across Allerdale and is
helping to improve property standards and peoples quality

Health Homes (Empty
Homes)

48,882 Prudential Borrowing The budget is fully allocated but final payment is dependent upon the
recipient reaching a certain milestones. These are expected to occur
in 2018/19.

Securing Affordable
Homes

20,000 External Funding £1k
Prudential Borrowing £19k

The scheme was budgeted to provide five grants per year, but only
one grant has been allocated and paid. during 2017/18. £20k of the
remaining budget will be carried forward to 2018/19, where this will
be added to the approved budget of £30k to ensure there is sufficient
resources available to provide five grants (which will require a budget
of £50k)

Housing Improvement
Projects

145,373 External Funding This budget is allocated to the following Schemes:
- High Street, Maryport: work is expected to be complete in May
2018.
- Senhouse Street, Maryport: a number of options are being
considered for this scheme, the budget will be carried forward to
allow the scheme to be developed and progressed in 2018/19

Central Heating Fund 7,800 Prudential Borrowing The majority of work is now complete, with the small amount of
remaining work expected to be finalised during 2018/19.

Flood resilience 85,000 Prudential Borrowing The timing of expenditure is currently unknown and any unspent
budget is to be carried forward to allow these schemes to be
developed and delivered in future years

382,848

Appendix D

Scheme: Budget C/F Financed By Description
£

P
age 16



Locality & Environmental Quality
Fleming Square
restoration

26,413 Prudential Borrowing The contract for this scheme has been let and the remaining work
will be complete in 2018/19.

Replacement Pay and
Display Machines

19,320 General Fund This scheme included an allocation for the replacement of Pay and
Display machines and signage. The remaining civil works signage
and civil works are expected to be complete in 2018/19 at an
estimated cost of £19k.

The scheme has been provided under budget and part of the
underspend has been re-allocated to purchases associated with
moving parking services to the Multi Storey Car Park office, to
improve security and management of the service.

New Safes and Coin
Counting machine for
the cash room at the
MSCP

30,000 General Fund New equipment (safes and coin counter) to facilitate moving the cash
office to the Multi Storey Car Park,

Additional  Pay and
Display Machines

10,000 General Fund Purchase of 3 additional Pay and Display Machines to enhance
business continuity arrangements when machines are
damaged/undergoing repair.

85,733

Total Budget Carry
Forward

2,786,408

Appendix D

Scheme: Budget C/F Financed By Description
£

P
age 17



Appendix E

Capital Resources Overview

Capital receipts and grants available to fund the capital programme

Current Capital Resources Capital Receipts Grants & Contributions
Housing Other

Balances:
Balance as at 31st March 2017 (377,592) (1,371,871) (191,212)
Actually received during 2017-18 (83,980) (1,141,308) (200,000)
Utilised during 2017-18 3,339 1,667,979 0
Available for allocation (458,233) (845,200) (391,212)

Allocation:
Financing capital budget carry forwards 277,000 221,683 0
Financing budget 18-19 0 521,255 200,000
Ring-fenced resources not yet brought into budget* 45,000 102,262 191,212
Not currently allocated or ringfenced (136,233) 0 0

 *The items identified as 'ring-fenced resources not yet brought into budget’ are:
 - £45,000 relating to the proceeds from the sale of Workington Hall Lodge and ring-fenced for
improvements to the Hall Park.

 - £191,212 relates to a number of specific capital grants. These can only be applied to the purposes for
which they were received.

 - £102,262 relates to additional DFG allocation provided by Central Government. This reduced the need
to use our core DFG grant allocation in 2017/18. This grant will be carried forward to 2018/19

Capital Receipts received during 2017-18
Asset  Capital

Receipts
£

Braithwaite Public Toilets 10,000
Keswick Public Toilets 73,980

83,980

Other items included in the 'Not currently allocated or ringfenced' total:
Asset  Capital

Receipts
£

Mealpot Road, Maryport 45,000
Underspend against budgeted use of capital receipts in 16/17 7,253
Not currently allocated or ringfenced 136,233

Page 18



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 13 June 2018

Revenue Outturn 2017-18

The Reason for the Decision This report informs members of the revenue outturn for 
2017-18 and makes recommendations on budget carry 
forwards and transfers to and from reserves

Summary of options considered Any options considered are detailed in the report

Recommendations Members are asked to:

1 Note the provisional revenue outturn position 
detailed in this report.

2 Note the impact of the revenue outturn position 
on the Authority’s general fund and earmarked 
(general fund) balances.

3 Approve contributions to earmarked reserves of 
£1,469,226: comprising planned contributions 
(£254,194), additional contributions (£655,033), 
income from the business rates system, included 
as part of the revised budget (£360,000) and 
additional income from taxation and government 
grants (£200,000).

Financial/Resource Implications To ensure that sufficient resources are available to support 
the revenue budget in 2018/19.

Legal Implications None 

Community Safety Implications None

Health & Safety & Risk 
Management Implications

It is imperative that all budgets are monitored monthly 
with exceptions reported through Senior Management 
Team and Executive.

Equality Duty considered/Impact 
Assessment completed

N/A

Wards Affected All Wards.

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



The Contribution this Decision 
would make to the Council’s 
priorities

The use of Council resources to deliver core services 
and agreed projects ensures the delivery of the 
Council’s key aims.

Is this a Key Decision No.

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Barbara Cannon

Lead Officer Catherine Nicholson, Head of Financial Services
Tel: 01900 702503
Email: catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N
Financial Y Employment (internal) N
Legal Y Partnership N
Social Inclusion N Asset Management N
Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

1.0 Introduction and Background

1.1 This report sets out the draft Revenue Outturn position for 2017-18 and 
explains the reasons for significant variances between actual expenditure and 
the Councils 2017/18 revised budget.

1.2 This report also
 provides details of requested contributions to earmarked reserves 

(section 5),
 compares actual funding from taxation and government grants against 

budget (section 6),
 compares quarter 3 forecast outturn with actual outturn (section 7),
 summarises the impact of the outturn position on earmarked reserves 

and general fund balances (section 8).

1.3 Members should note that the information contained in this report is 
provisional and may be subject to change following audit of the Council’s 
2017/18 Statement of Accounts. Any significant changes will be reported to 
Executive following approval of the audited Statement of Accounts by the 
Audit Committee in July.

Page 20

mailto:catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk


2.0      Summary Revenue Outturn Position

2.1 The Revenue Outturn for 2017/18 is summarised in table 1. This shows:

Revenue Budget Expenditure
 the revenue budget of £14.629m
 actual net expenditure including planned contributions to reserve of 

£14.063m
 a net underspend of £566k
 requested contributions to earmarked reserves of £655k

Funding 
 income from Taxation & Government Grants exceeded budget by 

£289k
 requested contributions to earmarked reserves of additional income 

received of £200k
 no change to the budgeted use of General Fund 

 Earmarked Reserves Budget
 expenditure from the earmarked reserves is overspent by £97k
 after making adjustments relating to the reprofiling of expenditure 

between financial years, this leaves a net underspend against 
budget of £42k

 in addition to the underspend of £42k a further £43k has been 
identified following a review of earmarked reserves that were not 
included within the 2017/18 budget and are no longer required to 
meet future expenditure. 

 this will result in £85k being released back to general fund balance

Page 21



Table 1 – Summary of 2017/18 Revenue Outturn and Impact on GF Balances 
Revised 
Budget
£’000

Outturn
£’000

Variance
£’000

Report 
Ref.

Net Expenditure on Services 12,501 11,895 (606)

Planned Contributions to Reserves 214 254 40

Parish Precepts 1,914 1,914 0

Total Net Revenue Expenditure 14,629 14,063 (566) Section 3

Requested Contributions to Reserves 0 655 655 Section 4

Sub Total 14,629 14,718 89

Use of Earmarked Reserves 2,684 2,781 97 Section 5

Sub-Total 17,313 17,499 186

Less: Planned use of earmarked 
balances (2,684) (2,781) (97) Section 8

Total Outturn 14,629 14,718 89

Funding:

Taxation & Government Grants (13,075) (13,364) (289) Section 6

Planned Contributions to Reserves 360 360 0 Section 4

Requested Contributions to Reserves 0 200 200 Section 4

Parish Precepts (1,914) (1,914) 0

Contribution from/to General Fund 0 0 0 Section 8

Total Funding (14,629) (14,718) (89)

  2.2 A breakdown by portfolio of the net revenue expenditure outturn position is 
provided in section 3 below. 

Page 22



3.0      Analysis of Net Revenue Expenditure against Revised Budget

3.1 A summary of the Outturn Variance of £566k is shown in Table 2 by Portfolio, 
with additional detail provided in Appendix A and B:

Table 2 –Summary of Outturn Variance by Portfolio

Portfolio Annual 
Budget Outturn

Planned 
Contr  to  
Reserves

Gross 
Variance

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Leader of the Council 1,290 868 154 (268)
Economic Growth (807) (933) 0 (126)
Corporate Resources 4,518 4,364 25 (129)
Housing, Health & Well-being 1,049 1,013 31 (5)
Locality & Environmental Quality 2,876 3,251 0 375
Governance & People Resources 1,441 1,273 35 (133)
Tourism & Culture 400 343 9 (48)
Transformation 1,948 1,716 0 (232)
Parish Precepts 1,914 1,914 0 0

Total 14,629 13,809 254 (566)

3.2 Significant variances (i.e. greater than £30k) between budget and outturn by 
portfolio are highlighted below. 

Leader of the Council

3.3 The net underspend on the Leader of the Council Portfolio is £268,302. Of 
this £244,680 has been requested as a contribution to earmarked reserves, 
leaving a net favourable variance of £23,622.

Service

Gross 
Variance
adverse/

(favourable)
£

Requested
Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance
adverse/

(favourable)
£

Para.

Corporate Priorities (210,700) 210,700 0

Sub Total (210,700) 210,700 0  
Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (57,602) 33,980 (23,622)  
Total variance (268,302) 244,680 (23,622)  

Page 23



Corporate Priorities: (underspend of £210,700 to be carried forward to 
2018/19)

3.4 The 2017/18 revised budget included £451k to support Council Priorities. 
£87k of this was spent in year and £153k has been identified as a planned 
contribution to reserve for the development of the West Cumbria Credit Union 
(to be paid over the next three financial years). 

3.5 The remaining £211k will be contributed to a reserve to ensure this remains 
available in future financial years to deliver Council Priority schemes.

Economic Growth

3.6 Gross variance on the Economic Growth Portfolio is £126,096. Of this 
£59,687 has been requested as a contribution to earmarked reserves, leaving 
a net favourable variance of £66,409.

Service

Gross 
Variance
adverse/

(favourable)
£

Requested
Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance
adverse/

(favourable)
£

Para.

Other Land & Buildings (34,255) 30,000 (4,255)

Camping & Caravan Sites (118,470) 0 (118,470)

Planning and Development 42,847 0 42,847

Building Control Pay Group 54,603 0 54,603

Planning and Development Pay Group (42,881) 0 (42,881)

Enterprise Coaches (30,511) 0 (30,511)

Sub Total (128,667) 30,000 (98,667)  
Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k 2,571 29,687 32,258  

Total variance (126,096) 59,687 (66,409)  

Other Land & Buildings (underspend of £34,255, off-set by a 
contribution to reserve)

3.7 A non-recurring budget of £30k to contribute to repair works at Cockermouth 
Market Place has not been spent in year. The scheme is expected to be 
undertaken during 2018/19 and the budget has been contributed to reserves 
to fund the Authorities contribution towards this scheme, leaving a favourable 
variance of £4,255. 
Camping & Caravan Sites (favourable variance of £118,470)

3.8 The outturn includes forecast income from the Derwent Water Camping and 
Caravan site, based on the interim statement provided by the Camping and 
Caravan Club in December 2017. This shows an increase in forecast 
profitability for the site following completion of refurbishment works. This 
income is expected to be maintained in future years and this was reflected in 
the 2018/19 budget. 

Page 24



Planning and Development (adverse variance of £42,847)

3.9 The reported variance is underpinned by lower than expected planning 
income. This is a volatile income stream which is demand led. It had been 
expected that the budgeted income would be achieved in 2017/18, but due to 
a relatively large planning application being submitted later than had been 
anticipated this was not the case and the income has instead been received in 
2018/19.
Building Control Pay Group (adverse variance of £54,603)

3.10 Additional costs have been incurred in relation to the use of agency staff to 
cover vacancies. This overspend is partially off-set by an underspend on the 
Planning and Development Pay Group.
Planning and Development Pay Group (favourable variance of £42,881)

3.11 The underspend is associated with vacant posts, recruitment is on-going and 
the resulting underspend off-sets the overspend on the Building Control Pay 
Group. 
Enterprise Coaches (favourable variance of £30,511)

3.12 Following completion of the final audit review of the Ways Into Successful 
Enterprise (WISE) scheme in December, additional income is payable to the 
Council which has resulted in a favourable variance. 

Corporate Resources Portfolio
3.13 Gross variance on the Corporate Resources Portfolio is £129,441. Of this 

£26,800 has been requested as a contribution to earmarked reserves, leaving 
a net favourable variance of £102,641.

Service

Gross 
Variance
adverse/

(favourabl
e)
£

Requested
Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance
adverse/

(favourabl
e)
£

Para.

Banking and Interest (66,773) 0 (66,773)

Pensions (31,130) 0 (31,130)

Sub Total (97,903) 0 (97,903)  
Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (31,538) 26,800 (4,740)  

Total variance (129,441) 26,800 (102,641)  

Banking and Interest (favourable variance £66,773)
3.14 The majority of the reported variance reflects the reduction in PWLB 

borrowing costs associated with changes to the timing and amount of 
additional borrowing needed to fund the Authorities capital programme. This 
reduction reflects changes to the timing of capital expenditure across financial 
years and favourable in year cash flows.

Page 25



Pensions (favourable variance £31,130)
3.15 A budget of £35,000 is available in 2017/18 to cover costs associated with 

auto enrolment legislation. The full budget is not required as only a small 
number of staff have remained in the pension scheme following auto 
enrolment.
Locality & Environmental Quality

3.16 Net expenditure on the Locality & Environmental Quality Portfolio exceeded 
the revised budget by £374,739. An additional £11,195 has been requested 
as a contribution to earmarked reserves, leaving a net adverse variance of 
£385,934.

Service

Gross 
Variance
adverse/

(favourable)
£

Requested
Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance
adverse/

(favourable)
£

Para.

Trade Waste 44,702 0 44,702

Recycling 57,557 0 57,557
Off-street – Owned Car Parks 48,133 0 48,133

Multi-storey Car Park 251,302 0 251,302

Sports & Leisure Centres (40,861) 0 (40,861)
Sub Total 360,833 0 360,833  
Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k 13,906 11,195 25,101  
Total variance 374,739 11,195 385,934  

Trade Waste (adverse variance of £44,702)

3.17 The main reason for this variance was a £34k reduction in income received 
for the collection of trade waste. The remaining variance is made up of 
smaller variances across the service. Plans are being reviewed to improve the 
service in 2018/19 to address this shortfall.
Recycling (adverse variance of £57,557)

3.18 The variance of £57k is underpinned by a £42k adverse variance in income 
receivable from recycling credits. This was due to a reduction in the volume of 
recycled material compared to budget. Plans are being reviewed to improve 
the service in 2018/19 to address this shortfall.

Page 26



Off-street – Owned Car Parks (adverse variance of £48,113)

3.19 This variance comprises:
 £41k rental costs due to a delay in the purchase of Otley Road car 

park. This was completed in February 2018 meaning no further 
action is required to address this in 2018/19

 (£17k) reduction in various costs. In particular the cost of machine 
maintenance which was reduced due to not requiring a full year of 
maintenance for new machines and a reduction in the use of a one-
off budget allocated to reviewing the commercial use of car parks

 £49k shortfall in projected income from season ticket sales
 £48k reduction in PCN income compared to budget
 (£73k) additional car parking income compared to budget

Multi-storey Car Park (adverse variance of £251,302)

3.20 This variance comprises:
 £68k shortfall in the final profit share receivable from Parksafe
 £95k payable under the terms of the settlement agreement to 

reimburse Parksafe for corporation tax payable on the settlement 
sum

 £75k increase in provision to meet future settlement payments, 
including estimated additional amounts payable to reimburse 
Parksafe for corporation tax liabilities on future settlement sums due

 £45k shortfall in parking income received
 (£26k) saving in one-off costs associated with a review of parking 

services staffing. 
 (£6k) favourable variance attributable to a reduction in expenditure 

across a number of budget lines

Sports & Leisure Centres (favourable variance of £40,861)

3.21 The variance relates to additional income receivable in relation to the first 
years profit share on the sports & leisure centres contract. 

Governance & People Resources

3.22 The gross underspend on the Governance & People Resources Portfolio is 
£133,036, of which £79,707 has been requested as a contribution to 
earmarked reserves. This leaves a net favourable variance of £53,329.

Page 27



Service

Gross 
Variance
adverse/

(favourable)
£

Requested
Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance
adverse/

(favourable)
£

Para.

Legal Services (60,764) 56,545 (4,219)
Sub Total (60,764) 56,545 (4,219)  
Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (72,272) 23,162 (49,110)  

Total variance (133,036) 79,707 (53,329)  

Legal Services (underspend of £60,764, off-set by a contribution to 
reserve)

3.23 Engagement of a temporary staffing resource within the legal team has 
reduced the need for external legal services. 

3.24 The resulting underspend has been requested as a contribution to earmarked 
reserves to cover the costs associated with on-going projects, these include 

 Land Charges Digitisation 
 General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 
 Social Impact Investment Fund (SIIF) loans fund 
 Lillyhall land transactions)

Transformation

3.25 The gross variance on the Transformation Portfolio has resulted is £232,591, 
of which £152,423 has been requested as a contribution to earmarked 
reserves. This leaves a net favourable variance of £80,168.

Service

Gross 
Variance
adverse/

(favourable)
£

Requested
Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance
adverse/

(favourable)
£

Para.

Benefits (93,735) 35,000 (58,735)
Arcus Software Implementation (117,423) 117,423 0
Sub Total (211,158) 152,423 (58,735)  
Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (21,433) 0 (21,433)  

Total variance (232,591) 152,423 (80,168)  

Page 28



Benefits (favourable variance of £93,735)

3.26 The reported variance of £93,735 comprises:

 £23k favourable variance in relation to housing benefits payments 
net of Central Government Grant and recovery of overpayments.

 £16k favourable variance attributable to a reduction in expenditure 
across a number of budget lines. 

 £54k favourable variance following the receipt of new burdens 
funding awarded after the revised budget was approved. 

3.27 £35k of the favourable variance has been requested as a contribution to 
reserve to cover the cost of on-going projects. These comprise the phased 
introduction of new ways of working and fraud reduction work.
Arcus Software Implementation (underspend of £117,423, off-set by a 
contribution to reserve)

3.28 Arcus is a Cloud based suite of systems, which enables agile streamline 
working across a number of services. Payments for this system will be made 
when certain milestones are achieved. A number of these milestones are 
programmed for 2018/19 which means that the remaining budget will be 
contributed to a reserve so that it is available to make these payments.

Other portfolios
3.29 There are no significant variances (i.e. variances of +/- £30k) to report within 

the following portfolios:
 Housing, Health & Well-being
 Tourism & Culture

4.0 Contributions to Earmarked Reserves 

4.1 Contributions totalling £1,469,226 will be made to earmarked reserves. A 
detailed list of these contributions is provided in Appendix C and comprise:

Revenue Budget Expenditure
 £254,194 planned contributions included in the revised budget
 £655,032 additional contributions in relation to the re-profiling of the 

2017/18 budget. This re-profile will enable expenditure plans to be 
met without any impact on the 2018/19 budget. 

Revenue Budget Funding
 £360,000 planned contributions approved as part of the 2017/18 

revised budget 
 £200,000 additional contribution in relation to additional income 

received from taxation and government grants.
4.2 Contributions to earmarked reserve allow the authority to manage its budget 

effectively without impacting on the 2018/19 budget and assists in developing 
a stable medium term financial plan.

Page 29



5.0 Use of Earmarked Reserves

5.1 The opening balance in earmarked reserve of £5,201k can be split as 
follows:

 £3,666k held for service expenditure
 £1,535k held for accounting purposes or as contingency against 

specified risks

5.2 Against the balance of £3,666k (reserves held for service expenditure) the 
profiled spend identified for the 2017/18 revised budget is £2,684k, with the 
remaining balance being profiled to future financial years. 

5.3 The outturn for 2017/18 is £2,781k, which gives an overspend of £97k. £139k 
relates to a change in the timing of expenditure between financial years, 
comprising:

 re-profiled expenditure to future years of £542k
 re-profiled expenditure from future years of (£681k)

5.4 This leaves an underspend against budgeted earmarked reserves of £42k 
which has been identified as a saving.

Summary of projected expenditure from earmarked reserves

Reserve  
Balance

Revised  
Budget outturn Variance 

Re-profiled 
to/(from) 

future 
years

 

savingReserve Funded projects 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Leader of the Council 596 528 426 (102) 98 (4)
Economic Growth 224 191 162 (29) 22 (7)
Corporate Resources 844 683 1,319 636 (636) 0
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 857 290 49 (241) 236 (5)
Locality & Environmental Quality 213 206 191 (15) 15 0
Governance & People Resources 695 574 520 (54) 49 (5)
Tourism & Culture 30 30 0 (30) 29 (1)
Transformation 207 182 114 (68) 48 (20)

Total held for service expenditure 3,666 2,684 2,781 97 (139) (42)
Accounting/Contingent reserves 1,535 0 0 0 0 0
Total Reserves 5,201 2,684 2,781 97 (139) (42)

5.5 In addition to the underspend of £42k a further £43k has been identified 
following a review of earmarked reserves that were not included within the 
2017/18 budget and are no longer required to meet future expenditure. 

5.6 This will result in £85k being released back to general fund balance

Page 30



Cumbria Business Rates Pool ‘local volatility fund’

5.7 A reserve of £101,714 is currently held as the Allerdale Borough Councils 
share of the Cumbria Business Rates Pool ‘local volatility fund’. Following a 
change to the Pool arrangements from 1st April 2018 these resources will no 
longer be ring-fenced. It is proposed to release the reserve to general fund 
and allocate this as part of the next budget setting process.

6.0 Taxation and non-specific grant income & expenditure 

6.1 Details of the Council’s taxation and non-specific grant income and 
expenditure for the year compared with budget, are shown in the following 
table. This includes income received from:

 Non-ring fenced government grants such as Revenue Support Grant 
and New Homes Bonus  

 Council tax and Non Domestic Rates (NNDR)

Taxation and non-specific grant income
Budget 
£’000

Outturn
 £’000

Variance

 £’000

Para

Revenue support grant 1,060 1,060 0

Rural Services Delivery Grant 261 261 0

New Homes Bonus 1,604 1,612 8

Other Grants 0 2 2

Council tax – excluding parish element 4,920 4,920 0

Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - Council Tax 139 139 0

NNDR funding 5,091 5,370 279

13,075 13,364 289

6.2 National Non Domestic Rates income shows an increase in funding of £279k. 
A summary of the NNDR income included in the 2017/18 budget and the 
actual income to be credited to the Council’s general fund in 2017/18, is 
shown in the table below.

Page 31



NNDR funding 2017/18 

Funding element
Approved

Budget 
£’000

Forecast 
Outturn 

£’000

Variance 

£’000
Fixed Elements:
Allerdale Share of NNDR Income 11,805 11,804 (1)

Net tariff payable to Central Government (6,931) (6,927) 4

Share of estimated collection fund deficit (872) (872) 0
‘Fixed’ element of NNDR income 4,002 4,005 3
Variable Elements:
Section 31 grant 1,224 1,530 306

Levy payable (net of reduction under pool 
arrangements) (362) (392) (30)

Variable element of NNDR income 862 1,138 276
Total Fixed & Variable Elements 4,864 5,143 279
Release of s31 Flood grant from Earmarked Reserve 227 227 0
Total income from NNDR 5,091 5,370 279

Additional Section 31 Grant
6.3 It was noted during the quarterly finance reports that there was potential for 

additional income to be received in relation to Small Business Rate Relief 
(SBRR). MHCLG (formerly DCLG) had announced that the existing 
calculation of Section 31 Grant did not properly compensate Authorities for 
the changes made to SBRR relief in 2017/18. Confirmation of the additional 
grant due to the Authority was announced in December. 

Increase in Net Levy Payable 
6.4 The levy payable is based on the final Collection Fund outturn position for 

2017/18. The increase in net levy payable is a result of:
 additional Section 31 grants (explained above) have increased the 

Council’s NNDR income
 an increase in the amount of retained income under the pooling 

arrangement. 

7.0 In Year Monitoring
7.1 The Council’s financial regulations require the Section 151 Officer (Head of 

Financial Services) to report the latest financial position against budget to 
Executive on a regular basis. Regular monitoring of the financial 
performance forms an integral part of the framework of financial controls and 
procedures used by the Council to manage financial risks.

Page 32



7.2 The quarter 3 monitoring report to Executive identified a potential 
underspend, after planned contributions to reserves, of £72k. This compares 
to an actual underspend variance of £566k. This is a change of £494k.

7.3 The difference of £494k is underpinned by the variances reported in Section 
3 of this report and has resulted in the additional contributions to earmarked 
reserves, explained in Section 4.

7.4 A number of these variances have arisen as a result of events arising after 
publication of the quarter 3 monitoring report. The monthly budget monitoring 
update presented to the Senior Management Team identified a potential 
underspend of £431k (a change of £135k when compared to the actual 
underspend variance of £566k).

8.0       General Fund Balances 

8.1 The impact of the provisional revenue outturn on the Authority’s general fund 
and earmarked (E/M) general fund reserves is summarised in the below 
table

Movement in Balances
Budget Actual

General 
Fund

Earmarked 
Reserves

General 
Fund

Earmarked 
Reserves 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Opening Balances 5,100 5,201 5,100 5,201
Transfers to/(from) Reserves:
Release of E/M to GF 0 0 85 (85)

Use for capital programme (730) (230) (264) (230)

Use to support Revenue Budget 0 (2,454) 0 (2,551)

Planned to Earmarked Reserves 0 214 0 254

Requested to Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 655

Contributions to Volatility Reserve 0 360 0 360

Additional Taxation and Government 
Grants to Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 200

(Increase)/Decrease in Balance (730) (2,110) (179) (1,397)

Balance at 31 March 2018 4,370 3,091 4,921 3,804
Use for capital budget carry forwards 0 0 (453) 0
Use to fund 2018-19 Revenue 
Budget (444) 0 (444) 0

Retained - Minimum Balance (2,700) 0 (2,700) 0

Available for Use 1,226 3,091 1,324 3,804

Page 33



Impact on General Fund Balances

8.2 This reserve plays an important part in managing unforeseen risk and cash 
flow management of the Authority. 

8.3 The opening General Fund Balance (GFB) for the 2017/18 financial year is 
£5,100k. After accounting for the transfers to/from earmarked reserves 
referred to in the preceding paragraphs, the net use of general fund 
balances during 2017/18 was £179k.

8.4 The following allocations have been made from the general fund at 31 March 
2018:

 £453k to finance capital carry forwards, 
 £444k to finance the 2018-19 revenue budget (approved by Council on 

the 7th March 2018 as part of the ‘Budget 2018/19 – Revenue and 
Capital’ report)

 £2,700k to be held as a minimum balance
8.5 This leaves £1,324k: a favourable change of £98k when compared to the 

planned available for use balance of £1,226k.

Impact on Earmarked Reserves

8.6 The opening balance on earmarked reserves at 1 April 2017 was £5,201. 
The revised budget for 2017/18 included a planned net use of earmarked 
balances of £2,684k (£2,454k for revenue expenditure and £230k for capital 
expenditure)

8.7 Actual use of earmarked reserves in 2017/18 was £2,856k (£2,551k for 
revenue expenditure, £230k for capital expenditure and £85k release to GF 
balances).

8.8 Other movements totalling £1,469k relate to contributions to Earmarked 
Reserves detailed in section 4. 

9.0 Recommendations 
Members are asked to:

9.1 Note the provisional revenue outturn position detailed in this report.
9.2 Note the impact of the revenue outturn position on the Authority’s general 

fund and earmarked (general fund) balances.
9.3 Approve contributions to earmarked reserves of £1,469,226: comprising 

planned contributions (£254,194), additional contributions (£655,033), 
income from the business rates system, included as part of the revised 
budget (£360,000) and additional income from taxation and government 
grants (£200,000).

Catherine Nicholson
Head of Financial Services

Page 34



Appendix A

Summary of Draft Outturn by Portfolio

Portfolio

Net

Approved
Budget

Total Annual
Budget  Gross Outturn Gross

Variance
Planned Contr

to Reserves
Gross

Variance

Unplanned
Contr to

Reserves
Net Variance

REVENUE
Leader of the Council 1,293,960 1,289,720 867,818 (421,902) 153,600 (268,302) 244,680 (23,622)
Economic Growth (791,019) (806,779) (932,875) (126,096) 0 (126,096) 59,687 (66,409)
Corporate Resources 4,523,043 4,518,423 4,363,982 (154,441) 25,000 (129,441) 26,800 (102,641)
Housing, Health & Well-being 1,048,080 1,049,540 1,013,283 (36,257) 30,914 (5,343) 10,000 4,657
Locality & Environmental Quality 2,817,863 2,875,863 3,250,602 374,739 0 374,739 11,195 385,934
Governance & People Resources 1,488,701 1,440,861 1,272,825 (168,036) 35,000 (133,036) 79,707 (53,329)
Tourism & Culture 387,720 399,720 343,210 (56,510) 9,680 (46,830) 70,540 23,710
Transformation 1,947,235 1,948,235 1,715,644 (232,591) 0 (232,591) 152,423 (80,168)

REVENUE Sub Total 12,715,583 12,715,583 11,894,489 (821,094) 254,194 (566,900) 655,032 88,132

Parish Precepts 1,913,535 1,913,535 1,913,535 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUE 14,629,118 14,629,118 13,808,024 (821,094) 254,194 (566,900) 655,032 88,132

Portfolio Approved
Budget

Total Annual
Budget  Gross Outturn Gross

Variance - Gross
Variance

Change in
profiling of
expenditure

Net Variance

RESERVE  FUNDED PROJECTS
Leader of the Council 569,999 528,044 425,952 (102,092) 0 (102,092) 98,383 (3,709)
Economic Growth 197,745 190,745 161,557 (29,188) 0 (29,188) 22,011 (7,177)
Corporate Resources 683,003 683,003 1,319,109 636,106 0 636,106 (636,106) 0
Housing, Health & Well being 289,972 289,972 49,258 (240,714) 0 (240,714) 235,539 (5,175)
Locality & Commercial Services 176,462 205,998 191,467 (14,531) 0 (14,531) 14,531 0
Governance & People Resources 554,211 573,631 519,888 (53,743) 0 (53,743) 49,304 (4,439)
Tourism & Culture 29,638 29,638 0 (29,638) 0 (29,638) 29,098 (540)
Transformation 182,299 182,299 114,191 (68,108) 0 (68,108) 47,752 (20,356)

TOTAL RESERVES 2,683,329 2,683,330 2,781,422 98,092 0 98,092 (139,488) (41,396)

P
age 35



Appendix B

PORTFOLIO : LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Total Annual
Budget

 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

Planned Contr
to Reserves

Gross
Variance

Unplanned
Contr to

Reserves
Net Variance

REVENUE
1100 revenue Grants to Voluntary Organisation 72,130 72,130 72,329 199 0 199 0 199
1000 revenue Communications and Marketing (900) (900) 15,027 15,927 0 15,927 6,000 21,927
1046 revenue Corporate Improvement Team 9,970 9,970 8,641 (1,329) 0 (1,329) 0 (1,329)
1098 revenue Economic Regeneration 109,670 109,670 102,703 (6,967) 0 (6,967) 0 (6,967)
1101 revenue Planning Policy 44,250 44,250 44,229 (21) 0 (21) 0 (21)
1103 revenue Localities & Partnerships 12,000 12,000 8,427 (3,573) 0 (3,573) 0 (3,573)
1143 revenue Corporate Priorities 451,000 431,000 66,700 (364,300) 153,600 (210,700) 210,700 0
1152 revenue Leaders Portfolio 10,000 10,000 20,225 10,225 0 10,225 0 10,225
5040 revenue Heads of Service 34,360 34,360 33,233 (1,127) 0 (1,127) 0 (1,127)
5660 revenue Director of Resources & PA 129,750 129,750 117,220 (12,530) 0 (12,530) 0 (12,530)
5680 revenue Chief Executive 170,840 170,840 174,320 3,480 0 3,480 0 3,480
5720 revenue Policy & Performance 110,890 110,890 87,150 (23,740) 0 (23,740) 0 (23,740)
5860 revenue Strategy, Policy & Performance Pay Group 140,000 140,000 129,274 (10,726) 0 (10,726) 0 (10,726)
5870 revenue Head of Strategy, Policy & Perf 0 15,760 16,315 555 0 555 0 555
6548 revenue Social Investment Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6565 revenue Self Build, Custom Build (SBCB) Funding 0 0 (27,975) (27,975) 0 (27,975) 27,980 5

Total Revenue 1,293,960 1,289,720 867,818 (421,902) 153,600 (268,302) 244,680 (23,622)

Cost
Centre Description Approved

Budget
Total Annual

Budget
 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance - Gross

Variance

Change in
profiling of
expenditure

Net Variance

RESERVES
6150 reserve Corporate Transformation 379,058 311,103 227,833 (83,270) 0 (83,270) 83,270 0
6300 reserve Website Upgrade 0 25,000 25,000 0 0 0 0 0
6101 reserve Planning Policy 35,000 35,000 26,329 (8,671) 0 (8,671) 8,671 0
6149 reserve Health & Wellbeing Group 731 1,731 1,289 (442) 0 (442) 442 0
6703 reserve Financial Planning & Economic Growth 155,210 155,210 145,501 (9,709) 0 (9,709) 6,000 (3,709)

Total Reserves 569,999 528,044 425,952 (102,092) 0 (102,092) 98,383 (3,709)

TOTAL 1,863,959 1,817,764 1,293,770 (523,994) 153,600 (370,394) 343,063 (27,331)

P
age 36



Appendix Bii

PORTFOLIO : ECONOMIC GROWTH

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Total Annual
Budget

 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

Planned Contr
to Reserves

Gross
Variance

Unplanned
Contr to

Reserves
Net Variance

REVENUE
1018 revenue Tenanted Properties (199,590) (199,590) (227,900) (28,310) 0 (28,310) 9,200 (19,110)
1019 revenue Industrial Units (218,800) (218,800) (219,007) (207) 0 (207) 0 (207)
1020 revenue Other Land & Buildings (50,000) (50,000) (84,255) (34,255) 0 (34,255) 30,000 (4,255)
1025 revenue Camping & Caravan Sites (603,899) (603,899) (722,369) (118,470) 0 (118,470) 0 (118,470)
1027 revenue Workington Town Centre (558,000) (558,000) (534,220) 23,780 0 23,780 0 23,780
1028 revenue Circuses & Fairs (5,000) (5,000) (5,700) (700) 0 (700) 0 (700)
1054 revenue Building Control - Chargeable (315,590) (315,590) (285,669) 29,921 0 29,921 0 29,921
1058 revenue Planning and Development (521,150) (521,150) (478,302) 42,848 0 42,848 0 42,848
1073 revenue Markets (79,000) (79,000) (75,621) 3,379 0 3,379 0 3,379
1105 revenue The Hub Workington Town Centre 0 0 (904) (904) 0 (904) 0 (904)
1116 revenue Festivals & Events 104,080 84,080 82,891 (1,189) 0 (1,189) 0 (1,189)
1122 revenue Building Control - Non-Chargeable 1,760 1,760 (742) (2,502) 0 (2,502) 0 (2,502)
1142 revenue Corporate Property (26,000) (26,000) (23,124) 2,876 0 2,876 0 2,876
1147 revenue Town Centres 80,000 80,000 77,334 (2,666) 0 (2,666) 0 (2,666)
1157 revenue Shop Front Improvements 50,000 50,000 30,097 (19,903) 0 (19,903) 20,487 584
1161 revenue Multi Store Car Park Maintenance 0 0 1,127 1,127 0 1,127 0 1,127
5260 revenue Building Control Pay Group 360,060 360,060 414,663 54,603 0 54,603 0 54,603
5300 revenue Planning and Development Pay Group 499,550 499,550 456,671 (42,879) 0 (42,879) 0 (42,879)
5440 revenue Regeneration Pay Group 161,600 161,600 149,105 (12,495) 0 (12,495) 0 (12,495)
5600 revenue Head of Development Services 64,010 64,010 66,099 2,089 0 2,089 0 2,089
5740 revenue Business Support Unit, Development Services 171,200 171,200 177,039 5,839 0 5,839 0 5,839
5750 revenue Head of Economic Growth 63,010 47,250 50,881 3,631 0 3,631 0 3,631
5800 revenue Estates 192,490 192,490 193,888 1,398 0 1,398 0 1,398
6507 revenue Industrial Communities Alliance 3,250 3,250 3,250 0 0 0 0 0
6510 revenue Town Centre Management 15,000 35,000 33,532 (1,468) 0 (1,468) 0 (1,468)
6521 revenue Enterprise Coaches 0 0 (30,511) (30,511) 0 (30,511) 0 (30,511)
6528 revenue Contribution to LEP 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 0 0 0 0
6535 revenue Disposal of Allerdale Sites 15,000 15,000 13,872 (1,128) 0 (1,128) 0 (1,128)
6544 revenue Heat Exchange Network 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6552 revenue Coastal Community Teams 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenue (791,019) (806,779) (932,875) (126,096) 0 (126,096) 59,687 (66,409)

P
age 37



Appendix Bii

Cost
Centre Description Approved

Budget
Total Annual

Budget
 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance - Gross

Variance

Change in
profiling of
expenditure

Net Variance

RESERVES
6005 reserve Planning Services Delivery Improvement 50,746 50,746 50,746 0 0 0 0 0
6100 reserve Multi Store Car Park Maintenance 47,756 47,756 47,756 0 0 0 0 0
6122 reserve Town Centres 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 0 0 0 0
6123 reserve Town Centre Management 400 400 400 0 0 0 0 0
6125 reserve Disposal of Allerdale Sites 8,427 8,427 6,940 (1,487) 0 (1,487) 0 (1,487)
6145 reserve Building Control Services Improvement 14,795 14,795 14,795 0 0 0 0 0
6146 reserve Maryport Shop Front Scheme 4,881 4,881 4,881 0 0 0 0 0
6707 reserve Festivals & Community Events 17,915 10,915 2,000 (8,915) 0 (8,915) 8,915 0
6701 reserve Corporate Priorities 32,825 32,825 14,039 (18,786) 0 (18,786) 13,096 (5,690)

Total Reserves 197,745 190,745 161,557 (29,188) 0 (29,188) 22,011 (7,177)

TOTAL (593,274) (616,034) (771,318) (155,284) 0 (155,284) 81,698 (73,586)

P
age 38



Appendix Biii

PORTFOLIO : CORPORATE RESOURCES

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Total Annual
Budget

 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

Planned Contr
to Reserves

Gross
Variance

Unplanned
Contr to

Reserves
Net Variance

REVENUE
1004 revenue Corporate Management (128,000) (128,000) (132,162) (4,162) 0 (4,162) 0 (4,162)
1015 revenue Corporate Property Maintenance 562,640 587,884 597,056 9,172 0 9,172 0 9,172
1023 revenue Footways 124,940 124,940 129,271 4,331 0 4,331 0 4,331
1024 revenue Coastal Protection and Inland Flooding 45,200 45,200 47,817 2,617 0 2,617 0 2,617
1032 revenue Harrington Harbour 9,000 9,000 10,290 1,290 0 1,290 0 1,290
1034 revenue Banking and Interest 910,847 910,847 844,075 (66,772) 0 (66,772) 0 (66,772)
1035 revenue MRP & Finance Charges 622,660 622,660 622,653 (7) 0 (7) 0 (7)
1036 revenue Insurances 193,639 193,639 182,102 (11,537) 0 (11,537) 0 (11,537)
1038 revenue Parish Councils 68,120 68,120 68,340 220 0 220 0 220
1041 revenue Contingencies 111,780 85,786 60,506 (25,280) 0 (25,280) 0 (25,280)
1069 revenue Public Building Cleaning 74,960 74,960 67,714 (7,246) 0 (7,246) 0 (7,246)
1070 revenue Public Convenience Cleaning 119,700 119,700 120,370 670 0 670 0 670
1118 revenue Car Parks Inspection & Maintenance 30,300 30,300 30,408 108 0 108 0 108
1123 revenue Pension Deficit Employer Contribution 934,300 930,430 899,300 (31,130) 0 (31,130) 0 (31,130)
1125 revenue Section 106 Town & Country Plan Act 1990 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1126 revenue Revenue Financing for Capital Programme 0 0 70 70 0 70 0 70
1128 revenue Self Sufficiency Programme (22,733) (22,733) 0 22,733 0 22,733 0 22,733
1160 revenue Council Tax Flood Relief 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1166 revenue Multi Store Car Park Utility & Maintenance 103,000 103,000 51,156 (51,844) 25,000 (26,844) 26,800 (44)
1170 revenue Street Name & Numbering 0 0 (1,790) (1,790) 0 (1,790) 0 (1,790)
5100 revenue Property Services Pay Group 244,410 244,410 251,647 7,237 0 7,237 0 7,237
5120 revenue Finance and Accounting Pay Group 448,860 448,860 441,847 (7,013) 0 (7,013) 0 (7,013)
5520 revenue Head of Financial Services 69,420 69,420 72,812 3,392 0 3,392 0 3,392
6554 revenue Flood Grants (2015 Flood) 0 0 500 500 0 500 0 500
6555 revenue Flood Resilience Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenue 4,523,043 4,518,423 4,363,982 (154,441) 25,000 (129,441) 26,800 (102,641)

Parish PreceptsParish PreceptsParish Precepts 1,913,535 1,913,535 1,913,535 0 0 0 0 0

P
age 39



Appendix Biii

Cost
Centre Description Approved

Budget
Total Annual

Budget
 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance - Gross

Variance

Change in
profiling of
expenditure

Net Variance

RESERVES
6018 reserve Emergency Maintenance Fund 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 0
6021 reserve Risk Management/Insurance 13,000 13,000 10,930 (2,070) 0 (2,070) 2,070 0
6084 reserve Allerdale House - Internal Works 10,130 10,130 10,130 0 0 0 0 0
6105 reserve Revenue Financing for Capital Programme 230,841 230,841 230,841 0 0 0 0 0
6126 reserve Car Park Markings 0 0 5,000 5,000 0 5,000 (5,000) 0
6138 reserve Section 31 NNDR 226,582 226,582 226,582 0 0 0 0 0
6159 reserve AIP Loan Note 0 0 109,328 109,328 0 109,328 (109,328) 0
6160 reserve AIP Loan Note Interest 0 0 552,800 552,800 0 552,800 (552,800) 0
6719 reserve Direct Debits & System Development 42,952 42,952 13,891 (29,061) 0 (29,061) 29,061 0
6720 reserve Footway Lighting Scheme 7,498 7,498 7,607 109 0 109 (109) 0
6725 reserve Pension Scheme Auto Enrolment 150,000 150,000 150,000 0 0 0 0 0

Total Reserves 683,003 683,003 1,319,109 636,106 0 636,106 (636,106) 0

TOTAL 7,119,581 7,114,961 7,596,626 481,665 25,000 506,665 (609,306) (102,641)

P
age 40



Appendix Biv

PORTFOLIO : HOUSING, HEALTH & WELL-BEING

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Total Annual
Budget

 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

Planned Contr
to Reserves

Gross
Variance

Unplanned
Contr to

Reserves
Net Variance

REVENUE
1065 revenue Emergency Planning 20,400 20,400 18,828 (1,572) 0 (1,572) 0 (1,572)
1072 revenue Pest Control (32,690) (32,690) (17,177) 15,513 0 15,513 0 15,513
1078 revenue Health and Safety 1,500 1,500 1,303 (197) 0 (197) 0 (197)
1080 revenue Food and Occupational Health 230 230 (5,349) (5,579) 0 (5,579) 0 (5,579)
1081 revenue Environmental Protection (9,700) (9,700) (4,761) 4,939 0 4,939 0 4,939
1089 revenue Housing Strategic Function (3,120) (3,120) (6,845) (3,725) 0 (3,725) 0 (3,725)
1092 revenue Homelessness 6,750 6,750 (15,315) (22,065) 0 (22,065) 10,000 (12,065)
1093 revenue Assistance - Housing Services (52,000) (50,540) (58,557) (8,017) 0 (8,017) 0 (8,017)
1096 revenue Gypsy & Traveller Sites 18,000 18,000 13,785 (4,215) 0 (4,215) 0 (4,215)
1156 revenue Major Incident Response 0 0 (30,914) (30,914) 30,914 0 0 0
5560 revenue Head of Housing & Health 64,010 64,010 65,647 1,637 0 1,637 0 1,637
5760 revenue Housing & Health Pay Group 1,034,700 1,034,700 1,053,642 18,942 0 18,942 0 18,942
6733 revenue Npower Energy Efficiency Programme 0 0 (1,004) (1,004) 0 (1,004) 0 (1,004)

Total Revenue 1,048,080 1,049,540 1,013,283 (36,257) 30,914 (5,343) 10,000 4,657

Cost
Centre Description Approved

Budget
Total Annual

Budget
 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance - Gross

Variance

Change in
profiling of
expenditure

Net Variance

RESERVES
6127 reserve Housing Strategic Function 835 835 831 (4) 0 (4) 0 (4)
6128 reserve Homelessness 1,383 1,383 1,382 (1) 0 (1) 1 0
6142 reserve Community Housing Fund 195,127 195,127 27,766 (167,361) 0 (167,361) 167,361 0
6147 reserve Major Incident Response 73,177 73,177 5,000 (68,177) 0 (68,177) 68,177 0
6148 reserve GP Accommodation Scheme 8,760 8,760 7,629 (1,131) 0 (1,131) 0 (1,131)
6734 reserve Water Quality Signage 10,690 10,690 6,650 (4,040) 0 (4,040) 0 (4,040)

Total Reserves 289,972 289,972 49,258 (240,714) 0 (240,714) 235,539 (5,175)

TOTAL 1,338,052 1,339,512 1,062,541 (276,971) 30,914 (246,057) 245,539 (518)

P
age 41



Appendix Bv

PORTFOLIO : LOCALITY & ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Total Annual
Budget

 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

Planned Contr
to Reserves

Gross
Variance

Unplanned
Contr to

Reserves
Net Variance

REVENUE
1051 revenue Confidential Waste 3,600 3,600 3,491 (109) 0 (109) 0 (109)
1053 revenue Bereavement Services (114,270) (114,270) (128,090) (13,820) 0 (13,820) 0 (13,820)
1067 revenue Parks and Grounds Maintenance 482,560 482,560 526,619 44,059 0 44,059 0 44,059
1068 revenue Street Cleansing 1,138,780 1,138,780 1,140,662 1,882 0 1,882 0 1,882
1071 revenue Animal Welfare 46,740 46,740 48,738 1,998 0 1,998 0 1,998
1075 revenue Domestic Waste 1,615,950 1,615,950 1,629,360 13,410 0 13,410 0 13,410
1076 revenue Trade Waste (461,110) (509,250) (464,547) 44,703 0 44,703 0 44,703
1077 revenue Recycling 549,790 597,930 655,486 57,556 0 57,556 0 57,556
1079 revenue Environmental Initiatives 104,120 103,520 47,923 (55,597) 0 (55,597) 11,195 (44,402)
1083 revenue Off-street - Owned (2,211,130) (2,211,130) (2,162,998) 48,132 0 48,132 0 48,132
1085 revenue Multi-storey Car Park (14,880) 109,796 361,098 251,302 0 251,302 0 251,302
1086 revenue Off-street - Managed (60,000) (60,000) (40,084) 19,916 0 19,916 0 19,916
1112 revenue Sports & Leisure Centres 503,210 503,210 462,349 (40,861) 0 (40,861) 0 (40,861)
1114 revenue Sports Development 15,000 15,000 14,488 (512) 0 (512) 0 (512)
1115 revenue Maryport Wave 229,083 229,083 229,085 2 0 2 0 2
1136 revenue Supporting Leisure Activity across Aller 15,000 23,000 28,000 5,000 0 5,000 0 5,000
1153 revenue Workington Nature Partnership 17,100 17,700 18,174 474 0 474 0 474
1168 revenue Allerdale Fleet 6,600 6,600 0 (6,600) 0 (6,600) 0 (6,600)
1169 revenue Maryport Open Space improvements S106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1172 revenue Major Contract Procurement 0 50,000 50,000 0 0 0 0 0
5580 revenue Head of Community Services 63,010 63,010 66,340 3,330 0 3,330 0 3,330
5820 revenue Community Services Pay group 888,710 764,034 764,508 474 0 474 0 474

Total Revenue 2,817,863 2,875,863 3,250,602 374,739 0 374,739 11,195 385,934

Cost
Centre Description Approved

Budget
Total Annual

Budget
 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance - Gross

Variance

Change in
profiling of
expenditure

Net Variance

RESERVES
6139 reserve Parks & Grounds Maintenance 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 0 0 0 0
6140 reserve Parks Development 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 0 0 0 0
6141 reserve High Level Stewardship 6,366 6,366 0 (6,366) 0 (6,366) 6,366 0
6151 reserve Off Street Parking-System Upgrade 19,000 19,000 8,728 (10,272) 0 (10,272) 10,272 0
6152 reserve Bereavement Services-System Upgrade 10,446 10,446 3,810 (6,636) 0 (6,636) 6,636 0
6156 reserve Major Contract Procurement 0 128,316 141,909 13,593 0 13,593 (13,593) 0
6540 reserve Weekly Collection Support Scheme 112,000 13,220 13,220 0 0 0 0 0
6708 reserve Leisure Activities 22,650 22,650 17,800 (4,850) 0 (4,850) 4,850 0

Total Reserves 176,462 205,998 191,467 (14,531) 0 (14,531) 14,531 0

TOTAL 2,994,325 3,081,861 3,442,069 360,208 0 360,208 25,726 385,934

P
age 42



Appendix Bvi

PORTFOLIO : GOVERNANCE & PEOPLE RESOURCES

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Total Annual
Budget

 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

Planned Contr
to Reserves

Gross
Variance

Unplanned
Contr to

Reserves
Net Variance

REVENUE
1001 revenue Training 73,010 70,110 70,669 559 0 559 0 559
1002 revenue Corporate Recruitment 13,350 34,850 37,451 2,601 0 2,601 0 2,601
1003 revenue Pensions 164,000 155,400 154,755 (645) 0 (645) 0 (645)
1005 revenue Transformation re-structure 38,661 38,661 51,705 13,044 0 13,044 0 13,044
1007 revenue Mayoral Services 13,570 13,570 13,128 (442) 0 (442) 0 (442)
1008 revenue Mayor's Fund 3,250 3,250 6,412 3,162 0 3,162 0 3,162
1009 revenue Members Services 270,300 269,200 278,376 9,176 0 9,176 0 9,176
1010 revenue Leaders Services 30,000 30,000 28,785 (1,215) 0 (1,215) 0 (1,215)
1011 revenue Electoral Registration 60,000 60,000 44,564 (15,436) 0 (15,436) 9,000 (6,436)
1012 revenue Elections 40,200 40,200 (170) (40,370) 35,000 (5,370) 0 (5,370)
1013 revenue Corporate Advertising Statutory 1,550 1,550 618 (932) 0 (932) 0 (932)
1146 revenue Referral Centre 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1062 revenue Licensing Service (172,160) (172,160) (181,846) (9,686) 0 (9,686) 0 (9,686)
1063 revenue Land Charges Service (99,640) (99,640) (91,786) 7,854 0 7,854 0 7,854
1064 revenue Community Safety 10,000 10,750 9,510 (1,240) 0 (1,240) 0 (1,240)
1154 revenue Allerdale Options 0 0 (14,163) (14,163) 0 (14,163) 14,162 (1)
5000 revenue Human Resources Pay Group 175,750 175,750 182,953 7,203 0 7,203 0 7,203
5060 revenue Democratic Services Pay Group 125,980 125,980 121,243 (4,737) 0 (4,737) 0 (4,737)
5080 revenue Internal Audit Pay Group 102,880 102,880 97,103 (5,777) 0 (5,777) 0 (5,777)
5320 revenue Licensing Pay Group 77,380 77,380 80,179 2,799 0 2,799 0 2,799
5480 revenue Legal Services 216,630 177,730 116,966 (60,764) 0 (60,764) 56,545 (4,219)
5540 revenue Head of Governance 100,680 100,680 102,076 1,396 0 1,396 0 1,396
5790 revenue Governance Support Assistants 65,540 66,950 71,656 4,706 0 4,706 0 4,706
5810 revenue Elections - Pay Group 85,770 85,770 90,827 5,057 0 5,057 0 5,057
6515 revenue Apprentices & Graduates 72,000 72,000 53,556 (18,444) 0 (18,444) 0 (18,444)
6558 revenue Police & Crime Commissioner Election 0 0 (9,796) (9,796) 0 (9,796) 0 (9,796)
6559 revenue EU Referendum 0 0 (23,650) (23,650) 0 (23,650) 0 (23,650)
6562 revenue County Elections 0 0 (1,555) (1,555) 0 (1,555) 0 (1,555)
6563 revenue Parliamentary Election 2017 0 0 (14,741) (14,741) 0 (14,741) 0 (14,741)
6566 revenue Apprenticeship Incentive Fund 0 0 (2,000) (2,000) 0 (2,000) 0 (2,000)

Total Revenue 1,488,701 1,440,861 1,272,825 (168,036) 35,000 (133,036) 79,707 (53,329)

P
age 43



Appendix Bvi

Cost
Centre Description Approved

Budget
Total Annual

Budget
 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance - Gross

Variance

Change in
profiling of
expenditure

Net Variance

RESERVES
6017 reserve Legal Counsel 32,491 32,491 0 (32,491) 0 (32,491) 32,491 0
6081 reserve Members Training 9,000 9,000 9,000 0 0 0 0 0
6135 reserve Allerdale Options 6,745 5,745 3,873 (1,872) 0 (1,872) 1,872 0
6137 reserve Community Safety (ABC) 7,900 7,900 7,900 0 0 0 0 0
6144 reserve External Legal Services 465,887 465,887 465,887 0 0 0 0 0
6301 reserve Land Registry Digitization 0 20,420 7,682 (12,738) 0 (12,738) 12,738 0
6730 reserve Licensing Service Re-design 16,100 16,100 13,897 (2,203) 0 (2,203) 2,203 0
6739 reserve Young People/Apprentices 16,088 16,088 11,649 (4,439) 0 (4,439) 0 (4,439)

Total Reserves 554,211 573,631 519,888 (53,743) 0 (53,743) 49,304 (4,439)

TOTAL 2,042,912 2,014,492 1,792,713 (221,779) 35,000 (186,779) 129,011 (57,768)

P
age 44



Appendix Bvii

PORTFOLIO : TOURISM & CULTURE

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Total Annual
Budget  Gross Outturn Gross

Variance
Planned Contr

to Reserves
Gross

Variance

Unplanned
Contr to

Reserves
Net Variance

REVENUE
1056 revenue Silloth TIC 10,180 10,180 7,852 (2,328) 0 (2,328) 0 (2,328)
1106 revenue AONB Contribution 29,000 29,000 29,000 0 0 0 0 0
1110 revenue Museums 91,770 91,770 66,204 (25,566) 0 (25,566) 25,000 (566)
1111 revenue Arts Development 16,850 36,850 28,816 (8,034) 0 (8,034) 7,700 (334)
1144 revenue Carnegie Trust Contribution 120,000 120,000 120,000 0 0 0 0 0
1158 revenue Tourism Incentive 100,000 92,000 69,212 (22,788) 0 (22,788) 22,500 (288)
5840 revenue Tourism Pay group 19,920 19,920 17,351 (2,569) 0 (2,569) 0 (2,569)
6501 revenue Solway Coast AONB Core Funding 0 0 27,793 27,793 0 27,793 0 27,793
6517 revenue Solway Wetlands Project 0 0 2,000 2,000 0 2,000 0 2,000
6531 revenue Solway AONB Other Projects 0 0 (15,338) (15,338) 0 (15,338) 15,340 2
6550 revenue High Level Stewardship 0 0 (9,680) (9,680) 9,680 0 0 0

Total Non-Volatile 387,720 399,720 343,210 (56,510) 9,680 (46,830) 70,540 23,710

Cost
Centre Description Approved

Budget
Total Annual

Budget  Gross Outturn Gross
Variance - Gross

Variance

Change in
profiling of
expenditure

Net Variance

RESERVES
6119 reserve Museums 540 540 0 (540) 0 (540) 0 (540)

6155 reserve Solway AONB 29,098 29,098 0 (29,098) 0 (29,098) 29,098 0
Total Reserves 29,638 29,638 0 (29,638) 0 (29,638) 29,098 (540)

TOTAL 417,358 429,358 343,210 (86,148) 9,680 (76,468) 99,638 23,170

P
age 45



Appendix Bviii

PORTFOLIO : TRANSFORMATION

Cost
Centre Description

Net

Approved
Budget

Total Annual
Budget

 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance

Planned Contr
to Reserves

Gross
Variance

Unplanned
Contr to

Reserves
Net Variance

REVENUE
1047 revenue IT Services 414,730 414,730 411,677 (3,053) 0 (3,053) 0 (3,053)
1048 revenue Shared Revenues & Benefits IT Costs 97,480 97,480 103,084 5,604 0 5,604 0 5,604
1050 revenue Multi-functional Printers 20,530 20,530 11,481 (9,049) 0 (9,049) 0 (9,049)
1055 revenue Customer Contact Centre 0 0 (100) (100) 0 (100) 0 (100)
1059 revenue Revenue (386,600) (386,900) (363,744) 23,156 0 23,156 0 23,156
1060 revenue Benefits (547,190) (547,190) (640,925) (93,735) 0 (93,735) 35,000 (58,735)
1061 revenue Shared Revenues & Benefits 117,000 117,000 108,276 (8,724) 0 (8,724) 0 (8,724)
1140 revenue Shared ICT Costs 54,600 54,600 51,041 (3,559) 0 (3,559) 0 (3,559)
1165 revenue Corporate Postage & Stationery 142,530 142,530 131,819 (10,711) 0 (10,711) 0 (10,711)
5160 revenue Shared IT Services Pay Group 323,245 323,245 319,452 (3,793) 0 (3,793) 0 (3,793)
5280 revenue Customer Services Pay Group 430,990 431,290 429,853 (1,437) 0 (1,437) 0 (1,437)
5500 revenue Head of Organisational Development & Transformation 63,010 63,010 65,409 2,399 0 2,399 0 2,399
5700 revenue Customer & Transformation Programme 97,630 97,630 94,664 (2,966) 0 (2,966) 0 (2,966)
5710 revenue Communications 78,380 78,380 77,049 (1,331) 0 (1,331) 0 (1,331)
5730 revenue Commissioning Support Pay Group 102,420 102,420 107,049 4,629 0 4,629 0 4,629
5850 revenue Revenues, Benefits & Recovery Pay group 853,480 854,480 857,060 2,580 0 2,580 0 2,580
6004 revenue IT - New Initiatives 0 0 (985) (985) 0 (985) 0 (985)
6561 revenue Universal Credit (40,000) (40,000) (48,310) (8,310) 0 (8,310) 0 (8,310)
6557 revenue Ferris Maintenance Fund 0 0 (5,783) (5,783) 0 (5,783) 0 (5,783)
6564 revenue Project X 125,000 125,000 7,577 (117,423) 0 (117,423) 117,423 0

Total Revenue 1,947,235 1,948,235 1,715,644 (232,591) 0 (232,591) 152,423 (80,168)

Cost
Centre Description Approved

Budget
Total Annual

Budget
 Gross
Outturn

Gross
Variance - Gross

Variance

Change in
profiling of
expenditure

Net Variance

RESERVES
6050 reserve New Technology Fund 7,842 7,842 7,841 (1) 0 (1) 0 (1)
6077 reserve Shared Revenues & Benefits  Projects 58,743 58,743 38,388 (20,355) 0 (20,355) 0 (20,355)
6114 reserve Purchase of Equipment (Envelope Stuffer) 9,797 9,797 7,338 (2,459) 0 (2,459) 2,459 0
6153 reserve Communications & Marketing 94,850 94,850 49,557 (45,293) 0 (45,293) 45,293 0
6154 reserve IT Service-Corporate Printers 6,772 6,772 6,772 0 0 0 0 0
6738 reserve Shared ICT Costs 4,295 4,295 4,295 0 0 0 0 0

Total Reserves 182,299 182,299 114,191 (68,108) 0 (68,108) 47,752 (20,356)

TOTAL 2,129,534 2,130,534 1,829,835 (300,699) 0 (300,699) 200,175 (100,524)

P
age 46



Appendix C

2017/18 Contributions to Reserves

Net
underspend

£
Comments Planned

£
Unplanned

£

 Leader of the Council

Corporate Priorities (364,300

£220k has been allocated towards the development of the West Cumbria Credit Union, in line with the
council’s priority of Tackling Inequalities. £66k has been paid in 2017/18 and the remaining £154k will be
paid over the next three years

153,600

A one-off budget of £451k was allocated in 17/18 for the council’s priority of Tackling Inequalities.
£240k has been allocated or paid during 2017/18.
£210k remains unallocated with a report due to go to Executive in June 2018, to seek approval for
proposed use of the remaining budget.
No budget is currently available in 18/19 meaning a contribution to reserve is required to ensure
resources remain available to deliver the proposed schemes.

210,700

Self Build Custom
Build (27,976)

Annual new burdens funding will be received until 19/20 to take account of additional resource required
to comply with the statutory requirements of new self and custom build housing regulations.
The funding received in 17/18 is unringfenced and has been committed funding additional officers that
have now been appointed.
Although the funding was notified in March 17, during 17/18 work was focused on producing a plan for
the funding and then creating the additional posts. This combined with an initially unsuccessful
recruitment process meant these officers were not appointed until late in the year, leaving some of the
grant unspent.
The remaining grant will be carried forward to fully fund these posts for a period of two years.

27,980

Economic
Regeneration (6,967)

The budget of £30k agreed to support examining the potential use of alternative delivery models for the
delivery of major schemes was not required in 17/18.
Some of this was reallocated in year. It is proposed that the remaining budget is reallocated to fund the
18/19 resident survey. This is expected to cost £12k however only £6k has been earmarked as part of
the Communications & Marketing annual budget.

6,000

Total Leader of the Council 153,600 244,680

P
age 47



Appendix C

Economic Growth

Other Land and
Buildings (34,255)

A one-off budget of £30k was approved as part of the 17/18 budget to contribute to repair works at
Cockermouth Market Place.
Discussions were undertaken with the County Council in 17/18, but a final agreement was not reached
until early 18/19.
An invoice of £45k has now been received for Allerdales contribution to the scheme, which requires this
budget to be contributed to a reserves.

30,000

Shop Front
Improvements (19,916)

A one-off budget of £50k was allocated to shop front facelifts in Maryport and Wigton.
Completion of this scheme was delayed due to adverse weather conditions.
The budget is fully committed and will be paid out in early 18/19 following final sign off.
If the carry forward is not approved this could be met from the 18/19 one-off budget of £50k, but this
would reduce the grants that could be awarded during 18/19.

20,487

Tenanted
properties (28,310)

The £9k repairs budget has not been spent in 17/18 and is allocated to the cost of repairing damage
caused to Adams Road units by previous tenants,
Slippage in acquiring quotes has delayed this work being undertaken in 17/18.
There is a budget of £9k available in 18/19 but repair works are expected to cost £12k and this would
leave no remaining repairs budget for the rest of 18/19

9,200

Total Economic Growth 0 59,687

 Corporate Resources

Multi Storey Car
Park Maintenance (51,843

an annual contribution to reserves has been included within the budget to create a maintenance reserve
for the MSCP 25,000

Works to the MSCP (provision of cash counting facility and removing domes in specific areas) can only
be undertaken following completion of remedial works, which are taking longer than had been
anticipated.
The maintenance costs for 18/19 are currently unknown, pending a survey which is to be undertaken
once the remedial works are complete. As these costs remain unknown the 18/19 budget has been set
aside to cover the potential cost of those works and cannot be allocated to the works that have been
delayed from 17/18.

26,800

Total Corporate Resources 25,000 26,800

2017/18 Contributions to Reserves

Net
underspend

£
Comments Planned

£
Unplanned

£

P
age 48



Appendix C

Housing, Health & Wellbeing

Major Incident
Response (30,914)

The Councils stock of flood sacks has been purchased from a one-off budget. To meet the accrual
accounting requirements a charge to general fund is only recognised when stock is used. The budget
will therefore be carried forward as a reserve to ensure the budget is available to off-set the charge
made when flood sacks are issued.

30,914

Homelessness (22,087)

The available budget is due to additional grants being received. One of these grants was to support the
upgrading of the authority's IT system to enable reporting of data on statutory homelessness (to comply
with the Homelessness Reduction Act requirements).
This system will costs £9k in 18/19 when there is no budget available and no additional funding is
expected. It is therefor proposed that this additional income be carried forward to cover these costs.

10,000

Total Housing, Health & Wellbeing 30,914 10,000

Locality & Environmental Quality

Environmental
Initiatives (12,177)

The request comprises:
 - An underspend of £5k relates to a contract to develop a HLF application for Workington Hall Park that
was not complete in 17/18, due to delays in the contractor completing the work.
 - £6k to finalise the permanent exhibition at the Siddick Bird Hide. A contract is in place but has required
greater officer input than had been anticipated at the outset and is now expected to complete in quarter1
of 18/19.
If these costs are to be covered by the 18/19 budget it will reduce the amount available to develop any
further schemes.
If the carry forward is not approved this could be met from the 18/19 budget, but this would reduce the
budget available to develop any further schemes.

11,195

Total Locality & Environmental Quality 0 11,195

2017/18 Contributions to Reserves

Net
underspend

£
Comments Planned

£
Unplanned

£

P
age 49



Appendix C

 Governance & People Resources
Elections (40,369) Annual contribution of £35k per year to offset the cost of Allerdale Borough elections 35,000

Legal Services (59,764)

An underspend has resulted from the engagement of a temporary resource within the legal team,
reducing the need for additional professional services to undertake property purchase work.
A need for £36k of this underspend has been identified as being required to be reallocated in support of
the mandatory digitisation and transfer of Land Charges data to HM Land Registry as part of their
national, legislative changes. Some budget is already available from the corporate transformation
reserve and from additional new burdens income but the remaining £36k shortfall is requested as a carry
forward. This was approved in principle by the Procurement and Commissioning Board.

36,546

£20k was identified in the 17/18 budget for external legal advice related to the introduction of GDPR
(e.g. contract amendments and data sharing agreements), the Lillyhall land transactions and creating the
SIIF loans fund.
This work is ongoing and the funds are still required in  18/19 to continue this work.

20,000

Allerdale Options (14,163)

Unspent funds from the Salary Sacrifice Scheme are allocated to supporting further employee
engagement events.
This money is allocated by the employee engagement group who will be developing a programme during
18/19 to ensure this is utilised.

14,163

Electoral
Registration (15,437)

Additional grant income received to support Individual Electoral Registration (IER) has not been used, as
all costs have been contained with the approved budget.
Carrying this forward would allow the purchase of a canvasser application (app) and tablets as part of
the transfer to a new electoral management system. This will allow the canvass process to be conducted
more efficiently in future years with less reliance on paper forms and fewer staff resources required.

9,000

Total Governance & People Resources 35,000 79,708

2017/18 Contributions to Reserves

Net
underspend

£
Comments Planned

£
Unplanned

£

P
age 50



Appendix C

Tourism & Culture

Museums (25,566)

A one-off budget was approved for site investigation works and off-site storage for the collection at
Keswick Museum and Art Gallery following water ingress to the collection storage room.
Initial investigation works have taken longer than anticipated due to the unavailability of staff as a result
of other priorities within the service.
Further intrusive investigations are now required and will take place in 18/19.
There is no available budget in 18/19 for either the works or storage

25,000

AONB (15,338)

Higher Level Stewardship Grant received from the Rural Payments Agency. This grant needs to be
carried forward to facilitate the financing of AONB projects currently being developed. 5,490

Income from the sale of a tractor is to be contributed to  reserves to cover the cost of leasing a van for
the AONB over a number of years.
There is no annual budget available for this and the order is already in place for the vehicle which will be
delivered in 18/19.

9,850

Tourism Incentive (22,788)

The unspent budget is allocated to pay for consultants carrying out pre-planning work for the Coastal
Path (included within the approved capital scheme).
The appointment was delayed during 17/18 due to difficulties associated within the procurement
process. This has now been resolved and the appointment has now been made.
No budget is currently available in 18/19 meaning a contribution to reserve is required to ensure
resources remain available to deliver the proposed schemes.

22,500

Arts Development (8,034)

The request comprises:
 - £4.5k for play equipment which was commissioned in January 2018. The lead in time for this
equipment was longer than expected and was not delivered until April 2018.
The 18/19 budget currently includes an unallocated amount of £5k, however if the carry forward is not
approved it would mean there is no budget available for any further projects
 - £3.2k for pitch design on the former sports centre site which was delayed due to demolition works not
being complete as anticipated. There is no budget available for this work in 18/19 meaning if the carry
forward is not approved the work would not go ahead.

7,700

High Level
Stewardship (9,680)

Income received in relation to Higher Level Stewardship has been allocated as financing for the
Harrington Reservoir Project as part of the approved 2018/19 capital budget. This income will be
contributed to a reserve to ensure resources remain available to deliver the approved scheme.

9,680

Total Tourism & Culture 9,680 70,540

2017/18 Contributions to Reserves

Net
underspend

£
Comments Planned

£
Unplanned

£

P
age 51



Appendix C

Transformation

Benefits (93,735.00)

Additional grant income of £51,771 was received in March 2018 to compensate the Authority for
additional costs incurred in relation to the transition to Universal Credit.
Allocating and carrying £35k of this grant forward would allow:
 - £5k to cover the shortfall in the grant provided for fraud reduction work in18/19.
- £30k to allow new ways of working to be phased in. This is required to meet the recurring reduction in
benefits administration grant. Failure to maintain the necessary staffing level whilst change management
goes ahead will mean potential longer delays for customers, increased complaints, appeals and
overpayments.

35,000

ARCUS system (117,423.00)
This budget is required to fulfil contractual commitments in relation to the ARCUS system.
The remaining budget is due to payments being made in stages, with the final payment not expected
until April 2019

117,423

Total Transformation 0 152,423

Total     254,194 655,033

Taxation and non-specific grant income
Planned contribution agreed as part of the 2017/18 revised budget 360,000
Appropriation of additional business rates income to earmarked reserve 200,000

Total Taxation and non-specific grant income 360,000 200,000

Total Contributions to Earmarked Reserves     614,194 855,033

Total Contributions to Earmarked Reserves     1,469,227

2017/18 Contributions to Reserves

Net
underspend

£
Comments Planned

£
Unplanned

£

P
age 52



Appendix D

Movement in Earmarked Reserved 2017/18

Reserves Balance at
1.4.16

Transfer
between
Reseves

Release to GF
Balances

Planned Contr
to

Unplanned
Contr to

Year end
Release from

Current
Balance

Anticipated
Spend in
2018/19

Anticipated
Spend in
2019/20
onwards

contingency

Leader of the Council
Local Development Framework (50,742) 0 0 0 0 0 (50,742) 50,742 0 0
Planning Policy (52,454) 0 0 0 0 26,329 (26,125) 26,125 0 0
Financial Planning & Economic Growth (155,210) 0 3,709 0 0 145,501 (6,000) 6,000 0 0
Health & Well-being Group (731) (1,000) 0 0 0 1,289 (442) 442 0 0
Corporate Transformation (379,058) 67,960 0 0 0 227,833 (83,265) 83,265 0 0
Website Upgrade 0 (25,000) 0 0 0 25,000 0 0 0
Corporate Priorities - Credit Union 0 0 0 (153,600) 0 0 (153,600) 60,000 93,600 0
Corporate Priorities - Tackling Inequality 0 0 0 0 (210,700) 0 (210,700) 78,500 132,200 0
Self Build Custom Build Project 0 0 0 0 (27,980) 0 (27,980) 16,311 11,669 0
Residents Survey 0 0 0 0 (6,000) 0 (6,000) 6,000 0 0

(638,195) 41,960 3,709 (153,600) (244,680) 425,952 (564,854) 327,385 237,469 0

Economic Growth
Enterprise Coaches (WISE) (33,263) 0 33,263 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Town Centres (20,000) 0 0 0 0 20,000 0 0 0 0
Town Centre Management (400) 0 0 0 0 400 0 0 0 0
Disposal of ABC Sites (8,427) 0 1,487 0 0 6,940 0 0 0 0
Building Control - Service Improvement (14,795) 0 0 0 0 14,795 0 0 0 0
Shop Front Schemes (4,881) 0 0 0 (20,487) 4,881 (20,487) 20,487 0 0
Corporate Priorities (32,825) 0 5,690 0 0 14,039 (13,096) 13,096 0 0
MSCP Maintenance Fund (47,756) 0 0 0 0 47,756 0 0 0 0
Planning Service Delivery Improvements (50,746) 0 0 0 0 50,746 0 0 0 0
Tenanted Property Repairs 0 0 0 0 (9,200) 0 (9,200) 9,200 0 0
Festivals & Community Events (17,915) 7,000 0 0 0 2,000 (8,915) 8,915 0 0
Repair Works Cockermouth Market Place 0 0 0 0 (30,000) 0 (30,000) 30,000 0 0

(231,008) 7,000 40,440 0 (59,687) 161,557 (81,698) 81,698 0 0

P
age 53



Appendix D

Corporate Resources
Planned Maintenance - Buildings (2,000) 0 0 0 0 2,000 0 0 0 0
Allerdale House - Internal Works (10,130) 0 0 0 0 10,130 0 0 0 0
Car Park Markings (5,000) 0 0 0 0 5,000 0 0 0 0
Contractual Disputes 0 (150,000) 0 0 0 150,000 0 0 0 0
Pension Enrolement Scheme (150,000) 150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue Financing for Capital Programme (237,531) (6,366) 6,690 (9,680) 0 230,841 (16,046) 16,046 0 0
Section 31 NNDR (226,582) 0 0 0 0 226,582 0 0 0 0
Footway Lighting Scheme (70,998) 0 0 0 0 7,607 (63,391) 15,000 48,391 0
Risk Management/Insurance (90,928) 0 0 0 0 10,930 (79,998) 29,210 50,788 0
New Lighting Columns (1,834) 0 1,834 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Financial System Developments (42,952) 0 0 0 0 13,891 (29,061) 29,061 0 0
New Lighting Columns (2) 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
MSCP Utilities & Maintenance fund 0 0 0 (25,000) (26,800) 0 (51,800) 51,800 0 0

(837,957) (6,366) 8,526 (34,680) (26,800) 656,981 (240,296) 141,117 99,179 0

Movement in Earmarked Reserved 2017/18

Reserves Balance at
1.4.16

Transfer
between
Reseves

Release to GF
Balances

Planned Contr
to

Unplanned
Contr to

Year end
Release from

Current
Balance

Anticipated
Spend in
2018/19

Anticipated
Spend in
2019/20
onwards

contingency

P
age 54



Appendix D

Housing, Health & Well-being
Housing Strategic Function (835) 0 4 0 0 831 0 0 0 0
Homelessness (1,383) 0 0 0 (10,000) 1,382 (10,001) 10,001 0 0
Community Housing Fund (762,272) 0 0 0 0 27,766 (734,506) 734,506 0 0
Major Incident Response (73,177) 0 0 (30,914) 0 5,000 (99,091) 74,851 24,240 0
GP Accommodation Scheme (8,760) 0 1,131 0 0 7,629 0 0 0 0
Water Quality Signage (10,690) 0 4,040 0 0 6,650 0 0 0

(857,117) 0 5,175 (30,914) (10,000) 49,258 (843,598) 819,358 24,240 0

Locality & Environmental Quality
Weekly Collection Support Scheme (125,594) 112,374 0 0 0 13,220 0 0 0 0
Leisure Activities (22,650) 0 0 0 0 17,800 (4,850) 4,850 0 0
Environmental Initiatives 0 0 0 0 (11,195) 0 (11,195) 11,195 0 0
Parks & Grounds Maintenance (5,000) 0 0 0 0 5,000 0 0 0 0
Parks Development (1,000) 0 0 0 0 1,000 0 0 0 0
Car Park - Signage (19,000) 0 0 0 0 8,728 (10,272) 10,272 0 0
Bereavement Services - system upgrade (10,446) 0 0 0 0 3,810 (6,636) 6,636 0 0
High Level Stewardship (6,366) 6,366 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Major Contract Procurement 0 (141,910) 0 0 0 141,909 (1) 0 1 0

(190,056) (23,170) 0 0 (11,195) 191,467 (32,954) 32,953 1 0

Governance & People Resources
Provision for Elections (35,000) 0 0 (35,000) 0 0 (70,000) 0 70,000 0
Legal Counsel (22,029) (45,462) 0 0 0 0 (67,491) 35,000 32,491 0
Member Training (9,000) 0 0 0 0 9,000 0 0 0 0
Individual Electoral Registration 0 0 0 0 (9,000) 0 (9,000) 9,000 0 0
Young People/Apprentices (16,088) 0 4,439 0 0 11,649 0 0 0 0
Corporate Adverts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Allerdale Options (6,745) 1,000 0 0 (14,162) 3,873 (16,034) 16,034 0 0
Advertising vacancies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
External Legal Services (465,887) 0 0 0 0 465,887 0 0 0 0
AIP - Solicitors costs (45,462) 45,462 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Land Registry Digitisation 0 (20,424) 0 0 0 7,682 (12,742) 12,742 0 0
Licensing Service Re-design (16,100) 0 0 0 0 13,897 (2,203) 2,203 0 0
Community Safety (50,951) 0 0 0 0 0 (50,951) 50,951 0 0
Community Safety (Governance) (7,900) 0 0 0 0 7,900 0 0 0 0
Transfer of Land Charges Data 0 0 0 0 (36,545) 0 (36,545) 36,545 0 0
Legal advice 0 0 0 0 (20,000) 0 (20,000) 20,000 0 0

(675,162) (19,424) 4,439 (35,000) (79,707) 519,888 (284,966) 182,475 102,491 0

Movement in Earmarked Reserved 2017/18

Reserves Balance at
1.4.16

Transfer
between
Reseves

Release to GF
Balances

Planned Contr
to

Unplanned
Contr to

Year end
Release from

Current
Balance

Anticipated
Spend in
2018/19

Anticipated
Spend in
2019/20
onwards

contingency

P
age 55



Appendix D

Toruism & Culture Portfolio
Solway AONB (29,098) 0 0 0 (15,340) 0 (44,438) 44,438 0 0
Tourism Incentive 0 0 0 0 (22,500) 0 (22,500) 22,500 0 0
Sports Development 0 0 0 0 (7,700) 0 (7,700) 7,700 0 0
Museums (540) 0 540 0 (25,000) 0 (25,000) 25,000 0 0

(29,638) 0 540 0 (70,540) 0 (99,638) 99,638 0 0

Transformation
Anti-Poverty (1,849) 0 1,849 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shared ICT Costs (4,295) 0 0 0 0 4,295 0 0 0 0
Shared Revenues & Benefits (58,743) 0 20,354 0 0 38,388 (1) 0 1 0
New Technology Fund (7,842) 0 1 0 0 7,841 0 0 0 0
Lease of Equipment (9,797) 0 0 0 0 7,338 (2,459) 2,459 0 0
Corporate printers (30,000) 0 0 0 0 6,772 (23,228) 5,000 18,228 0
Fraud Reduction 0 0 0 0 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 5,000 0 0
Communications & Marketing (94,850) 0 0 0 0 49,557 (45,293) 45,293 0 0
HB New Ways of Working 0 0 0 0 (30,000) 0 (30,000) 30,000 0 0
ARCUS System 0 0 0 0 (117,423) 0 (117,423) 117,423 0 0

(207,376) 0 22,204 0 (152,423) 114,191 (223,404) 205,175 18,229 0

Other
AIP Loan Note Interest (552,800) 0 0 0 0 552,800 0 0 0 0
AIP Loan Notes (222,000) 0 0 0 0 109,328 (112,672) 0 0 112,672
Business Rate Income (621,000) 0 0 (200,000) 0 0 (821,000) 0 0 821,000
Section 31 NNDR 0 0 0 (360,000) 0 0 (360,000) 0 0 360,000
NNDR Rate Pool Volatility Fund (101,714) 0 0 0 0 0 (101,714) 0 0 101,714
Emergency Planning - Flooding (28,260) 0 0 0 0 0 (28,260) 0 0 28,260
Hugh Barbour Bequest (8,661) 0 0 0 0 0 (8,661) 0 0 8,661

(1,534,435) 0 0 (560,000) 0 662,128 (1,432,307) 0 0 1,432,307

TOTAL (5,200,944) 0 85,033 (814,194) (655,032) 2,781,422 (3,803,715) 1,889,799 481,609 1,432,307

Movement in Earmarked Reserved 2017/18

Reserves Balance at
1.4.16

Transfer
between
Reseves

Release to GF
Balances

Planned Contr
to

Unplanned
Contr to

Year end
Release from

Current
Balance

Anticipated
Spend in
2018/19

Anticipated
Spend in
2019/20
onwards

contingency

P
age 56



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 13 June 2018

Council Plan  
Quarter 4 Performance Report 2017/18

The Reason for the Decision The Council’s performance at the end of 
Quarter 4 2017/18 as measured by 
projects/activities and KPIs set out in the 
Corporate Business Plan 2017/18 

Summary of options considered N/A

Recommendations That Members note the information contained 
within the report and take action to improve 
performance where necessary. 

Financial /  Resource Implications None arising directly from the report

Legal / Governance Implications None arising directly from the report

Community Safety Implications None arising directly from the report

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

None arising directly from the report

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

Equality impacts are considered in the 
development of individual projects and 
programmes

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

This is a performance report on delivery against 
the Council’s priorities as set out in the Council 
Plan 2015-19 and Corporate Business Plan 
2017/18

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Cllr Alan Smith

Lead Officer Alex FitzGerald, Policy Manager (Corporate, 
Performance and Information)
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk
01900 702719

Page 57

Agenda Item 8

mailto:alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk


Report Implications (Please delete where applicable).

Community Safety Y Employment (external to the Council) Y

Financial N Employment (internal) Y

Legal N Partnership Y

Social Inclusion Y Asset Management Y

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers ………………………… …………………………………………………

1.0 Introduction

1.1 In line with the Council’s Performance Management Framework the Executive and 
Overview and Scrutiny receive quarterly performance reports based on the Council 
Plan.  

1.2 The Quarter 4 corporate performance report for 2017/18 covers the period from 1 
January to 31 March 2018.  

1.3 The report is based on key projects/activities and key performance indicators set 
out in the Corporate Business Plan 2017/18.  

1.4 The Corporate Business Plan 2017/18 is built around our Council Plan.  For each 
Council Plan priority theme the Business Plan details key service improvement 
projects/actions as well as activity to deliver key strategies and plans over the next 
year, and the key performance indicators that we will use to track our performance.  
In addition the Business Plan sets out how our significant day to day ‘business as 
usual’ service activity contributes to achieving our objectives.  

2.0 Council Performance

2.1 The full quarterly performance report is attached as Appendix 1 and contains:

 A short overview of our Quarter 4 performance 

 Visual summaries for each of our five priorities

 Appendices containing more detail on performance against our priorities, key 
performance indicators, corporate risks and outcome measures

2.2 In line with the Council’s Integrated Assurance and Risk Strategy, Heads of Service 
review the risk and issues log on a monthly basis or as required, and report to SMT on 
existing key risks (those which score 9 and above), risks that have changed 
significantly and any new and emerging risks/issues, with key risks being reported to 

Page 58



the Executive on a quarterly basis. The current Key Risks Report can be found in 
Appendix C to the Quarterly Performance Report.

3.0 Customer Satisfaction and Service

3.1 Projects within the priority area of ‘Creating a sustainable business’ in the Council 
Plan relate specifically to customer satisfaction and service.  

4.0 Services Delivered as Locally as Possible

4.1 This is an area covered within the Council Plan under the ‘Creating a sustainable 
business’ priority.

5.0 Finance/Resource Implications

5.1 There are no additional resource requirements arising from this report.

6.0 Legal Implications and Risks

6.1 There are no additional legal implications arising from this report.  Any risks will be 
managed through the Integrated Assurance and Risk Strategy and corporate 
methodology.

7.0 Recommendations

7.1 That Members note the information contained within the report and take action to 
improve performance where necessary.

Alex FitzGerald
Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information)

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



1

Quarterly corporate performance report
Summary of Quarter 4 performance: 1 January – 31 March 2018

This is a summary of the fourth quarter corporate performance report for 2017/18 covering the 
period from 1 January to 31 March 2018.  It contains:

 A short overview of our Quarter 4 performance 

 Summaries for each of our five priorities

 Appendices containing detail on performance against our priorities, key performance 
indicators and corporate risks

Performance overview

This report contains Quarter 4 progress updates on the 71 projects/activities and the 52 key 
performance indicators set out in the Business Plan 2017/18. The outcome measures1 set out in 
the Business Plan will be reported in Quarters 2 and 4 as data for many of these measures is 
only produced once a year.  The report also updates members on key corporate risk and activity 
to mitigate those.

Summary of Quarter 4 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 71 0 13 30 28 -
KPIs (Q4 value) 52 6 8 33 - 5
KPIs (2017/18 annual value) 52 7 10 32 - 3

Projects/activities (Appendix A)
We have now completed 28 of our 71 planned key projects/activities.  21 projects/activities 
were completed in Q4 – these include:

 The Council has housed 4 refugee families (17 people) and will continue to support relevant 
agencies through the Cumbria Refugee Group reflecting our pledge with Cumbria County Council. 
(2.6)

 The Big Allerdale Switch has been run three times in 2017/18 as planned and has received positive 
feedback as well as savings residents’ money on their energy bills. (2.7a)

 Target number of Spring Cleans delivered as well as a coastal clean-up carried with volunteers. 
The Environmental Hit Squad apprenticeship team was established and deployed to improve 

1 These are mainly wider contextual measures, such as health or employment figures published by other 
organisations.  Our work will have an influence on these, but they are not directly related to our service provision 
and they will therefore not be attributed with a RAG rating.

Page 61



2

environmental quality and provide NVQ level 2 qualification in Cleaning and Environmental 
Support Services.  New apprentices will be appointed in 2018/19. (3.6)

 7 empty property grants have been completed in this quarter resulting in the target for the year 
being achieved. The team have also approved a further 3 empty homes grants and 4 more 
complete applicants have been received and are ready for approval next financial year. 
The empty homes grant waiting list currently has 21 empty home owners on. (3.8a)

 A total of 19 festivals and events across Allerdale have been supported this year with grant funding, 
the target for the year was to support 15 events. (4.6)

 A landlord consultation event was held on 15 March. The event was to inform local landlords of 
the council's Housing Enforcement and Civil Penalty Policy. The event was very well attended 
with over 50 landlords present. Positive feedback was received from the event which was fed 
into the policies. (4.10a)

 The Private Sector Housing Enforcement Policy and Private Sector Civil Penalties Policy were 
approved by Executive in April. (4.10c)

 2017/18 Housing Grants and Assistance programme delivery - the team have dealt with 370 
grant cases (more than double the previous year), approved 212 grants and spent and 
committed £1,815,758. (4.11)

 Training for all Third Tier managers in contract management and setting performance 
management targets held in March 2018 completing the planned programme of activity for 
2017/18. (5.5)

 An overarching Information Governance Policy was approved by SMT in April along with a series 
of other updated policies that sit alongside this including the Data Protection Policy, Freedom of 
Information Policy and Retention Policy.  The Council now has a suite of information governance 
policies in line with new data protection legislation. (5.11)

We are on track with 30 of our 71 key projects/activities.  Highlights this quarter include:

 All SIIF funding has been allocated for this financial year, £70,000 has not been paid out yet 
for 1 project due to notification of planning application being postponed to May Development 
Panel. Job creation will be ongoing into the new financial year and perhaps beyond. (1.1)

 The refreshed Tackling Poverty Strategy was approved by Executive in February.  Work has 
been undertaken to identify a series of projects that may be funded from the Priorities Fund to 
support the Strategy action plan and a report setting out these proposals will be considered by 
Executive in June.  Other actions are being taken forward through the newly established 
Delivery Board.  (2.3) 

 Arup were commissioned to prepare the 'Maryport Delivery Plan' to help guide future 
regeneration and intervention aimed at ensuring Maryport can fulfil its role at a key residential, 
employment and visitor centre. Stakeholder engagement and consultation took place in late 
2017 and the final report was received in March 2018. The report will be considered by 
Executive on 16 May 2018. (3.1)

 Usage across Workington and Cockermouth leisure centres and the Wave have surpassed their 
targets this quarter. For Workington in particular, the focus user groups (young people, over 60's 
and those who can access the concessionary rates), the figures for this quarter have had the 
biggest difference between their target values and their actuals when compared to the rest of the 
year. (4.4)

 Self-service channels continue to grow with over 6000 myAllerdale reports logged over 2017/18 - 
and over the last six months an average of over 600 reports each month were logged 
demonstrating the increased take up of this channel to report issues by our customers. (5.2)

Page 62



3

There were 13 amber projects/activities:  

 The Local Plan (part 2) is scheduled to go for final approval, prior to submission to the planning 
inspectorate, in September 2018. Slippage in the programme is mainly due to the capacity of 
external stakeholders to provide input in a timely manner and to the required standard. This has 
required the need to commission additional evidence base. (1.5)

 Business rates retention - there have been no further announcements or briefings since the 
Local Government Finance Settlement (with the main points being summarised in the Quarter 
3 comments).   A full timetable for the implementation of changes to business rates retention 
and details of the proposed scheme have not yet been finalised so the impact remains 
unknown. We maintain a watching brief to ensure the Council is able to understand and plan 
for this move. (1.7)

 Heritage Strategy - A meeting with the Heritage Lottery Fund is due to be arranged to identify 
funding streams that can then be presented to heritage stakeholders with a view to forming a 
Heritage Forum for Allerdale. (3.4)

 Work to Helena Thompson Museum - Further to the Star Chamber meeting and discussions 
with the Portfolio Holder the outcome was not to proceed with the proposed extension. The 
Portfolio Holder suggested that the existing budget (£180K) could be used to improve the 
existing facilities. The proposed works will need to be agreed with the current operating group. 
New lease arrangements still need to be finalised with the current group and it is proposed that 
this should be completed before any improvements are carried out. (3.5)

 Environmental enforcement – the team are now implementing a more intelligence lead 
approach to all environmental crime, for example targeted visits to local businesses when fly-
tipping of a specific nature occurs. A targeted litter campaign has been planned to start on 
23/5/18. (3.7) 

 Long term empty property - the options appraisal report has been developed however future 
use of the site will be determined in line with the Maryport Delivery Plan in 18/19. (3.8b)

 Public toilets programme - a last minute request from the operators of the Keswick toilets was 
received asking for time to assess the possibility of taking on the Grange toilets. The toilets will 
remain open until a final decision is reached, but continued use of the toilets will affect the self-
sufficiency savings expected this year. Toilets in Maryport offered to the Town Council, but they 
have declined the offer.   Discussions taking place with Aspatria town Council re toilet facilities in 
the town. Lodore toilets still to be sold as previously agreed. (3.9)

 Work to develop the Physical Activity Pathway – Pilot for new programme still to be started. 
Workington GP's have agreed to be part of the project. Awaiting admin process for digitally 
referring patients. Hope to be up and running in pilot areas by July 2018. Existing referral 
program is continuing to be delivered by GLL with around 200 people accessing the 12 
week scheme. (4.5) 

 Workington Hall Parklands - Still on track to submit the Stage 1 application in August 2018. 
Groundwork are currently consulting stakeholders and the community on the types of 
developments and improvements that the Park would benefit from through this project. A project 
plan is being developed. (4.7c)

 Implementation of new Land and Property System is slightly behind schedule.  Ongoing work to 
develop process maps and associated forms, templates etc. across all areas, requiring 
significant team resource. Arcus have been working through the process maps and providing 
feedback on the work completed. Encountered delays with engaging a third party to undertake 
data extraction from legacy systems. Issues with LLPG upload to new system, currently being 
worked on. (5.4)

Page 63



4

 Implementation of a Coaching and Leadership Programme has now been defined as a key 
action for the Organisational Development Strategy. This has been defined as a Business Plan 
objective for 18/19 for completion by September 2018. Interviews have taken place with all third 
tier managers to gain insight into the training needs at Allerdale and as a result a Training 
Strategy has been agreed for 18/19 which will deliver a more focused approach to developing 
our people. (5.15)

 Succession and Workforce planning is a key element of the overall Organisational Development 
Strategy. This has been defined as a Business Plan objective for 18/19 for completion by 
September 2018. Interviews have taken place with all third tier managers to gain insight into 
workforce planning at Allerdale. (5.17)

There were no red project/activities.

Key performance indicators (annual outturn) (Appendix B)

32 of our 52 KPIs are green for 2017/18.  

There are 10 KPIs rated as amber at the end of 2017/18, these are:
 Leisure centre usage at Keswick slightly below target for the year and lower than the previous year 

by around 4000.  Part of this can be put down to 7 days of closure (4 during the holidays) and some 
in part due to the dry start to the summer holidays in 2017.  (KCS03a)

 98% of programmed private water supplies sampled against a target of 100% (KHH09)

 The number of website unique page views per day is below target for the year and has continued to 
fluctuate around the target in recent months. It has been good to see that the website it increasingly 
being used to perform tasks with many the most number of customers ever registering with our 
myAllerdale service in March than ever before and up to 50% of all direct debit applications being 
performed via the online form. This process is hoped to improve further with the new site. (KCTC07)

 Average number of ICT calls logged per day slightly off target for the year. (KCTC10a)

 Average no. of ICT support calls outstanding per day shows off target performance although 
improved performance between Q3 and Q4.  (KCTC10b) 

 Number working hours lost per month due to systems down time was 2 hours for the year (KCTC12)

 NNDR collection rate slightly below annual target. Late receipt of one payment of £141,000 (not 
allocated until 3/4/18) pushed collection rate slightly below target. (KCTC13)

 Council Tax collection rate slightly below target for the year - debt raised by 0.5% during the year 
(£282,000) so pushing collection rate slightly under target. Also delays in receipt of Universal Credit 
starting to make it difficult for some debtors to keep Council Tax payments up to date. (KCTC14)

 95% of invoices paid in 30 days over the year against a target of 98%.  98% target achieved in period 
12 and 97% in periods 10 & 11, which resulted in 97% therefore, falling short of the overall Q4 target.  
This was due to a combination of a high number of Purchase Orders not being placed for goods and 
services and invoices being sent directly to the departments. (KFS01)

 % of household waste sent for recycling estimated to be below target for the year (KCS01)

There are 7 KPIs rated as red, these are:
 86.0% of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses paid within 14 days.  The Q4 value was 92.0% 

(getting closer to the target of 98.0%) and this KPI has shown an improving trend throughout the 
year. Work is on-going to improve processes and processing times. (KFS02)

Page 64



5

 Target of 100 affordable homes facilitated by the Council not achieved – total for the year was 
75 units.  The number of affordable homes delivered are determined by the developer output as 
opposed to being a performance related target as such.  The Council has limited control of the 
delivery rates (KHH01)

 Only 38% of Safe and Warm Grants approved within 10 weeks of initial enquiry.   The team 
have processed 66 Safe and Warm enquiries this financial year which has involved a site 
visit to each case. 25 cases are still in the system awaiting approval next financial year.  As 
these are new grants they are taking longer to process than initially anticipated.  The safe 
and warm grants approved have been major renovations to people's homes and obtaining 
quotes has been difficult. The clients the team have been assisting are often vulnerable and 
obtaining the required paperwork has been difficult. The team have reviewed the target 
timeframe for processing these grants for 2018/19 to better reflect what is possible.  (KHH05)

 78% of Disabled Facilities Grants approved within 10 weeks from receipt of referral. Of the 42 grants 
approved in Q4 12 were outside of the 10 week approval time. The team have reviewed the target for 
processing these grants for 2018/19 to better reflect what is feasible.  (KHH07)

 Only 77% of Discretionary Disability Grants approved within 10 weeks of first inspection date - out of 
the 18 grants approved in Q4, 5 were approved outside of the 10 weeks of first inspection date. The 
team have reviewed the target for processing these grants for 2018/19 to better reflect what is 
feasible.  (KHH08) 

 Average speed of answer on calls to 03031231702 at 60 seconds against a target of 45 seconds. 
However, this KPI has shown consistent improvement this year and achieved target for Q4 
(KCTC04)

 Average no. of working days lost to sickness absence per employee per annum was 9.37 at the end 
of 2017/18 against a target of 7 days.  The cumulative figure for 17/18 has been impacted by long 
term sickness. A large scale review has been undertaken of the absence profile for the year which 
has resulted in more in depth data being provided to Senior Management on a monthly basis to help 
reduce and manage sickness absence across the organisation. (KPR01)

Key Corporate Risks (Appendix C)

All strategic risks identified are contained within the Corporate Risk and Issues Log. Key risks 
(those which score 9 and above) are included in this report.  There are currently 13 key risks which 
have been reviewed by the Senior Management Team. The current Key Risks Report setting out 
mitigating actions can be found in Appendix C to this report.

Outcome measures (Appendix D) 

The outcome measures set out in the Business Plan are reported in Quarters 2 and 4 as data for 
many of these measures is only produced once a year. These are mainly wider contextual 
measures, such as health or employment figures published by other organisations.  Our work will 
have an influence on these, but they are not directly related to our service provision and so they are 
not attributed with a RAG rating.  Monitoring these outcome measures will give us an indication as 
to whether our efforts are contributing to the improvement in outcomes for our communities that we 
are aiming to achieve under the priority themes that we have set out in the Council Plan.

The information in this report relates to activity to the end of March 2018.

Page 65



6

Strengthening our economy summary 
We aim to create a strong, sustainable and vibrant local economy and create jobs

Summary of Quarter 4 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 7 0 2 3 2 -
KPIs (Q4 value) 10 1 1 6 - 2
KPIs (2017/18 annual value) 10 1 0 9 - -

Projects/activities (Appendix A)

Green highlights
 All SIIF funding has been allocated for this financial year, £70,000 has not been paid out yet for 1 

project due to notification of planning application being postponed to May Development Panel. Job 
creation will be ongoing into the new financial year and perhaps beyond. (1.1)

Amber – areas to watch
 The Local Plan (part 2) is scheduled to go for final approval, prior to submission to the planning 

inspectorate, in September 2018. Slippage in the programme is mainly due to the capacity of 
external stakeholders to provide input in a timely manner and to the required standard. This has 
required the need to commission additional evidence base. (1.5)

 There have been no further announcements or briefings since the Local Government Finance 
Settlement (with the main points being summarised in the Quarter 3 comments).   A full timetable 
for the implementation of changes to business rates retention and details of the proposed scheme 
have not yet been finalised so the impact remains unknown. We maintain a watching brief to 
ensure the Council is able to understand and plan for this move. (1.7)

Key performance indicators (annual outturn) (Appendix B)

Green highlights
 60 jobs created through effective management of external funding (KEG01a)

 95% of minor planning applications determined within statutory period (KDS02)

 502 housing completions against a target of 344 (KDS04)

 99.36% of land charges searches carried out within 10 working days against a target of 95% 
(KGVO01)

Red – areas of concern
 86.0% of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses paid within 14 days.  The Q4 value was 92.0% 

(getting close to the target of 98.0%) and this KPI has shown an improving trend throughout the 
year. Work is on-going to improve processes and processing times. (KFS02)

Page 66



7

Tackling inequality summary 
We aim to reduce poverty and support people facing financial difficulties

Summary of Quarter 4 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 12 0 0 8 4 -
KPIs (Q4 value) 8 1 0 7 - 0
KPIs (2017/18 annual value) 8 2 0 6 - 0

Projects/activities (Appendix A)

Blue highlights – completed this quarter
 The Council has housed 4 refugee families (17 people) and will continue to support relevant 

agencies through the Cumbria Refugee Group reflecting our pledge with Cumbria County Council. 
(2.6)

 The Winter Big Allerdale Switch was launched on 5 December 2017 and the auction took place on 
13 February 2018. 218 households registered to switch. 72% of registrants were able to save with 
an average saving of £166.79.  Positive feedback has been received by Big Allerdale Switch 
registrants including: "Good service, been with the scheme a few years now and always saved on 
standard tariff, hope it keeps going", "This is the 2nd time I have used this council suggested switch 
method and have been very happy both times" and" The switch was very easy, communication 
was very good & I saved a lot of money making the switch. I have recommended the move to 
friends & family." (2.7a)

Green highlights
 The refreshed Tackling Poverty Strategy was approved by Executive in February.  Work has been 

undertaken to identify a series of projects that may be funded from the Priorities Fund to support 
the Strategy action plan and a report setting out these proposals will be considered by Executive in 
June.  Other actions are being taken forward through the newly established Delivery Board.  (2.3) 

 Supporting Community Land Trusts - Applications have been made to the Community Housing 
Fund to support affordable housing provision from Keswick Community Housing Trust and Keswick 
Youth Centre (KYC). The Community Led Affordable Housing Officer (CLAHO) has been 
working with the Above Derwent community group to assist in the delivery of affordable housing 
schemes in Portinscale. Further dialogue has taken place with Borrowdale Parish Council and 
Caldbeck Parish Council on potential community led housing schemes.  (2.4a)

Key performance indicators (annual outturn) (Appendix B)

Green highlights

 Target of 20 days processing time for processing Housing Benefit new claims exceeded – 15 
days achieved over the year (KCTC01a)

 Target of 20 days processing time for processing Council Tax new claims achieved (KCTC01b)

 8 day target exceeded for processing Housing Benefit/Council Tax change of circumstances – 6 
days achieved over the year (KCTC02)

 100% of homeless decisions made within guideline 33 days (KHH04)

Page 67



8

Red – areas of concern

 Target of 100 affordable homes facilitated by the Council not achieved – total for the year was 
75 units.  The number of affordable homes delivered are determined by the developer output as 
opposed to being a performance related target as such.  The Council has limited control of the 
delivery rates (KHH01)

 Only 38% of Safe and Warm Grants approved within 10 weeks of initial enquiry.   The team 
have processed 66 Safe and Warm enquiries this financial year which has involved a site 
visit to each case. 25 cases are still in the system awaiting approval next financial year.  As 
these are new grants they are taking longer to process than initially anticipated.  The safe 
and warm grants approved have been major renovations to people's homes and obtaining 
quotes has been difficult. The clients the team have been assisting are often vulnerable and 
obtaining the required paperwork has been difficult. The team have reviewed the target 
timeframe for processing these grants for 2018/19 to better reflect what is possible.  (KHH05)

Page 68



9

Enhancing our towns summary
We aim to create thriving towns that are attractive and welcoming and retain 

their distinctive characters

Summary of Quarter 4 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 11 0 5 3 3 -
KPIs (Q4 value) 2 0 0 2 - 0
KPIs (2017/18 annual value) 2 0 0 2 - 0

Projects/activities (Appendix A)

Blue highlights – completed this quarter
 Target number of Spring Cleans delivered as well as a coastal clean-up carried with volunteers. The 

Environmental Hit Squad apprenticeship team was established and deployed to improve 
environmental quality and provide NVQ level 2 qualification in Cleaning and Environmental Support 
Services.  New apprentices will be appointed in 2018/19. (3.6)

 7 empty property grants have been completed in this quarter resulting in the target for the year being 
achieved. The team have also approved a further 3 empty homes grants and 4 more complete 
applicants have been received and are ready for approval next financial year. The empty homes 
grant waiting list currently has 21 empty home owners on. (3.8a)

Green highlights
 Arup were commissioned to prepare the 'Maryport Delivery Plan' to help guide future regeneration 

and intervention aimed at ensuring Maryport can fulfil its role at a key residential, employment and 
visitor centre. Stakeholder engagement and consultation took place in late 2017 and the final report 
was received in March 2018. The report will be considered by Executive on 16 May 2018. (3.1)

 Tourism offer - Branding document signed off and being used to underpin the creation of all 
destination promotion materials. The new Allerdale visitor website will be complete by the end of 
April 2018 as will the supporting map /brochure. (3.2)

Amber – areas to watch
 Heritage Strategy - A meeting with the Heritage Lottery Fund is due to be arranged to identify 

funding streams that can then be presented to heritage stakeholders with a view to forming a 
Heritage Forum for Allerdale. (3.4)

 Work to Helena Thompson Museum - Further to the Star Chamber meeting and discussions with 
the Portfolio Holder the outcome was not to proceed with the proposed extension. The Portfolio 
Holder suggested that the existing budget (£180K) could be used to improve the existing facilities. 
The proposed works will need to be agreed with the current operating group. New lease 
arrangements still need to be finalised with the current group and it is proposed that this should be 
completed before any improvements are carried out. (3.5)

 Environmental enforcement – the team are now implementing a more intelligence lead approach to 
all environmental crime, for example targeted visits to local businesses when fly-tipping of a 
specific nature occurs. A targeted litter campaign has been planned to start on 23/5/18. (3.7) 

 Long term empty property - the options appraisal report has been developed however future use of 
the site will be determined in line with the Maryport Delivery Plan in 18/19. (3.8b)

 Public toilets programme - a last minute request from the operators of the Keswick toilets was 
received asking for time to assess the possibility of taking on the Grange toilets. The toilets will 

Page 69



10

remain open until a final decision is reached, but continued use of the toilets will affect the self - 
sufficiency savings expected this year. Toilets in Maryport offered to the Town Council, but they have 
declined the offer.   Discussions taking place with Aspatria Town Council re toilets in the town. 
Lodore toilets still to be sold as previously agreed. (3.9)

Key performance indicators (annual outturn) (Appendix B)

Green highlights 

 100% of public conveniences cleaned within the Service Level Agreement (KFS03) 

 10 empty property grants completed in 2017/18 - 7 empty homes grants completed in Q4. The team 
have also approved a further 3 empty homes grants and 4 more complete applications have been 
received and are ready for approval next financial year. (KHH06)

Page 70



11

Improving health and wellbeing summary
We aim to help people live healthy and active lives and reduce health inequalities

Summary of Quarter 4 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 18 0 2 5 11 -
KPIs (Q4 value) 11 3 1 7 - 0
KPIs (2017/18 annual value) 11 2 2 7 - 0

Projects/activities (Appendix A)

Blue – completed this quarter
 A total of 19 festivals and events across Allerdale have been supported this year with grant funding, 

the target for the year was to support 15 events. (4.6)

 A landlord consultation event was held on 15th March. The event was to inform local landlords of the 
council's Housing Enforcement and Civil Penalty Policy. The event was very well attended with over 
50 landlords present. Positive feedback was received from the event which has been fed into the 
policies. (4.10a)

 The Private Sector Housing Enforcement Policy and Private Sector Civil Penalties Policy were 
approved by Executive in April. (4.10c)

 2017/18 Housing Grants and Assistance programme delivery - the team have dealt with 370 grant 
cases (more than double the previous year), approved 212 grants and spent and committed 
£1,815,758. (4.11)

Green highlights
 Usage across Workington and Cockermouth leisure centres and the Wave have surpassed their 

targets this quarter. For Workington in particular, the focus user groups (young people, over 60's and 
those who can access the concessionary rates), the figures for this quarter have had the biggest 
difference between their target values and their actuals when compared to the rest of the year. (4.4)

 A further 2 events were supported in Q4 as part of the national BBC 'Get Creative; Festival 2018. A 
total of 19 projects have been supported this year.(4.6)

 25 educational events delivered across Harrington and Siddick Nature Reserves with schools and 
Lakes College. Other events have included parks and beach clean ups, Small Blue Butterfly site 
working groups and weekly volunteer days at Harrington and Siddick.(4.8)

Amber – areas to watch
 Work to develop the Physical Activity Pathway – Pilot for new programme still to be started. 

Workington GP's have agreed to be part of the project. Awaiting admin process for digitally referring 
patients. Hope to be up and running in pilot areas by July 2018. Existing referral program is 
continuing to be delivered by GLL with around 200 people accessing the 12 week scheme. (4.5) 

 Workington Hall Parklands - Still on track to submit the Stage 1 application in August 2018. 
Groundwork are currently consulting stakeholders and the community on the types of developments 
and improvements that the Park would benefit from through this project. A project plan is being 
developed. (4.7c)

Page 71



12

Key performance indicators (annual outturn) (Appendix B)

Green highlights
 Above target leisure centre usage at Cockermouth, Workington and The Wave (KCS03b-d)

 Workington Leisure Centre usage by target groups above target (KCS04a, KCS04b, KCS04c)

 100% food safety inspections (Category A-B) undertaken (KHH10)

Amber – areas to watch
 Leisure centre usage at Keswick slightly below target for the year and lower than the previous year 

by around 4000.  Part of this can be put down to 7 days of closure (4 during the holidays) and some 
in part due to the dry start to the summer holidays in 2017.  (KCS03a)

 98% of programmed private water supplies sampled against a target of 100% (KHH09)

Red – areas of concern
 78% of Disabled Facilities Grants approved within 10 weeks from receipt of referral. Of the 42 grants 

approved in Q4 12 were outside of the 10 week approval time. The team have reviewed the target for 
processing these grants for 2018/19 to better reflect what is feasible.  (KHH07)

 Only 77% of Discretionary Disability Grants approved within 10 weeks of first inspection date - out of 
the 18 grants approved in Q4, 5 were approved outside of the 10 weeks of first inspection date. The 
team have reviewed the target for processing these grants for 2018/19 to better reflect what is 
feasible.  (KHH08) 

Page 72



13

Creating a sustainable business summary
We aim develop a commercially focused organization committed to delivering high 

quality, sustainable services to the people, communities and businesses of Allerdale

Summary of Quarter 4 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 23 0 4 11 8 -
KPIs (Q4 value) 21 1 6 11 - 3
KPIs (2017/18 annual value) 21 2 8 8 - 3

Projects/activities (Appendix A)

Blue highlights – completed this quarter
 Training for all Third Tier managers in contract management and setting performance management 

targets held in March 2018. (5.5)

 An overarching Information Governance Policy was approved by SMT in April along with a series of 
other updated policies that sit alongside this including the Data Protection Policy, Freedom of 
Information Policy and Retention Policy.  The Council now has a suite of information governance 
policies in line with new data protection legislation.   (5.11)

 Trade waste service continues to grow with 15 new customers being added to the service in Q4 
(5.7b)

Green highlights
 Self-service channels continue to grow with over 6000 myAllerdale reports logged over 2017/18 - and 

over the last six months an average of over 600 reports each month were logged demonstrating the 
increased take up of this channel to report issues by our customers. (5.2)

 Procurement – continuing to identify savings once existing contracts expire for corporate goods and 
services. In the last quarter this has included corporate print savings (5.3)

Amber – areas to watch
 Implementation of new Land and Property System is slightly behind schedule.  Ongoing work to 

develop process maps and associated forms, templates etc. across all areas, requiring significant 
team resource. Arcus have been working through the process maps and providing feedback on the 
work completed. Encountered delays with engaging a third party to undertake data extraction from 
legacy systems. Issues with LLPG upload to new system, currently being worked on. (5.4)

 Implementation of a Coaching and Leadership Programme has now been defined as a key action for 
the Organisational Development Strategy. This has been defined as a Business Plan objective for 
18/19 for completion by September 2018. Interviews have taken place with all third tier managers to 
gain insight into the training needs at Allerdale and as a result a Training Strategy has been agreed 
for 18/19 which will deliver a more focused approach to developing our people. (5.15)

 Succession and Workforce planning is a key element of the overall Organisational Development 
Strategy. This has been defined as a Business Plan objective for 18/19 for completion by September 
2018. Interviews have taken place with all third tier managers to gain insight into workforce planning 
at Allerdale. (5.17)

Page 73



14

Key performance indicators (annual outturn) (Appendix B)

Green highlights
 6170 new customer registrations to myAllerdale (KCTC03)

 Abandoned calls rate target of 7% achieved (KCTC05)

 Customer satisfaction score at 90% for the year (KCTC06)

 92% of ICT support calls resolved within SLA against a target of 85% (KCTC11)

 Estimated figures for residual household waste suggest an improved position on 2016/17 (KCS02)

Amber – areas to watch
 The number of website unique page views per day is below target for the year and has continued to 

fluctuate around the target in recent months. It has been good to see that the website it increasingly 
being used to perform tasks with many the most number of customers ever registering with our 
myAllerdale service in March than ever before and up to 50% of all direct debit applications being 
performed via the online form. This process is hoped to improve further with the new site. (KCTC07)

 Average number of ICT calls logged per day slightly off target for the year. (KCTC10a)

 Average no. of ICT support calls outstanding per day shows off target performance although 
improved performance between Q3 and Q4.  (KCTC10b) 

 Number working hours lost per month due to systems down time was 2 hours for the year (KCTC12)

 NNDR collection rate slightly below annual target. Late receipt of one payment of £141,000 (not 
allocated until 3/4/18) pushed collection rate slightly below target. (KCTC13)

 Council Tax collection rate slightly below target for the year - debt raised by 0.5% during the year 
(£282,000) so pushing collection rate slightly under target. Also delays in receipt of Universal Credit 
starting to make it difficult for some debtors to keep Council Tax payments up to date. (KCTC14)

 95% of invoices paid in 30 days over the year against a target of 98%.  98% target achieved in period 
12 and 97% in periods 10 & 11, which resulted in 97% therefore, falling short of the overall Q4 target.  
This was due to a combination of a high number of Purchase Orders not being placed for goods and 
services and invoices being sent directly to the departments. (KFS01)

 % of household waste sent for recycling estimated to be below target for the year (KCS01)

Red – areas of concern
 Average speed of answer on calls to 03031231702 at 60 seconds against a target of 45 seconds. 

However, this KPI has shown consistent improvement this year and achieved target for Q4 
(KCTC04)

 Average no. of working days lost to sickness absence per employee per annum was 9.37 at the end 
of 2017/18 against a target of 7 days.  The cumulative figure for 17/18 has been impacted by long 
term sickness. A large scale review has been undertaken of the absence profile for the year which 
has resulted in more in depth data being provided to Senior Management on a monthly basis to help 
reduce and manage sickness absence across the organisation. (KPR01)

Page 74



15

Definitions

Projects/activities Key Performance Indicators

Blue Complete

Green
Everything is on target / satisfactory 
progress is being made / no action 
required

On, or better than, target

Amber
There are concerns over achieving 
deadlines or outputs  / there are issues to 
rectify, but plans are in place to get the 
project back on track

Worse than target (up to 10% variance) 
- some action may be required to 
improve performance

Red
There are significant  concerns over 
achieving outputs / there is serious 
slippage in the timetable / there are major 
issues to rectify

Significantly worse than target (>10% 
variance) – action required to improve 
performance

Appendices
A. Key projects/activities
B. Key performance measures
C. Key corporate risks
D. Outcome measures

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



Appendix A - Business Plan 2017/18 Q4 report - activities/projects

Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact

Head of 
Service

Portfolio
2017/18

Q3 update
Q3 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q4 update

Q4 RAG 
status

We aim to create a strong, sustainable and vibrant local economy and create jobs
1.1 Adopt a Developer Contributions 

Supplementary Planning Document to ensure 
that new developments include the 
infrastructure improvements necessary to 
support the development

31/05/2017 Reduces the 
potential cost to 
the Council by 
requiring 
developers to 
contribute to the 
provision of 
infrastructure

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Economic Growth

Blue Blue

1.2 Implement the ‘strengthening general 
conditions’ growth actions within the 
Business Growth Strategy including supporting 
local entrepreneurial initiatives and reviewing 
the lifecycle of businesses

31/03/2020 Increased 
opportunity to 
generate 
additional 
business rates 
income

Nik Hardy Economic Growth Social Impact Investment Fund (SIIF) grant scheme - there is a waiting list of projects 
for this financial year.  Those not funded will be carried over in to the new financial year 
- subject to continued funding from Sellafield.

Green

All SIIF funding has been allocated for this financial year, £70,000 has not been paid out yet 
for 1 project due to notification of planning application being postponed to May Development 
Panel. Job creation will be ongoing into the new financial year and perhaps beyond.

Green

1.3 Implement the Strengthening Manufacturing 
offer actions within the Business Growth 
Strategy such as developing a manufacturing 
forum and large employer engagement

31/03/2020 Increased 
opportunity to 
generate 
additional 
business rates 
income  

Nik Hardy Economic Growth Successful large Employers Forum held in November to discuss the Skills agenda, and 
a presentation from Great Exhibition of the North 2018, highlighting the opportunities for 
northern businesses to showcase their strengths and innovative activity.

Green

The next large Employers forum will be held in the new financial year.

Green

1.4 Work with the Homes and Communities Agency 
to facilitate the development of new sites for 
housing, this may include partnering 
arrangements with developers. Specific targets 
will be set for individual sites once identified. 

31/03/2018 Contribution to 
increased NHB 
and Council Tax

Kevin 
Kerrigan/ 
Nik Hardy/ 
Graeme 
Wilson

Economic Growth/ 
Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

HCA have appointed external agents to carry-out viability assessment on Westfield 
Drive, Moorclose, and Former Southfield School sites.  A site visit by the agents was 
carried out on 14.12.2017   CCC still to confirm that they are ok to proceed to next 
stage with former Southfield site.  HCA to follow this up.  ABC awaiting outcome of 
application.

Green

Discussions with Homes England in relation to support for development programmes 
continue and we are expecting confirmation on the full programme soon. Most recently,  we 
have received the due diligence reports that HE commissioned for the former Moorclose 
Leisure Centre and Westfield Drive site. Blue

1.5 Undertake formal consultations and submission 
to Secretary of State for examination prior to 
adoption of Local Plan Part 2 in July 2018 to 
identify sites for development and support 
growth in the borough 

31/07/2018 Contribution to 
increased NHB, 
Council Tax and 
Business Rates

Nik Hardy Economic Growth Consultation on additional sites commenced in November as planned. Overall timetable 
has slipped due to delays in completing and sign off from external bodies on evidence 
base studies plus reduced resource in the planning policy team.

Amber

The Local plan (part 2) is scheduled to go for final approval, prior to submission to the 
planning inspectorate, in September 2018.Slippage in the programme is mainly due to the 
capacity of external stakeholders to provide input in a timely manner and to the required 
standard. This has required the need to commission additional evidence base. Amber

1.6 Deliver actions to develop new market and 
affordable housing as set out in the Housing 
Strategy including:
 Supporting developers to provide a range of 
options to deliver affordable housing through 
HCA schemes
 Maximising housing opportunities to drive 
economic growth
 Developing partnerships to deliver new 
housing
Using Council assets to deliver housing

31/03/2021 Contribution to 
increased NHB 
and Council Tax

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

1.  System established to support and encourage developers in the provision of 
affordable homes. Meetings with relevant developers being arranged. 2. There have 
been no requests made by RPs for funding from the HCA to develop affordable housing 
in the area. Although some providers have held informal discussions about potential 
purchase of affordable units on new developments such as Strawberry Grange and 
Lowca Lane SBCB. 3.  The Council awarded grant funding of £9483.34 through the 
capital funding to Castles and Coasts to retain properties in social housing following a 
request to dispose.  This property was allocated to a Paramedic who has joined the 
service from Poland and is working for Cumbria Ambulance service. he is now living in 
West Cumbria with his partner.  The Harrington Road, GP trainee accommodation 
project continues to be a popular project with the scheme being fully utilised and 
positive messages from trainee GPs in respect of living and working in the area.

Green

During this quarter discussions with developers regarding the purchase of affordable housing 
at Strawberry Grange and Lowca Lane SBCB have continued, one developer has been 
referred to Homes England for advice on funding for SME.

Green

Strengthening our economy

P
age 77



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact

Head of 
Service

Portfolio
2017/18

Q3 update
Q3 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q4 update

Q4 RAG 
status

1.7 Undertake an assessment of the impact of 
100% retention of business rates so that the 
Council can fully understand and plan for the 
implications in our Medium Term Financial Plan

31/03/2019 Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

An updated timetable for the implementation of 100% retention of business rates and 
the proposed scheme has not been finalised so the impact remains unknown.  

It was announced as part of the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement that 
local business rates retention would move from 50% to 75% in 2020/21

On 1 September the government published an ‘Invitation to Local Authorities in 
England to pilot 100% Business Rates Retention in 2018/19. This pilot will further 
inform options for the future design of local government finance, in particular the 
technical aspects of the design of any national system of business rates retention. This 
will also allow for the testing of issues relating to administration, technical planning, 
accounting, data collection and IT systems.
Cumbria will not be a Pilot in 2018/19 but we will maintain a watching brief to ensure 
the Council is able to understand and plan for this move.

Amber

There have been no further announcements or briefings since the Local Government 
Finance Settlement (with the main points being summarised in the Quarter 3 comments. 

A full timetable for the implementation of changes to business rates retention and details of 
the proposed scheme have not yet been finalised so the impact remains 
unknown. We maintain a watching brief to ensure the Council is able to understand and plan 
for this move.

Amber

We aim to reduce poverty and support people facing financial difficulties
2.1 Deliver the increasing wider employment 

actions within the Business Growth Strategy to 
gain a better understanding of the issues facing 
an under-represented group in Allerdale’s 
workforce and activity to encourage more 
women into business.

31/03/2020 Longer term 
reduction in 
expenditure 
supporting 
vulnerable groups

Nik Hardy Economic Growth Research undertaken to identify the nature of this issue. Research identified weakness 
in the initial research base data. There is a growing number of women returners seeking 
work, but more research would be necessary to identify the causes - childcare issues 
etc. or more stringent UC requirements versus actual intention to return to work. Green

No further work planned on this subject for this financial year

Green

2.2 Work with partners to ensure that there is a 
network of support for young people to 
enhance their employability (Business Growth 
Strategy – Strengthening Manufacturing priority 
actions) 

31/03/2018 Longer term 
reduction in 
expenditure 
supporting 
vulnerable groups

Nik Hardy Economic Growth Activity being undertaken by the BECBC socio-economic group and CoNE skills group. 
BECBC SE group is bidding for funding to run activity.

Green

Activity being undertaken by the BECBC socio-economic group and CoNE skills group. SIIF 
funding has been provided to enable harder to reach young people to enter into work.

Green

2.3 Deliver the Tackling Poverty Strategy action 
plan including:
 Supporting schemes such as the Foodbank to 
help those in greatest need
 Working in partnership with the LEP to deliver 
significant EU funded programmes to create 
pathways into employment
 Supporting advice and advocacy services 
 Building financial capability and resilience 
through debt advice and other support

31/12/2020 Paul Wood / 
Nik Hardy

Economic Growth/ 
Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing / 
Transformation

The Tackling Poverty Task and Finish group (TFG) reported to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in December 2017 with a series of recommendations including that the draft 
Tackling Poverty Strategy be sent to Executive for consideration and adoption - 
Executive are due to consider the Scrutiny report and recommendations in February 
2018.

Green

The refreshed Tackling Poverty Strategy was approved by Executive in February.  Work has 
been undertaken to identify a series of projects that may be funded from the Priorities Fund 
to support the Strategy action plan and a report setting out these proposals will be 
considered by Executive in June.  Other actions are being taken forward through the newly 
established Delivery Board. 

Green

2.4 Deliver the objective to develop affordable 
housing in the Housing Strategy including:

31/03/2021 Increased 
contribution to 
NHB and Council 
Tax

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Tackling inequality

P
age 78



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact

Head of 
Service

Portfolio
2017/18

Q3 update
Q3 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q4 update

Q4 RAG 
status

2.4a Empowering communities to deliver 
affordable housing through Community Land 
Trusts

2/3 new 
CLT's 
established 
by 2021

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

1.  1 revenue grant application has been received as approved. (Revenue funding 
ADCLT). 1 capital grant application received in December 17.  outcome to be 
confirmed.                                                           2. A Countywide Community Housing 
Fund event took place in 19th October 2017.  Community Groups across Cumbria 
attending and was supported by Guest Speakers from North East, and other local 
providers.3.  There is interest from other community groups in the Borrowdale/Keswick 
areas who are looking at options to set up community groups however, discussions are  
still in their infancy and are being progressed,  this part of the process is often 
challenging and can take time for groups to establish themselves.  4.  Overall to date 
the number of applications that were forecast to be received but have not been 
submitted during this quarter is disappointing.

Amber

Applications for the Community Housing Fund received in March: 1. Keswick Community 
Housing Trust have applied for funding to purchase the Methodist Church, obtain the 
necessary plans / drawings and planning permission and the cost of demolition. The 
intention is to deliver 3 x 3 bed dwellings and 1x2 bed dwelling for local occupancy 2. 
Keswick Youth Centre (KYC) have applied for funding to undertake site surveys and the 
necessary costs associated with obtaining planning permission. KYC are working in 
partnership with Eden Housing Association to deliver 5/6 affordable housing units for young 
people as well as a youth centre. The grant contracts have been written and signed and the 
funding will be awarded in April 2018. The Community Led Affordable Housing Officer 
(CLAHO) has been working with the Above Derwent community group to assist in the 
delivery of affordable housing schemes in Portinscale. Planning permission has now been 
granted for a site at Pow Wood and a further application for the Community Housing Fund 
will be received in April. The group are also interested in working with the Council to bring a 
long term empty / second home back into use. The CLAHO has been liaising with the 
owner and they have agreed to work with the council. Access has been gained into the 
property and valuations will take place over the coming months. Ongoing dialogue with 
Borrowdale Parish Council have taken place. The Parish Council are willing to take a lead 
on a community lead initiative. The group have identified a site and discussions are 
underway with the local Minister and a Housing Association. Meetings have taken place with 
Caldbeck Parish Council and the CLAHO has meet with a local land owner to establish if 
they would be interested in offering land for an affordable housing development. The 
meeting was very positive and 2 potential sites have been offered for consideration. Further 
meetings with the land owner Parish Clerk and the LDNP to take place over the coming 
months. The group is in the early stages but positive discussions are taking place. Further 
clarification from Homes England on future funding for Community Led Housing has yet to 
be published.

Green

2.4b Supporting developers to provide a range of 
options to deliver affordable housing through 
HCA schemes

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

System established to support and encourage developers in the provision of affordable 
homes. Meetings with relevant developers being arranged.

Green

Officers continue to build successful relationships with developers, RP's and Homes 
England in order to deliver affordable housing through Homes England schemes

Green

2.4c Proactive work with RPs to evaluate 
allocations for housing to ensure there is a 
fair and transparent approach to support 
those in greatest housing need

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

The team have set up a process in which to look at allocations and how they are being 
managed using Cumbria Choice.

Green

A pilot project has been established from 1st March until 31st July 2018, on 'difficult to let' 
properties in Allerdale which will be reported on in 18/19.

Green

2.4d Maximising affordable housing provision 
through early discussion/negotiation with 
planning officers and developers

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Held discussions with a number of developers to discuss affordable housing on sites  
including; Story Homes re Cockermouth phase 2, Bill Dobbie, Cockermouth fire station, 
Nick Bailey Genesis re Brigham and Wigton sites,  Lowca Lane Seaton re SBCB 
development.  The Council have also appointed J&W architects to look at the 
development options of a G&T site.

Green

Discussions held with colleagues regarding a number of developments including, McCarthy 
Stone at the former hospital site, SCBC development at Seaton, and we have also 
responded to 8 planning consultations during this quarter. Plus responded to a further appeal 
for Greta Garden site in Keswick.

Green

2.5 Deliver the actions in the Housing Strategy to 
reduce or prevent homelessness including:
Undertaking early preventative work
Reviewing temporary homeless 
accommodation to ensure resource matches 
demand
Exploring options to provide a full emergency 
accommodation service for single non-priority 
homeless

31/03/2021 Contribute 
towards reduction 
in temporary 
accommodation 
costs

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Work ongoing to implement a new ICT system that will facilitate the provisions and 
implementation of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2018. Tender scoping documents 
being prepared to send out to potential bidders.

Green

Bidding successful and the Locata system procured for the implementation of the new HRA 
Legislation. Full training undertaken by all team members with a 'go live' date of the 1st April 
2018. 

Green

2.6 Engage with Cumbria County Council to 
facilitate Syrian refugee resettlement in 
Allerdale

Resettle 5 
families by 
31/3/2018

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Still attending meetings and representing Allerdale at County level

Green

Earlier in the year the target was amended to housing 2 families (10 people) per year for 3 
years to fully reflect the pledge with Cumbria County Council. The council subsequently 
housed 4 families (17 people) and will continue to support relevant agencies through the 
Cumbria Refugee Group.

Blue

2.7 Undertake a programme of activity to 
address fuel poverty and affordable warmth 
including:

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

2.7a Running the Big Allerdale Switch three times 
a year and targeting towards our deprived 
neighbourhoods

Feb, May 
Oct 2017

Income generated 
from no. of 
registrants that 
switch 

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

The Autumn Big Allerdale Switch auction took place on 10th October 2017. A total of 
228 people registered to switch pre auction, 51 (22%) accepted the offer and switched 
energy company. The average saving was £213.00.  People can now register to switch 
post auction and 62 people registered. 15 (24%) accepted the offer and switched 
energy company. The average saving was £385.58. The Winter Big Allerdale 
Switch was launched on 5th December 2017 and the auction takes place on 13th 
February 2018. Throughout December the team attended some Winter ready events to 
promote the scheme and leaflet drops are undertaken when time allows. The Big 
Allerdale Switch has also been promoted in the new grant literature produced by the 
team. 

Green

The Winter Big Allerdale Switch was launched on 5th December 2017 and the auction took 
place on 13th February 2018. 218 households registered to switch. 72% of registrants were 
able to save with an average saving of £166.79. The final report for the Auction has not yet 
been received by iChoosr.  Positive feedback has been received by Big allerdale Switch 
registrants including "Good service, been with the scheme a few years now and always 
saved on standard tariff, hope it keeps going", "This is the 2nd time I have used this council 
suggested switch method and have been very happy both times" and" The switch was very 
easy, communication was very good & I saved a lot of money making the switch. I have 
recommended the move to friends & family"

Blue

P
age 79



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact

Head of 
Service

Portfolio
2017/18

Q3 update
Q3 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q4 update

Q4 RAG 
status

2.7b Introduction of Discretionary Safe and Warm 
Grants

From April 
2017

Income generated 
from ABC fee 
(10%)

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Since the introduction of the Safe and Warm grants in July, the team have responded 
to 49 enquiries. 2 Safe and Warm grants have been completed, 9 have been approved 
and there are 26 in the pipeline. The grants are being well received and are helping 
those vulnerable residents improve the condition of their homes. A review of the policy 
is taking place and in light of the value of works required in homes so far, the grant 
maximum is being increased from £15,000 to £20,000. 

Blue Blue

2.8 Target Council apprenticeships to people 
from priority areas to provide targeted 
employment opportunities 

31/12/2017 Brendan 
Carlin

Governance & 
People Resources

The levy money is now being utilised to fund a number of apprenticeships for existing 
employees. These include; Project Management, AAT and Building Surveying. 
 Conversations continue with managers to identify areas where we can utilise the levy. 
Where external recruitment to apprenticeships is taking place, we will endeavour to 
target people from priority areas within the Borough. Opportunities for apprenticeships 
will be discussed as part of the third tier manager meetings. 

Green

The levy money continues to be utilised to fund a number of apprenticeships for existing 
employees. These include; Project Management, AAT and Building Surveying. 
 Conversations continue with managers to identify areas where we can utilise the levy. 
Where external recruitment to apprenticeships is taking place, we will endeavour to target 
people from priority areas within the Borough. This is reviewed annually along side the 
apprenticeship budget based on the priorities for the coming year.

Blue

We aim to create thriving towns that are attractive and welcoming, and retain their distinctive characters
3.1 Implement the ‘Improve the vitality of 

Allerdale’s local centres’ actions within the 
Business Growth Strategy including the 
development of a Maryport Regeneration Plan 

31/03/2018 Increased 
opportunity to 
generate 
additional 
business rates 
income and 

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Economic Growth The wider consultation exercise for the Maryport Regeneration Plan has now been 
completed and the Council has been presented with a final draft.

Green

Arup were commissioned to prepare the 'Maryport Delivery Plan' to help guide  future 
regeneration and intervention aimed at ensuring Maryport can fulfil its role at a key 
residential, employment and visitor centre. Stakeholder engagement and consultation took 
place in late 2017 and the final report was received in March 2018. The report will be 
considered by Executive on 16 May 2018. 

Green

3.2 Implement the new approach to the tourism 
offer actions within the Business Growth Plan 
including branding activity, website 
development, and promotional materials

31/03/2020 Increased 
opportunity to 
generate 
additional 
business rates 
income 

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Tourism and 
Culture

Tourism Strategy launched at business breakfast briefing on 13/12/17.  Visitor website 
tendered, quotes due 19/01/18. Allerdale leaflet and map revised after business 
feedback. Brand architecture agreed - Allerdale logo supported by partner logos of the 
two World Heritage Sites and Solway Coast AONB. Strategic partnership agreed with 
Cumbria Tourism to enable Allerdale business to target more customers by featuring on 
both the new Allerdale visitor website and CT's website.

Green

Branding document signed off and being used to underpin all the creation of destination 
promotion materials. the new Allerdale visitor website will be complete by the end of April 
2018 as will the supporting map /brochure.

Green

3.3 Continue to support the development of coastal 
communities teams and the implementation of 
their economic plans

31/03/2018 Increased 
opportunity to 
generate 
additional 
business rates 
income and 

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Tourism and 
Culture

Silloth and Maryport CCT teams met in October 2017 to plan their bid documents. Both 
teams are scheduled to meet again in February 2018 to finalise their priority projects.

Green

The Town Centre Manager is working with the Maryport Area Coastal Community Team 
(CCT) in reviewing their Economic Plan to ensure it has good fit with local and regional 
strategies in readiness for a stage one Expressions of Interest, deadline of 30 April 2018. 
The Town Centre Manager is working with Silloth CCT to see if they wish to make a bid. 

Green

3.4 Implementing the actions contained within the 
Heritage Strategy to develop a Heritage Forum 
for Allerdale, examine the impact of heritage on 
council services and conduct an impact 
assessment for heritage in Allerdale

31/03/2018 Potential 
reduction in long 
term maintenance 
of heritage assets

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Tourism and 
Culture

A briefing for heritage partners will be organised in February 2018 to establish a 
Heritage Forum to then examine the impact of heritage on council services and conduct 
an impact assessment for heritage in Allerdale.

Green

A meeting with the Heritage Lottery Fund is due to be arranged to identify funding streams 
that can then be presented to heritage stakeholders with a view to forming a Heritage Forum 
for Allerdale.

Amber

3.5 Undertake Capital Development Works to 
Helena Thompson Museum to enhance the 
heritage offer in Workington and make the 
museum more sustainable for the future

31/03/2018 Catherine 
Nicholson

Tourism and 
Culture

Framework agreement with Kier Construction has been identified. Kier have been 
asked for budget costs for the scheme. Budget costs have come in at approx. £350,000 
- 400,000 i.e. more than twice available budget. WHG informed of costs and agreement 
made to move forward by looking for grant funding to allow scheme to progress Amber

Further to the Star Chamber meeting and  discussions with the Portfolio Holder the outcome 
was not to proceed with the proposed extension. The Portfolio Holder suggested that the 
existing budget (£180K) could be used to improve the existing facilities. The proposed works 
will need to be agreed with the current operating group. New lease arrangements still need 
to be finalised with the current group and it is proposed that this should be completed before 
any improvements are carried out. 

Amber

3.6 Deliver a programme of Spring Cleans in our 
local areas with volunteers to improve local 
environmental quality and introduce new ‘Hit 
Squad’ to specifically target hotspots identified 
through local intelligence

8 spring 
cleans by 
Sept 2017
Hit Squad in 
place by 
June 2017

Increased 
investment 
income 

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

A meeting with FCC has been arranged to agree the work plans for the rest of year. The 
intention is ensure all towns & large villages on Allerdale receive a ‘spring/summer’ 
clean and local councillors / parish councils will be asked for suggestions (and or 
assistance). Green

The Environmental Hit Squad apprenticeship team was established and deployed to 
improve environmental quality and provide NVQ level 2 qualification in Cleaning and 
Environmental Support Services.  New apprentices will be appointed in 2018/19.
Target number of Spring Cleans delivered as well as a coastal clean-up carried with 
volunteers. 

Blue

3.7 Undertake a targeted programme of zero 
tolerance environmental enforcement in 
areas identified as  litter, dog fouling or fly 
tipping hotspots

15 targeted 
sessions by 
March 2018

Increased 
investment 
income

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

Plan is to implement a more intelligence lead approach to all environmental crime, for 
example include targeted visits to local businesses when fly-tipping of a specific nature 
occurs.3 targeted campaigns will be run (1 Litter / 1 Dog Fouling / 1 Fly-tipping),  these 
will be intelligence lead and will target specific areas where the problem has been 
identified.

Green

Now implementing a more intelligence lead approach to all environmental crime, for 
example targeted visits to local businesses when fly-tipping of a specific nature occurs. A 
targeted litter campaign has been planned to start on 23/5/18.  

Amber

3.8 Deliver activity as part of the Housing Strategy 
to reduce the number of long term empty 
homes including:

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Enhancing our towns

P
age 80



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact

Head of 
Service

Portfolio
2017/18

Q3 update
Q3 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q4 update

Q4 RAG 
status

3.8a Delivering Empty Property Grants 10 grants in 
2017/18 

Fee Generated 
from ABC fee 
(10%)

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

As part of the National Empty Homes week in October, empty homes grants were 
promoted through social media and a countywide newsletter that was produced. This 
saw an increase in enquiries and the team have now inspected 8 empty homes with a 
view to processing the grant. Due to budget constraints a waiting list has been created. 
this currently has 14 empty home owners on. A total of 14 grants are approved - 11 of 
these are historic cases that for various reasons have taken longer to complete than 
anticipated.  In Q3 2 Empty Homes Grants have been approved and 2 have been 
completed.

Green

7 empty property grants have been completed in this quarter resulting in the target for the 
year being achieved. The team have also approved a further 3 empty homes grants and 4 
more complete applicants have been received and are ready for approval next financial 
year. The empty homes grant waiting list currently has 21 empty home owners on. 

Blue

3.8b Undertake an options appraisal for a long term 
derelict property purchased in Maryport and 
deliver preferred option

31/12/2017 Reduction in 
officer time spent 
dealing with 
environmental 
crime

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Safe access into the property by the building surveyor has been undertaken, inspection 
carried out and  the options appraisal report is due back at the end of January. Future 
use of the site will be determined in line with the Maryport Regeneration Plan. Amber 

The options appraisal report has been developed however future use of the site will be 
determined in line with the Maryport Delivery Plan in 18/19.

Amber

3.9 Continue with a programme of ensuring better 
provision of public toilet facilities through 
upgrading and transferring assets

31/03/2018 Increased short 
term investment 
to reduce 
recurring revenue 
spend

Catherine 
Nicholson

Environmental 
Quality

Borrowdale P.C. were offered the toilets in Grange. The offer included a full 
refurbishment of the block and installation of a pay on entry scheme if required. The 
P.C. rejected the offer. After consultation with Ward member and Portfolio Holder it was 
agreed to take a proposal to AMG to sell both Grange and Lodore on the open market. 
AMG agreed the disposal. P. Knapton to facilitate sale.

Green

A last minute request from the operators of the Keswick toilets was received. They would 
like time to assess the possibility of taking on the Grange toilets. We are currently waiting for 
feedback. The toilets will remain open until a final decision is reached. However continued 
use of the toilets will affect the self-sufficiency savings expected this year. The toilets on 
Irish St. Maryport have been offered to the Town Council on the same basis as Keswick and 
Cockermouth disposals i.e. ABC to facilitate full refurbishment of toilets prior to a transfer. 
The Town Council have declined the  Council's offer. Further work is now required to see if 
any other group may be interested in taking over the facility. Discussions being held with 
Aspatria town council re: public toilets in the town.  Lodore toilets still to be sold as 
previously agreed. 

Amber

3.10 Assist businesses and homeowners within town 
centres with flood resilience measures

31/03/2018 Ensure stability in 
business rate and 
Council Tax 
income  

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Flood resilience measures still ongoing via the PLR flood grants, this is due to close at 
the end of this financial year. Community capital grants schemes available via the 
council. Working with Town and Parish Councils and external agencies in applying 
various flood alleviation works as and when required.

Green

The deadline for closure of the system has now ended leaving just 3 grants top be paid out 
to people still completing their flood resilience works. Finance are in consultation with CCC 
and DCLG for payment of these three once completed

Blue

We aim to help people live healthy and active lives, and reduce health inequalities
4.1 Support the Allerdale Health and Wellbeing 

Forum in addressing health outcomes in 
relation to healthy weight, smoking cessation, 
healthy attitudes towards alcohol, mental 
wellbeing and ageing well 

31/03/2018 Savings in wider 
health economy 
Bringing in 
funding to deliver 
initiatives within 
our communities

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Two third sector representatives joined the Forum from Groundwork and Cumbria 
Youth Alliance. Awaiting information from the alcohol inquiries. Soaked the play 
performed across our District. Slipper exchange scheme started. Development and 
strengthening of dementia action alliance ongoing. Christmas themed 
dementia memory bags provided in libraries. Working with UCLAN around healthy 
coastal communities (development stage).CLAHRC resident advisors being signed up - 
research theme being developed. Supporting development of Healthy Weight 
Declaration. CADAS (Cumbria Alcohol and Drug Advisory Service) delivering part time 
role of Wellbeing Advisor (smoking and alcohol). Allerdale BC ran a winter campaign 
based on recycling, taking a brisk walk in Allerdale and a mocktail stand on offering an 
alcohol free alternative to cocktails. Q4 will focus on development of workplan for the 
wellbeing advisor, action plan for healthy weight declaration, breastfeeding friendly 
scheme roll out and encouraging businesses to sign up to their local DAA and 
promoting various campaigns.

Green

The Forum met once this quarter, it is currently reviewing its membership to ensure 
Intergrated Care Community (ICC) representation as the roles of the current  ICC managers 
change and the inclusion of GLL. Support has been given in the development County Wide 
Healthy Weight Declaration, this has been to Executive who have agreed to signing up to it 
alongside the other Districts and County. It is hoped that other organisations will sign up to 
the declaration during its lifetime. Next steps - Forum to look at delivery of the declaration 
and the development of a systems wide approach at a County and local level. CCC Healthy 
Weight Summit was held at the end of March with a good representation of Allerdale based 
stakeholders present. We have met with CADAS to look at the development of the part time 
role of Wellbeing Advisor (smoking and alcohol). The anticipated Smoke Free Allerdale 
workshop in March did not go ahead although it was an varied agenda low uptake meant a 
decision to defer the event was made. Instead CCC/ABC/CADAS and the Pharmacists 
worked together to promote smoking cessation in Allerdale at Workington Hub. We 
supported the Time to Talk event around mental wellbeing at Moorclose Community Centre. 
Working with our Sports Development Officer and GLL around piloting Exercise on Referral 
ongoing. Positive outcomes are being collected from the slipper exchange scheme. 
Dementia Action Alliances (DAA) continue to be supported with the aim in Q1 to role out 
further DAA in the Solway Plain. Working with Solway and Keswick ICC and CLIC on a 
health and wellbeing workshop for their GP practices to be held in Q1 and repeated for 
Workington GPs at end of Q1. Resident Research as part of CLAHRC completed and next 
steps being developed for Q1.

Blue

4.2 Deliver improvements to leisure facilities 
and open spaces  to encourage active 
participation in physical activity to improve 
health outcomes (Leisure Strategy Action Plan)

31/03/2018 Reduced need to 
fund sport and 
leisure activities. 
Decreased 
expenditure in 
supporting people 
with health related 
illness

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

Work has started on the Flemming Square public realm. 
Raised beds project on Workington Harbour is now complete. 
Supported improvement works at Workington Ellis Ground, Aspatria RUFC, 
Ellenborough RLFC, Workington Cricket Club, these works are now complete. 
Progressing enhancement options with Wigton Baths Trust, funding committed for final 
designs for extension and looking at ways to access district heating. 

Green

Flemming Square project almost complete, lights are installed and work has started on the 
cobbles and the trees will be planted before the end of April. 
Funding given to Wigton Baths to support their design costs for an extension to their 
building. Option agreed and request for planning permission submitted. 
Brief has been sent out for quotes for a sports facility scoping study for Cockermouth. Green

Improving health and wellbeingP
age 81



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact

Head of 
Service

Portfolio
2017/18

Q3 update
Q3 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q4 update

Q4 RAG 
status

4.3 Develop and deliver programmes to promote 
and facilitate access to sport and leisure  
activities focused on areas of greatest health 
inequalities through the final year of the 
Community Sport Activation Fund 

01/07/2018 Reduced need to 
fund sport and 
leisure activities. 
Decreased 
expenditure in 
supporting people 
with health related 
illness

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

Blue Blue

4.4 Work with GLL to develop the leisure offer 
within the Councils leisure facilities, 
increasing usage across all sites, with a focus 
on young people and those at risk of being 
inactive.  

01/07/2018 £20k saving Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

Centres continued to develop new activities, and review programming to try and target 
those who are least active. Club sessions for 0ver 60's are now running at Cockermouth 
as well as Workington and concessionary usage is around a 50% higher than the same 
time last year.  
Workington has the highest Net Promoter Score across all the GLL sites nationally, with 
a score of 71 for December. 

Green

Usage across Workington, Cockermouth and the Wave have surpassed their targets this 
quarter. For Workington in particular, the focus user groups (young people, over 60's and 
those who can access the concessionary rates), the figures for this quarter have had the 
biggest difference between their target values and their actuals when compared to the rest 
of the year. 
Although Keswick still has its highest level of members to date, the usage figures are slightly 
lower than the target for this quarter and across the year as a whole. Awaiting some 
feedback from GLL as to the possible causes for the reduction in swimmers. 

Green

4.5 Working in partnership to deliver new Physical 
Activity Care Pathway (including exercise on 
referral scheme)

200 people 
accessing 
the new 
exercise on 
referral 
scheme by 
March 2018

Decreased 
expenditure in 
supporting people 
with health related 
illness

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

Project has developed and will now be looking to deliver pilot in Workington as well as 
Wigton. Additional funding is required. Sport England grant application has not been 
submitted yet. GLL are developing a training programme for non GLL, community 
deliverers. Amber

Pilot for new programme still to be started. Workington GP's have agreed to be part of the 
project. Awaiting admin process for digitally referring patients. Hope to be up and running in 
pilot areas by July 2018. Existing referral program is continuing to be delivered by GLL with 
around 200 people accessing the 12 week scheme. Amber

4.6 Support festivals and events through grants 
support and direct funding for the following 
events and festivals to enhance the vitality and 
raise the profile of the area and offer cultural 
and sporting events to improve health and 
wellbeing: Lakesman; Reboot; Northbound; 
Festival of Running

15 festivals 
and events 
through grant 
support by 
31/03/2018

Increased 
investment 
income 

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

The fund has supported Keswick Victorian Fayre, Rivers of Light Lantern Parade  and 
the Taste Christmas event in Cockermouth this quarter and awarded grant support to 
West Cumbrian Artistic Network for Town Arts Trail in the spring. In total seventeen 
events have been supported to date.

Green

A further 2 events were supported in Q4 as part of the national BBC 'Get Creative; Festival 
2018. A total of 19 projects have been supported this year. 

Blue

4.7 Undertake a programme of improvements to 
our nature reserves and open spaces to 
encourage access to and enjoyment of open 
spaces and conservation of the natural 
environment:

31/03/2018 Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

4.7a Delivery of Harrington Reservoir Nature 
Reserve restoration project. Funding to be 
sourced by July 2017 

31/03/2018 Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

Tender has been awarded for delivery of the project, due to start at the end of February. 

Green

Funding for the project has been sourced, Council money has been matched with funding 
from external funders including Workington Town Council, Tesco, WREN, Robinrigg. 
Contractors will be on site for 8 weeks starting in the middle of April 2018. Green

4.7b Delivery of Siddick Pond Nature Reserve 
access improvements phase 2

30/09/2018 Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

Reedbed management and nesting raft installation has been completed. Blog set up 
and will run for 3 years. Exhibition is in it's final draft. It will include 5 information 
panels, interactive activities and some external signage.  Green

Project almost complete. Interpretation boards and information displays will be installed by 
the end of May 2018. Prices have been received for the restoration of the sunken seated 
area on the Asda side path, this is being done in partnership with Sustrans. Green

4.7c Submission of a Stage 1 application to HLF for 
a Parks for People grant to improve Workington 
Hall Parklands.

28/02/2018 Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

Groundwork appointed to write application. Submission of stage 1 application is due to 
now be in August 2018 instead of February due to additional work required following 
HLF feedback.  Amber

Still on track to submit the Stage 1 application in August 2018. Groundwork are currently 
consulting stakeholders and the community on the types of developments and 
improvements that the Park would benefit from through this project. A PID is being 
developed.

Amber

4.8 Deliver an environmental educational and 
events programme with schools and 
community groups, raising the profile of key 
environmental sites and open spaces

25 events/ 
education 
days by 
March 2018 

Reduction in 
environmental 
clean-up costs

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

Work ongoing. Nature Partnership Officer continues to work with volunteers from a 
range of organisations and the general public. Delivered 22 education visits through the 
Higher Level Stewardship project. Green

25 educational events delivered across Harrington and Siddick Nature Reserves with 
Schools and Lakes College. Other events have included parks and beach clean ups, Small 
Blue Butterfly site working groups and weekly volunteer days at Harrington and Siddick. Green

4.9 Improve the environmental quality of our 
beaches through delivery of our Beach 
Management Plan and taking part in the 
LovemyBeach campaign.  Through this work 
we intend as a minimum to maintain a bathing 
water classification of “sufficient” at Allonby and 
aim to achieve a classification of “good”.

31/03/2018 Reduction in 
environmental 
clean-up costs

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

We have continued to participate in the Environment Agencies "pollution risk forecast 
system" for both Allonby and Allonby South. We continue to engage and promote the 
"LOVEmyBEACH" campaign to deliver the message to the public and businesses to 
prevent pollution to our bathing waters and the beach environment. We continue to 
work with community services through the delivery of the beach management plan. The 
good news for Allonby is that the bathing water classification for 2017 is now "good". 
This means that the bathing water is generally good quality and is no longer meeting 
the  minimum standards. Moving forward as a team we will continue to work with the 
regional LOVEmyBEACH co-ordinator to promote the campaign and participate in 
community events within Allerdale.

Green

There is a council representative on the “LOVEMyBEACH” board and we continue to work 
with the campaign coordinator, promoting forth coming campaigns including the Call of 
Nature campaign and community events in the area. We continue to work with community 
services through the delivery of the Beach Management Plan following the good bathing 
water classification of Allonby. Moving forward as a team, we will continue to work with the 
regional “LOVEMyBEACH” co-ordinator to promote the campaign and participate in 
community events within Allerdale as we prepare for the upcoming 2018 bathing water 
season.

Blue

Reduction in long 
term maintenance 
costs. Income 
through 
investment into 
area

P
age 82



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact

Head of 
Service

Portfolio
2017/18

Q3 update
Q3 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q4 update

Q4 RAG 
status

4.10 Deliver activity in the Housing Strategy to raise 
standards in the private rented sector 
including:

31/03/2021 Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

4.10a Landlord training events 3 per year Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

The landlord events planned for November and January have been cancelled. The 
November event was cancelled due to the unavailability of the Council Chamber and 
the January event has been cancelled due to lack of interest. Two training sessions 
have been delivered and one further event will take place in March. The team are 
prioritising work on the introduction of the new Housing Enforcement Policy and the 
identification of HMO's that will require licensing following new legislation coming into 
force in April 2018. Work is ongoing to identify these properties so the team are ready 
to approach and inform landlords in April. 

Green

A landlord consultation event was held on 15th March. The event was to inform local 
landlords of the council's Housing Enforcement and Civil Penalty Policy. The event was very 
well attended with over 50 landlords present. Positive feedback was received from the event 
which has been fed into the policies.

Blue

4.10b Developing and implementing incentives for 
landlords to become accredited 

30/06/2017 Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Development of the new Housing Enforcement Policy is progressing well which will 
incentivise landlords to comply with legislative requirements. Incentives such as free 
training events will continue to be offered to relevant landlords   Blue Blue

4.10c Review and revision of Housing Enforcement 
Policy

30/09/2017 Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

The draft Housing Enforcement Policy has been produced and a Fixed Penalty Notice 
Policy to run along side this is being written. The policy was taken to Scrutiny in 
December and was well received. Q4 will see the consultation of the policy with 
landlords and other stakeholders. The intention is to take to Executive in April for 
approval of the policy. 

Green

The online consultation of the Private Sector Housing Enforcement Policy and Private 
Sector Civil Penalties Policy took place in March. 22 responses were received. The 
consultation comments were fed into the draft strategy which was approved by Executive 
18/04/18.

Blue

4.11 Deliver Housing Grants Assistance 
programme to help reduce admissions to 
hospital, need for transfer to residential home 
and delayed discharge from hospital, and to 
increase the number of decent homes in the 
Borough: 
- Implement, promote and deliver Discretionary 
Grants (including Safe and Warm Grant) 
- Promote and deliver Disabled Facilities Grants 

Apr 2017 
onwards

Income from ABC 
fee (10%)

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

In Q3 the team have dealt with 95 new grant cases; 23 Safe and Warm grants (5 of 
which have been approved), 5 Discretionary Disability Grants (4 of which have been 
approved), 61 DFGs (15 of which have been approved) and 6 Empty Property Grants (1 
of which has been approved). Along with existing grants in the system the team are 
dealing with a total of 197 grant cases. The current budget spend and commitment for 
the grants is as follows: DFGs = £853,097; Top up = £10,000; Relocation = £3,000; 
Disability = £47,557 Safe and Warm = £115,500 and Empty Property = £112,169. The 
Housing OT seconded from Cumbria County Council started in November 2017 and 
has been a great asset to the team. So far he has visited over 25 clients and referred 
them to the team for either a mandatory or discretionary grant. During Q4 the Housing 
OT will be meeting with each housing association in the area to look at ways to speed 
up the adaptation process and match clients to homes without the need for 
adaptations.  

Green

In Q4 the team have dealt with 105 new grant cases; 19 Safe and Warm grants (3 of which 
have been approved), 16 Discretionary Disability Grants (13 of which have been approved), 
64 DFGs (14 of which have been approved), 1 Empty Property Grants, 4 Top up Grants (2 
of which have been approved), and 1 Disability Relocation Grant. The final budget spend 
and commitment for the grants is as follows: DFGs = £1,181,102; Top up = £21,639; 
Relocation = £3,257; Disability = £139,846; Safe and Warm = £314,301 and Empty Property 
= £155,615. To summarise the 2017/18 Housing Grants and assistance programme 
delivery, the team have dealt with 370 grant cases (more than double the previous year), 
approved 212 grants and spent and committed £1,815,758.

Blue

4.12 Undertake activity with partners to improve 
flooding resilience across Allerdale including:

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Work still ongoing with all agencies especially the EA where we are looking at various 
additional funding streams to assist in delivering flood resilience to affected 
communities

ABC are actively involved with all agencies and flood action groups to assist delivery of 
flood resilience works throughout Allerdale.

4.12a Reviewing all Emergency Reception Centres Apr 2017 
onwards

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Work is ongoing checking and revising reception centres, it has been agreed to include 
the new Workington Leisure Centre as a new reception centres and work ongoing to 
check the others

Green

Workington Leisure centre is now another recognised evacuation centre and CCC have 
been reviewing all others throughout Cumbria, although Allerdale will assist this is primarily 
a task for CCC.

Blue

4.12b Continuing to administer the Flood Resilience 
Grant programme ensuring that at least 65% of 
eligible households apply for the grant  

30/06/2017 Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Work still ongoing with a final deadline for paying invoices at the end of March 2018

Green

By the end of the year the team had successfully administered grant funding totalling 
£4,544,909 with a total of 70% of those properties flooded applying for support.

Blue

4.12c Delivering a funding programme for small to 
medium flood prevention work in our 
communities using £100k fund created by the 
Council.

Allocate 
funding by 
31/03/2018

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Communication of the system and process still being cascaded to potential applicants

Green

Funding programme and procedures fully developed and embedded within our services. 
Communities continue to be supported and encouraged to apply for funding where 
appropriate. Blue

Creating a sustainable business
We aim to develop a commercially focused organisation committed to delivering high quality, sustainable services to the people, communities and businesses of Allerdale

Possible income 
from fixed 
penalties 
(enforcement)

P
age 83



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact

Head of 
Service

Portfolio
2017/18

Q3 update
Q3 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q4 update

Q4 RAG 
status

5.1 Deliver the Customer Access Strategy to 
improve the service we deliver to customers 
through improving service consistency, 
delivering right first time and improving the use 
of customer intelligence to develop and design 
the service. Promote self-service where 
appropriate to streamline processes between 
customer and the organisation.

31/03/2019 Reduced 
expenditure 
through more 
efficient 
processes 

Paul Wood Transformation The building element of the refurbishment of the reception area has been completed 
and initial feedback from customers, visitors and staff using the facility has been 
positive. Congestion has been reduced through the introduction of a dedicated staff 
entrance, a "goods in" bay for deliveries and a separate customer entrance.

Within the reception area there is now a meet and greet desk where customers and 
visitors are welcomed on arrival, there is a visitors lounge, comfortable customer 
waiting area complete with a children's play zone, public access computers are 
available for customers who wish to access information and services on-line. 
Customers are now able to meet with our officers in bright and airy confidential meeting 
rooms.  

Work is now well underway to migrate the GIS system into a cloud based service and 
work on the new website is now at an advanced stage with designs agreed and the test 
website being populated with information. 

Green

Work is continuing on a number of levels including development of business intelligence 
through better management information which is now available through the new ICT 
systems now in place and also those currently in development. This information is helping to 
manage and match staff resource to customer demand. Reception continues to work well for 
customers, visitors and staff and the installation of a self payment kiosk is encouraging 
customers to self serve when making payments by debit or credit card. In the first two 
months after installation over 300 payments have been taken and customer feedback has 
been positive on how quick and easy the kiosk is to use, customer service staff remain on 
hand to assist customers using this method for the first time.  Green

5.2 Undertake a Channel shift programme to 
significantly increase the use of online and self-
service channels

31/03/2020 Overall reduction 
in CSC cost per 
transaction £50k

Paul Wood Transformation Use of the on-line service continues to grow with an average of 500 service reports and 
500 new customer registrations each month during Q3.

Green

Self service channels continue to grow with over 6000 myAllerdale reports logged over 
2017/18 - and over the last six months an average of over 600 reports each month were 
logged demonstrating the increased take up of this channel to report issues bu our 
customers. Continued development of the online offer is outlined in more detail in 5.3 of this 
report. There are also online billing and direct debit take up campaign currently in 
development . 

Green

5.3 Undertake a programme of service reviews to 
deliver business efficiencies and service 
improvements through greater business process 
automation 

31/03/2018 £25k saving Paul Wood Transformation Tablets - elected members now all have tablets.  At the first full council meeting in 
January 18 Democratic services will be encouraging as many members as possible to 
use tablets rather than printed copies and from May 18 meeting printed copies will only 
be available for members of the public and where requested.  
Franking Machine reductions - Supplier engagement underway to look at requirements 
for franking post and to reduce to a smaller machine now more post going to Hybrid 
mail.  
Hybrid Mail - Looking at next phase to see what other departments can switch to hybrid, 
housing and environmental health, democratic services and the remaining revenue and 
benefits).
Redesign of Customer Services - Work completed at end of December on time and on 
budget staff, transitioned to newly designed Customer Service Centre at the start of the 
New Year.  The layout will help facilitate new ways of working and channel shift in next 
phase of the project.      
 

Green

Procurement – Continuing to identify savings once existing contracts expire for corporate 
goods and services. In the last quarter this has included:  
Corporate Print savings - The use of a recently procured Corporate Printing Framework has 
meant savings for the annual billing of Council Tax letters. (£5K saving from previous 
year).Contract Management and Performance Management - MyAllerdale - In Q4 we have 
continued progression of MyAllerdale for further services which customers can book to 
enable customers to request a bulky goods collection either online or via our app:
This will reduce customer contact via face to face and reduce telephony making council 
services easier to access and reduce ant delays in getting through to council services. 
Customers will also be able to book a room to see a Council officer by date and time.  This 
will help manage customer demand/capacity for our officers.
Utilities – water.  On 1 April we start of our newly procured contract (estimated minimum of 
3% reduction of costs per annum) for our water charges after new legislation was introduced 
that allows businesses to shop around for best value.  The Council took part in a national 
reverse auction to deliver savings in what is paid at the moment.  
Franking Machine reductions - Supplier engagement underway to look at requirements for 
franking post and to reduce to a smaller machine now more post going to Hybrid mail.  A 
new contract will be in place from May 2018. We will see a saving of approximately £5K 
from existing franking contract.  
Hybrid Mail - Looking at next phase to see what other departments can switch to hybrid 
mailing to save on staff time and costs of paper, envelopes.  

Green

5.4 Carry out business process review of 
Development Services and implement new 
Land and Property system to improve 
efficiency and reduce costs

Implement 
new system 
by 
31/03/2018

Kevin 
Kerrigan / 
Paul Wood

Transformation/ 
Economic Growth

Contract signed 13/11/17. Kick off meeting with and project team held 05/12/17. Outline 
of requirements from both parties during next 7 week. Scale of work and expertise to 
extract existing data highlighted as issue. Individual service areas working on preparing 
for migration. Supplier slow to arrange access to test environment. Amber

Ongoing work to develop process maps and associated forms, templates etc. across all 
areas, requiring significant team resource. Arcus have been working through the process 
maps and providing feedback on the work completed. Encountered delays with engaging a 
third party to undertake data extraction from legacy systems. Issues with LLPG upload to 
new system, currently being worked on. Arcus due on site 24th April to work with teams 
through any process queries.    

Amber

5.5 Continue to review procurement procedures 
and practices to ensure best value for services 
and goods procured 

31/03/2018 £50k saving Paul Wood Transformation Procurement –Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy now Adopted by 
SMT. Buyers guide on the Council Website.  Working on setting up a provider’s 
database on next phase of the project and currently reviewing Tender Documents, 
including tender docs for Consultant.  
  

Green

Training for all Third Tier managers in contract management and setting performance 
management targets held in March 2018.  

Blue

5.6 Plan for the end of the current waste and 
recycling, street cleansing and grounds 
maintenance contracts in 2019 by undertaking 
strategic review work including a new Business 
Model Options Appraisal 

30/06/2017 Reduced 
expenditure 
through more 
efficient operating 
model and 
increased income 
through trade 

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

All contract documents are to be sent out to bidders on 29/01/2018. Bidders are then 
invited to participate in competitive dialogue sessions starting on 19//02/2018.

Green

First round of dialogue session have been completed and detailed solutions have been 
submitted for evaluation by all bidders.

Green

5.7 Increase income from waste services 
through:

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

P
age 84



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact

Head of 
Service

Portfolio
2017/18

Q3 update
Q3 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q4 update

Q4 RAG 
status

5.7a Introduction of a charge for Commercial 
Recycling

30/04/2017 £25k Income 
target

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

Blue Blue

5.7b Undertaking market analysis and promotional 
activity to increase income from Trade Waste

31/03/2018 £25k Income 
target

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

49 new customers since start of 2017/18 period as opposed to 33 in the Q2 update. The 
residual element of the commercial service is forecast to generate £1,070,000. Green

Service continues to grow with 15 new customers being added to the service in Q4

Blue

5.8 Carry out a review of commercial and 
community use of car parks in relation 
festivals, events that are hosted for the 
purposes of generating income and supporting 
the community.  

01/07/2017 Investment 
income into area

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

The review is almost complete, a new set of proposed fees and charges have been 
drafted that reflect the needs of the customer but also the wider benefit of the locality.

Green

Work continues in this area with fees and charges being set for 2018/19. A set of proposals 
linked to charges for the various users groups will be complete for review beyond of  Q2 
2018.

Green

5.9 Conduct pilot and commence rollout of new 
domestic recycling model to improve 
recycling rates and create efficiencies 

Pilot by 
31/05/2017
Roll out 
starts Jul 
2017

£25k saving 
2017/18 

Charles 
Holmes

Environmental 
Quality

The rollout of the scheme provided a detailed set of responses from the customers 
involved, these were used as part of an assessment process with the aim of delivering 
a new service post April 2019. The decision has been taken however to await 
information from the contractors bidding for Lot 1 of the waste contract to assess what 
solutions they may offer. The trial has provided the council with an invaluable 
experience and set of real time data linked to any outcomes from any changes we may 
introduce in future.

Blue Blue

5.10 Deliver the ICT strategy moving systems from 
being located on-site to cloud based with a 
reduction in support costs

31/03/2019 Overall reduction 
in costs £50k

Paul Wood Transformation A number of cloud migration initiatives are progressing including; the migration  of the 
Councils Spatial systems to the cloud, the implementation of a new Council website, the 
implementation of a new application to support planning, building Control, 
environmental protection, environmental health, land charges and licensing, the 
migration of the Councils parking systems to the cloud, and the implementation of new 
homelessness and virtual tourism solutions. New solutions are being introduced to 
support Information Management, Information Security and corporate and bespoke 
learning requirements. Tenders have been issued in relation to developing solutions 
that will meet the Councils digital agenda including a pilot for an Internet of things 
Solution, and improved broadband options for business and households.

Green

Works to migrate Council Services to the Cloud continue.  The new Council website is 
nearing release, the parking system has been migrated.  Planning, Building Control, 
Licensing, Land Charges, Environmental Health and Housing are all currently being 
migrated with services due to go live July 2018.  A project is being initiated to look at the 
remaining services Of HR, Finance and asset Management.

Green

5.11 Develop and deliver an Information Strategy 
to achieve more effective information 
management across the organisation to support 
robust business decisions 

Develop by 
30/09/2017 
Delivery 
2017/19

Nik Hardy Transformation The Information Governance Strategy is being drafted (scheduled to be completed by 
April 2018 as part of the project plan for the General Data Protection Regulation 
Project).  Other policies, procedures and guidance relating to information and data 
protection are being drafted/revised to ensure compliance with GDPR by the end of 
May 2018. Green

An overarching Information Governance Policy was approved by SMT in April along with a 
series of other updated policies that sit alongside this including the Data Protection Policy, 
Freedom of Information Policy and Retention Policy.  The Council now has a suite of 
information governance policies in line with new data protection legislation.  Following an 
information audit across the organisation the Council now has an Information Asset Register 
and training takes place in early May to ensure that managers know how to update and 
maintain this register in line with our Retention Policy and Schedule.

Blue

5.12 Implement the Asset Management Plan in 
order to maximise income for the Council 

31/03/2019 Longer term 
generation of 
additional income

Kevin 
Kerrigan / 
Catherine 
Nicholson

Economic Growth The Council has received approval for the ERDF funding and approval is now being 
sought from Executive to commence scheme.  Asset Management Group have been 
meeting on a regular basis with a view to identify properties for disposal or CAT.

Green

Approval has been granted for the Reedlands project from Executive and a project team has 
been formed and led by Joe Broomfield.
The Asset Management Group has recently been concentrating on the major development 
projects which are in the pipeline.  A number of CAT have taken place and more are due to 
follow.  It is then hoped that resources can be concentrated on surplus assets and a disposal 
programme can be drawn up during this financial year.

Green

5.13 Complete a review of our Financial Strategy 
to include:

30/11/2017 Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

2018/19 Budget Strategy & Updated Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 to 2020/21 
was submitted to Executive on 8th November 2017. Further review and updating of the 
MTFP will be completed as part of the 2018/19 budget cycle.

2018/19 Budget Strategy & Updated Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 to 2020/21 was 
submitted to Executive on 8th November 2017. Further review and updating of the MTFP 
will be completed as part of the 2018/19 budget cycle.

P
age 85



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact

Head of 
Service

Portfolio
2017/18

Q3 update
Q3 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q4 update

Q4 RAG 
status

5.13a an assessment of the impact of the changes to 
the New Homes Bonus

Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

Provisional New Homes Bonus allocations for 2018-19 were announced in December 
alongside this provisional local government finance settlement. Final New Homes 
Bonus allocations for 2018-19 will be published alongside the final local government 
finance settlement in February 2018. The provisional settlement confirms that, as 
announced last year, (and in line with expectations included in the Council's MTFP) the 
length of time that the bonus is paid will reduce from five years to four years in 2018/19. 
However the government has decided not to make any additional change to the 
baseline, below which the Bonus will not be paid. The threshold over which bonus will 
be paid will therefore remain at 0.4% of the council tax base (weighted by band) for the 
2018-19 allocations. The Government does however  retain the option to adjust the 
baseline in subsequent years. After considering responses to the 2018-19 local 
government finance settlement technical consultation , the Government has decided 
not to implement proposed changes which would have meant bonus being withheld for 
homes approved by the Planning Inspectorate. The Authority's provisional allocation for 
2018-19 is £1.004m. In 2017/18 the allocation was £1.604m. The 2018/19 allocation 
and legacy payments for future years have been included in the draft 2018/19 budget 
and MTFP update.

Green

Final New Homes Bonus allocations for 2018-19 were published alongside the final local 
government finance settlement in February 2018. The settlement confirms that, as 
announced last year, (and in line with expectations included in the Council's MTFP) the 
length of time that the bonus is paid will reduce from five years to four years in 2018/19. 
However the Government has decided not to make any additional change to the baseline, 
below which the Bonus will not be paid. The threshold over which bonus will be paid will 
therefore remain at 0.4% of the council tax base (weighted by band) for the 2018-19 
allocations. The Government does however retain the option to adjust the baseline in 
subsequent years. After considering responses to the 2018-19 local government finance 
settlement technical consultation, the Government has decided not to implement proposed 
changes which would have meant bonus being withheld for homes approved by the Planning 
Inspectorate

Green

5.13b an assessment of the likely impact of the move 
towards 100% rates retention

Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

See comments above (ref 1.7)
Amber

See comments above (ref 1.7)
Amber

5.13c working with procurement to ensure VFM of 
facility and utility expenditure through 
framework agreements

Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

Continue to monitor framework price agreements in respect of utility bills. Looking at 
alternatives to County Framework for supply of energy in light of proposed increase in 
energy costs. Carry out tendering exercise where necessary in respect of facility 
contracts as they become due for renewal

Green

Continue to monitor framework price agreements in respect of utility bills. Carried out 
tendering exercise in respect of facility management of our operational buildings and 
appointed respective contractors for next three year period from April 2018 Green

5.13d supporting delivery of the priorities within the 
asset management plan

Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

Attendance of the Asset Management Group and supporting the activities identified in 
the Groups Terms of reference through implementation of our annual capital and 
revenue programme Assisting other services areas in achieving objectives in relation to 
AMP.

Green

Attendance of the Asset Management Group and supporting the activities identified in the 
Groups Terms of reference through implementation of our annual capital and revenue 
programme Assisting other services areas in achieving objectives in relation to AMP. Green

5.14 Develop business partnering role and 
training of staff – business cases and alternative 
service delivery models

31/12/2017 Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

Developing and maintaining the business partnering approach remains the focus of the 
finance department, with targets being set and monitoring through regular What Great 
Looks Like reviews that reflect this approach. 
Finance are actively engaging with services to identify areas for improvement and 
taking every available opportunity to obtain and act on feedback.

Green

Developing and maintaining the business partnering approach remains the focus of the 
finance department. 
As well as the proactive engagement with all services, the finance team have also 
undertaken a number of training and briefing sessions for staff and continue to receive 
excellent feedback. The most recent of these sessions provided focus and assistance to the 
year end process, to ensure staff have the necessary skills and knowledge to understand 
and undertake their role in this process as efficiently as possible. 
The next briefing session will take place in June 2018 and will focus on findings from the 
2017/18 outturn process. 

Blue

5.15 Implement a Coaching and leadership 
programme focussed on commercial skills to 
encourage entrepreneurial thinking and activity 
to grow the business and make us more 
efficient 

31/07/2017 Brendan 
Carlin

Governance and 
People Resources

A core competencies session was facilitated with all third tier managers to identify how 
best to embed commercial thinking. This programme will be built into the training and 
development strategy which is on the work plan for Feb. 2018.

Amber

A Coaching and Leadership Programme has been defined as a key action for the 
Organisational Development Strategy . This has been defined as a Business Plan objective 
for 18/19 for completion by September 2018. Interviews have taken place with all third tier 
managers to gain insight into the training needs at Allerdale and as a result a Training 
Strategy has been agreed for 18/19 which will deliver a more focused approach to 
developing our people. 

Amber

5.16 Review Occupational Health provision to 
ensure that staff are supported 

31/05/2017 Brendan 
Carlin

Governance and 
People Resources

Blue Blue

5.17 Deliver effective succession and workforce 
planning to ensure that we are planning for the 
future and improving business capacity, 
efficiency and productivity

30/06/2017 Brendan 
Carlin

Governance and 
People Resources

The HR Manager has prioritised this in the HR plan and the work force planning project 
will be delivered as part of this. This will in the first instance require engagement with all 
third tier managers to identify their challenges for the coming year. Meetings will start in 
February 2018.

Amber

Succession and Workforce planning is a key element of the overall Organisational 
Development Strategy. This has been defined as a Business Plan objective for 18/19 for 
completion by September 2018. Interviews have taken place with all third tier managers to 
gain insight into workforce planning at Allerdale.

Amber

P
age 86



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact

Head of 
Service

Portfolio
2017/18

Q3 update
Q3 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q4 update

Q4 RAG 
status

5.18 Deliver a member development programme 
to include development for members in terms of 
their community leadership role to support the 
Council in achieving its ambitions

30/04/2018 Brendan 
Carlin

Governance and 
People Resources

Councillors were asked to complete Personal Development Plans in October and then 
again in December 2017. Training is being arranged in accordance with the training 
needs identified in these PDPs.
The following training has been arranged to take place so far in 2018:
17 January - Code of conduct
1 February - Chairing skills
2 February - Being an effective councillor
2 February - Handling casework
29 March - Speed reading
Training on taxi licensing, universal credit, the Council Plan/the council's performance 
management and data protection regulations is also being arranged to take place this 
year.

Democratic Services will be giving individual councillors further training on using their 
tablet devices.

The e-learning suite is being worked on. Councillors will be given an update when it's 
available to use.

Green

Following the AGM on 2 May 2018 the Member Development Working Group will analyse 
PDP results from 2017 and approve a Member Development Programme for May 2018 to 
May 2019.  

Universal Credit training for Councillors is being arranged for 8 May. Further details on this 
will be sent out in due course.

General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) training sessions for Councillors are taking 
place on 9 May and 10 May. It is important that all Councillors attend one of these sessions. 
Alternative arrangements will be made for those who do not attend.

The e-learning suite has now gone live. Officers have been testing it and when it has been 
further developed it will be rolled out to Councillors.

Green

5.19 Undertake activity to improve how we support 
and promote the health and wellbeing of our 
staff including:

30/09/2017 Reduction in 
sickness levels

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health 
and Wellbeing

Formally obtained bronze award along with several other Allerdale based businesses. 
Further colleagues attending suicide awareness training.

Producing bespoke guidance on the 
management of work related stress

Gaining the Better Health at Work Award to 
demonstrate our commitment to promoting the 
health and wellbeing of our staff

Awaiting written confirmation of achieving bronze award. Q4 & Q1 focus on achieving 
silver award and training more health advocates.

Definitions

BRAG Progress against plan

Blue Complete

Red There are significant  concerns over achieving outputs / there is serious slippage in the timetable / there are major issues to rectify

Amber There are concerns over achieving deadlines or outputs  / there are issues to rectify, but plans are in place to get the project back on track

Green Everything is on target / satisfactory progress is being made / no action required

Green Blue

15 employees trained as mental health at work first aiders; suicide prevention training 
offered to employees; dementia friends awareness training offered to employees and 
elected members; free flu jab vouchers available to employees. SIT club started.

Two more Health Advocates trained. Raising Awareness of Prostate Cancer campaign held 
supported by CLT. This was the first campaign we have run where the theme has been 
promoted using our assets in this case public toilets and the multi storey car park .FCC and 
ISS were included.

P
age 87



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 88



Appendix B - Business Plan Q4 2017/18 - key performance indicators 

PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency
Good 

is?

2016/17
Annual 
value

2017/18
Q1 value

RAG 
Q1

DOT 
Q1

2017/18
Q2 value

RAG 
Q2

DOT 
Q2

2017/18
Q3 value

RAG 
Q3

DOT 
Q3

2017/18
Q4 target

2017/18
Q4 value

RAG 
Q4

DOT 
Q4

2017/18
Annual 
target

2017/18
Annual 
value

RAG Q4 commentary

KEG01a No. of jobs created through effective management 
of external funding

Nik Hardy Quarterly High 8 11 n/a p 0 n/a q 10 n/a p n/a 15 n/a p 50 60 G

2 businesses have received SIIF funding, 1 been approved awaiting 
confirmation of planning permission - all funding has therefore been 
allocated.  15 new jobs have been created, further new jobs will be created as 
a result in due course.

KEG01b No. of jobs safeguarded through effective 
management of external funding

Nik Hardy Quarterly High n/a 45 n/a p 0 n/a q 51 n/a p n/a 35 n/a q n/a 86 G SIIF funds paid to 2 businesses in the quarter, safeguarding 35 jobs

KEG02 No. of businesses engaged Nik Hardy Quarterly High n/a 21 G p 21 G tu 21 G tu 11 24 G p 50 66 G 24 businesses engaged through the Growth Hub.

KDS01 % of major planning applications determined within 
statutory period

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 100% 100% G tu 100% G tu 90% A q 95% 100% G p 95% 98% G Above target for the quarter and the year.

KDS02 % of minor and other planning applications 
determined within statutory period 

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 93% 94% A q 96% G p 92% A q 95% 98% G p 95% 95% G Above target for Q4 and on target for the year.

KDS03 No. of housing units granted planning permission
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 493 88 R p 391 G p 64 R q 104 39 R q 413 582 G Although below target for the quarter, target for the year has been exceeded.

KDS04 No. of new housing completions
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 250 27 R q 123 G p 135 G p 86 217 G p 344 502 G Continuation of the work by the Planning Policy Team and site visits.

KDS08 Full Plans determined within 5 weeks (Building 
Control)

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 65% 87% G p 94% G p 99% G p 85% 92% G q 85% 93% G
Overall performance is exceeding targets, though performance for January was 
slightly below target

KFS02 % of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses paid 
within 14 days

Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High n/a 78.8% R p 84.7% R p 90.0% A p 98.0% 92.0% A p 98.0% 86.0% R
Improving trend Q3 to Q4 - Work to improve processes (speed of receipting of 
Purchase Orders when the goods /service are delivered and invoices being 
received without an order in place) is showing improvement in the KPI.    

KGOV01 % of Local Land Charges Searches carried out within 
10 working days

Brendan 
Carlin

Monthly High 96.85% 97.60% G p 98.65% G p 99.22% G p 95.00% 97.58% G q 95.00% 99.36% G On target.

KCTC01a Time taken to process Housing Benefit new claims 
(no. of days)

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low 20 20 G p 12 G p 13 G q 20 14 G q 20 15 G Target exceeded. 

KCTC01b Time taken to process Council Tax new claims (no. 
of days)

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low 20 27 R q 20 G p 16 G p 20 17 G q 20 20 G Target achieved

KCTC02 Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax 
change of circumstances (no. of days)

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low 9 9 A q 8 G p 7 G p 8 3 G p 8 6 G Target exceeded. 

KHH01 No. of affordable homes facilitated by the Council
Graeme 
Wilson

Quarterly High 112 32 G q 4 R q 7 R p 25 32 G p 100 75 R

During Q4 27units were delivered in Cockermouth, Thursby and Workington 
(buy backs by Westfield HA.) The number of affordables homes delivered are 
determined by the developer output as opposed to being a performance 
related target as such, the Council has limited control of the delivery rates.

KHH02 % of affordable homes allocated to those with a 
local connection and in line with S106 obligations

Graeme 
Wilson

Quarterly High 0% 100% G p 100% G tu 100% G tu 100% 100% G tu 100% 100% G
There were 3 tenancy started in Q4 which we are currently evaluating against 
this target.  It is still proving challenging to review the allocations on Cumbria 
Choice as the records don’t appear to be updated regularly.

KHH03 Occupancy rate of temporary accommodation units
Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High 57% 85% G p 81% G q 72% A q 80% 91% G p 80% 84% G Target exceeded for Q4 and the year. 

KHH04 % of homeless decisions made within guideline 33 
days

Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High 97% 100% G p 100% G tu 100% G p 100% 100% G tu 100% 100% G Target achieved for Q4 and the year.

Strengthening our economy

Tackling inequality

P
age 89



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency
Good 

is?

2016/17
Annual 
value

2017/18
Q1 value

RAG 
Q1

DOT 
Q1

2017/18
Q2 value

RAG 
Q2

DOT 
Q2

2017/18
Q3 value

RAG 
Q3

DOT 
Q3

2017/18
Q4 target

2017/18
Q4 value

RAG 
Q4

DOT 
Q4

2017/18
Annual 
target

2017/18
Annual 
value

RAG Q4 commentary

KHH05 % of Safe and Warm Grants approved within 10 
weeks of initial enquiry

Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High N/A N/A G tu 100% G q 50% R q 100% 21% R q 100% 38% R

14 Safe and Warm Grants have been approved in this Quarter, 3 of which were 
approved within 10 weeks. The safe and warm grants approved have been 
major renovations to people's homes and obtaining quotes has been difficult. 
There has been no procurement framework for Safe and Warm eligible 
works (other than for heating) so there has been no control on when quotes 
are returned. The clients the team have been assisting are often vulnerable 
and obtaining the required paperwork has been difficult. In some instances the 
team have supported social services to get homes deep cleaned and de 
cluttered prior to any work taking place. In hindsight the target time 
was unachievable for these grants and as they  are new there was no base line 
to compare to to set the target. The team have processed 66 Safe and Warm 
enquiries this financial year which has involved a site visit to each case. 25 
cases are still in the system awaiting approval next financial year.

KFS03 % of public conveniences cleaned within the Service 
Level Agreement

Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High 99.40% 99% A q 99% A tu 99% A p 100% 100% G tu 100% 100% G Target achieved.

KHH06 No. of Empty Homes Grants processed
Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High n/a 0 G tu 1 R p 2 R p 5 7 G p 10 10 G
7 empty homes grants have been completed in this quarter. The team have 
also approved a further 3 empty homes grants and 4 more complete 
applications have been received and are ready for approval next financial year.

KCS03a Leisure centre usage - Keswick
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 84592 20769 A p 24105 A p 13215 R q 20344 16059 R p 85438 79867 A

The actual end of year figure is slightly higher than the total of the quarters. 
This figure is a more accurate picture directly from the centre, rather than the 
dashboard system following some discrepancies. Usage figure still lower than 
the previous year by around 4000, part of this can be put down to 7 days of 
closure (4 during the holidays) and some in part due to the dry start to the 
summer holidays.  

KCS03b Leisure centre usage - Cockermouth
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 163409 43282 G p 41827 G q 41951 G p 42906 50363 G p 166677 177418 G
New Years offers and new activities have resulted in Q4 usage figures being 
considerably higher than the target, bringing the total figure for the year over 
10,000 more than  the target figure.

KCS03c Leisure centre usage - Workington
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 228988 74332 G p 74731 G p 61640 A q 70418 81578 G p 274785 292281 G
New Years offers and new activities have resulted in Q4 usage figures being 
considerably higher than the target, bringing the total figure for the year over 
17,000 more than  the target figure.

KCS03d The Wave usage
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 21321 10224 G p 10180 G q 4721 G q 4080 4816 G p 23453 29941 G
A good final quarter for the Wave, new climbing module introduced and 
regular promotional offers are helping to generate consistent usage figures. 

KCS04a Workington Leisure Centre usage by target groups 
(low income) 

Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 13565 4549 G p 5096 G p 3809 G q 3516 5078 G p 13836 18532 G As above - for Workington Centre. Q4 targets achieved. 

KCS04b Workington Leisure Centre usage by target groups 
(60+) 

Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 18264 6426 G p 6748 G p 7042 G p 4666 8296 G p 18629 28512 G As above - for Workington Centre. Q4 targets achieved. 

KCS04c Workington Leisure Centre usage by target groups 
(juniors) 

Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 46478 12832 G p 15057 G p 13092 G q 11944 16574 G p 47407 57555 G As above - for Workington Centre. Q4 targets achieved. 

KHH07 % of Disabled Facilities Grants approved within 10 
weeks from receipt of referral 

Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High n/a 80% R q 82% R p 83% R p 100% 71% R q 100% 78% R

Out of the 42 grants approved in Q4, 12 were approved outside of the 10 week 
referral to approval target time. (Jan 10 out of 11 cases within 10 
weeks; Feb 10 out of 13 cases within 10 weeks; March 10 out of 18 
cases within 10 weeks).   

Enhancing our towns

Improving health and wellbeing

P
age 90



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency
Good 

is?

2016/17
Annual 
value

2017/18
Q1 value

RAG 
Q1

DOT 
Q1

2017/18
Q2 value

RAG 
Q2

DOT 
Q2

2017/18
Q3 value

RAG 
Q3

DOT 
Q3

2017/18
Q4 target

2017/18
Q4 value

RAG 
Q4

DOT 
Q4

2017/18
Annual 
target

2017/18
Annual 
value

RAG Q4 commentary

KHH08 % of Discretionary Disability Grants approved within 
10 weeks of first inspection date

Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High n/a n/a n/a 100% G tu 75% R q 100% 72% R q 100% 77% R
Out of the 18 grants approved in Q4, 5 were approved outside of the 10 weeks 
of first inspection date. (Jan no Discretionary Disability grants approved; Feb 4 
out of 6 grants within 10 weeks; March 9 out of 12 cases within 10 weeks)

KHH09 % of programmed private water supplies sampled
Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High n/a 7% G p 23% R p 75% G p 100% 98% A p 100% 98% A
Just below target for the year in terms of the programmed private water 
supplies sampled.

KHH10 % of food safety inspections carried out (Category A-
B)

Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High 100% 100% G p 95% A q 100% G p 100% 100% G tu 100% 100% G We have achieved 100% of A and B rated food premises inspections within Q4

Creating a sustainable business

KCTC03 No. of new customer registrations myAllerdale 
(Channel shift) (registrations per period)

Paul 
Wood

Monthly High n/a 782 G q 1024 G p 1609 G p 300 2755 G p 1200 6170 G Significantly above target reflecting very good uptake of myAllerdale.

KCTC04 Average speed of answer (A.S.A) on calls to 
03031231702 (seconds)

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low 109 84 R q 65 R p 46 A p 45 45 G p 45 60 R
Target missed by 15 seconds due to increased calls in Q4 for annual billing. . 
However, overall our annual performance has improved by 49 seconds in 
comparison to previous year. 

KCTC05 Abandoned calls rate (%)
Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low 13% 10% R tu 8% R p 5% G p 7% 6% G q 7% 7% G
Performance target achieved. A significant improvement on previous year 
down from 13% to 7% . 

KCTC06 Customer service satisfaction score
Paul 
Wood

Quarterly High n/a n/a n/a 88% G p 91% G p 80% 91% G tu 80% 90% G
Target achieved,  however number of customer contacts are slightly lower 
than 100 per  quarter due to high number of failed contacts. We are looking at 
ways of addressing this for the forthcoming year. 

KCTC07 Average no. of website unique page views per day Nik Hardy Monthly High n/a 3447 A p 3129 R q 2867 R q 3500 3398 A p 3500 3202 A

The number of views has continued to fluctuate around the target in recent 
months. It has been good to see that the website it increasingly being used to 
perform tasks with many the most number of customers ever registering with 
our myAllerdale service in March than ever before and up to 50% of all direct 
debit applications being performed via the online form. This process is hoped 
to improve further with the new site.

KCTC08 Average no. of Facebook likes per day Nik Hardy Monthly High n/a 2007 G p 2088 G p 2138 G p 1800 2265 G p 1800 2118 G

The number of people liking our Facebook page has met the target and 
increased by 6% over the year. We have seen a drop in the last month of the 
year which may be due to the privacy issues affecting Facebook and will 
monitor for future months.

KCTC09 Average no. of Twitter followers per day Nik Hardy Monthly High n/a 5697 G p 5889 G p 5978 G p 5500 6145 G p 5500 5912 G
The number of followers on Twitter has been above the target and increased 
by 8% over the year. 

KCTC10a Average no. of ICT Support calls logged per day
Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low n/a 36 R 26 G p 23 G p 27 24 G q 27 29 A
Number of calls reduced due to end of year leave and stability of the 
environment

KCTC10b Average no. of ICT Support calls outstanding per 
day

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low n/a 62 R 48 G p 55 A q 50 45 G p 50 53 A Team working to reduce back log

KCTC11 % of ICT support calls resolved within SLA 
Paul 
Wood

Monthly High 95 96% G q 95% G tu 86% G q 85% 88% G p 85% 92% G Maintained good rates of closure during period of high leave

KCTC12 No. of working hours lost per month due to major 
systems downtime

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low n/a 0.5 A 1.2 A q 0 G p 0 0.3 A q 0 2 A Failure of certificates to be copied across all servers causing issue with ADFS.

KCTC13* NNDR collection rate Paul 
Wood

Monthly High 98.23% 30.90% G p 57.51% A p 83.93% A p 98.20% 97.66% A q 98.20% 97.66% A
Late receipt of one payment of £141,000 (not allocated until 3.4.18) pushed 
collection rate slightly below target.

P
age 91



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency
Good 

is?

2016/17
Annual 
value

2017/18
Q1 value

RAG 
Q1

DOT 
Q1

2017/18
Q2 value

RAG 
Q2

DOT 
Q2

2017/18
Q3 value

RAG 
Q3

DOT 
Q3

2017/18
Q4 target

2017/18
Q4 value

RAG 
Q4

DOT 
Q4

2017/18
Annual 
target

2017/18
Annual 
value

RAG Q4 commentary

KCTC14* Council Tax collection rate Paul 
Wood

Monthly High 97.55% 29.80% G p 57.62% A tu 85.42% A p 97.80% 97.37% A q 97.80% 97.37% A
Debt raised by 0.5% during the year (£282,000) so pushing collection rate 
slightly under target. Also delays in receipt of Universal Credit starting to make 
it difficult for some debtors to keep Council Tax payments up to date. 

KFS01 % invoices paid in 30 days
Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High 92.4% 89.6% A p 95.9% A p 98.0% G p 98.0% 97.0% A q 98.0% 95.0% A

98% target achieved in period 12 and 97% in periods 10 & 11, which resulted 
in 97% therefore, falling short of the overall Q4 target.  This was due to a 
combination of a high number of Purchase Orders not being placed for goods 
and services and invoices being sent directly to the departments.

KFS06a % of invoiced debt collected within 30 days of 
invoicing

Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High n/a n/a n/a n/a 59% n/a q 58% n/a q n/a 60% n/a p n/a 56% n/a
Quarter 4 shows a slight improvement to 60% , bringing the total for the year 
to 56.15%

KFS06b % of debt outstanding for over 90 days
Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly Low 45.44% 11% n/a p 29% n/a q 38% n/a q n/a 25% n/a p n/a 25% n/a
Both the percentage of aged debt over 90 days old, and the value of debts 
over 90 days old, are both lower than at end of the Quarter 3 and when 
compared to the same time last year.

KEG04 Occupancy rates of Council’s property portfolio
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 92.5% 90.3% G q 92.5% G p 92.7% G p 90.0% 90.3% G q 90.0% 90.3% G Occupancy rate slightly over target

KCS01 
(NI192)*

% of household waste sent for recycling
Charles 
Holmes

Quarterly High 37.9% 41.3% A tu 46.1% A q 37.3% G p 30.0% 27.7% A q 41.0% 38.9% A

Estimated data
Due to confirmation being required from CCC and finally WDF this data is 
estimated. There is a slight dip in performance when set against the target but 
throughout the validation process this will change, the values used for this Q4 
period were taken from Q4 2016/17.

KCS02 
(NI191)*

Kg of household waste sent to landfill (kg per 
household)

Charles 
Holmes

Quarterly Low 529.70 138.50 A q 112.00 G p 122.00 G p 135.00 116 G p 520.00 488.50 G

Estimated data.
Data used for Feb and March of 2017/18 was taken from 2016/17 so it is likely 
to change as information is validated through the CCC and WDF process but 
the trend is down so currently this figure of 116kgs shows a much improved 
position at the moment with the council handling less residual waste than ever 
before.

KPR01
Average no. of working days lost to sickness 
absence per employee per annum

Brendan 
Carlin

Monthly Low 8.80 9.15 R q 9.70 R q 8.67 R p 7.00 9.25 R q 7.00 9.37 R

The cumulative figure for 17/18 has been impacted by long term sickness. A 
large scale review has been undertaken of the absence profile for the year 
which has resulted in more in depth data being provided to Senior 
Management on a monthly basis to help reduce and manage sickness absence 
across the organisation.

KPR02 Levels of staff engagement and productivity
Brendan 
Carlin

Annually High n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 36% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 36% n/a 90 employees took part in the employee survey, further engagement sessions 
and pulse surveys will continue throughout 2018.

Definitions

RAG
R Significantly worse than target (usually >10% from target) – urgent action required to improve performance
A Within agreed tolerance of target (usually up to 10% from target) - some action may be required to improve performance
G On, or better than, target

P
age 92



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency
Good 

is?

2016/17
Annual 
value

2017/18
Q1 value

RAG 
Q1

DOT 
Q1

2017/18
Q2 value

RAG 
Q2

DOT 
Q2

2017/18
Q3 value

RAG 
Q3

DOT 
Q3

2017/18
Q4 target

2017/18
Q4 value

RAG 
Q4

DOT 
Q4

2017/18
Annual 
target

2017/18
Annual 
value

RAG Q4 commentary

DOT Direction of travel arrows indicate whether performance since the last comparable period^ has become:
p Better
tu Stayed the same
q Worse

^ 'Comparable period' - this is usually the previous month or quarter.  

* For a few indicators we compare back to the previous year's comparable quarters (these are KCTC13, KCTC14, KCS01, KCS02)

P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 94



Appendix C - Corporate risk and issues log at 31/05/18 (risk score > 9)

ID R
is

k 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

Im
p

ac
t 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

Im
p

ac
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d

R
is

k 
S

co
re

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty

M
e

as
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

M
e

as
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 A
ss

ig
n

m
en

t

M
it

ig
at

in
g

 A
ct

io
n

s 
p

la
n

n
ed

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 Im

p
ac

t
P

o
st

 M
it

ig
at

io
n

 
L

ik
e

lih
o

o
d

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 R

is
k 

S
co

re

M
it

ig
at

io
n

 D
at

e

35 Significant 
unbudgeted 
expenditure arising 
from severe weather 
conditions.

Further deterioration of sea 
defences and impact on low lying 
coastal properties and land.
Landslips occurring following 
severe weather
Cost of business disruption e.g. 
NNDR collection
Increase cost of business as usual 
services and customers as 
resource is used to support 

4 4 16 Nicholson 
Catherine

Extent of damage identified and external funding opportunities being explored 
Report produced identifying issues and options and circulated to Director
Following Storm Desmond and flooding in December 2015 the Bellwin scheme has been activated for Cumbria. This 
scheme will provide additional financial support associated with response works undertaken between the start of the 
incident and up to 1 month after the end of the official response stage. 
A finance sub-group with members from all Cumbrian Authorities has been set up in response to recent storms and 
flooding, this allows the sharing of knowledge and best practice. This group will also be responsible for identifying 
additional funding for the recovery phase (works required to land/property, loss of income from taxation and business 
interruption).
Where works are required to be undertaken, these are recorded and costs estimated to ensure that financing can be 
identified, either from external sources identified by the finance sub-group or from Allerdale BC's budget and internal 
resources. 

Bellwin now submitted and awaiting settlement.  no queries to date.
Major incident budget created for 16/17

Nicholson 
Catherine

Funding opportunities to support the repair/replacement of damaged sea 
defences still being explored. Awaiting confirmation from Environment Agency.  
STILL OUTSTANDING

Action has been taken to address highest risk area (Well Lane, Maryport). 
Topographic survey and initial appraisal have been undertaken. Inspection has 
revealed further structural inspections will be required and additional works will 
be required additional to the original anticipated costs. Consultants are acting 
in connection with the identified additional works.

Provision for this additional cost is being made in 2016/17 budget.
UPDATE MAY 17:  Well Lane now complete.  No further work required at this 
stage.  Possible retentions for 6-12 month period.

Finance Sub-group set up (following Storm Desmond) to identify additional 
funding for recovery phase - NOW DISBANDED

2 2 4 01/09/2017

52 Failure to establish 
cost effective waste 
and recycling, street 
cleansing and grounds 
maintenance services 
in Allerdale, delivering 
to the needs of the 
local community

The contracting arrangements 
currently in place providing for 
waste and recycling (including 
recycling reprocessing), street 
cleansing and grounds 
maintenance terminate on 31 
March 2019. A new business 
delivery model will need to be 
commissioned to enable these key 
services to be delivered with an 
affordability saving of £1m from 
the current cost. Failure to 
commission these services, on 
time and cost, will have a 
significant negative impact on the 
business of the Council. 

4 4 16 Holmes, 
Charles

The delivery model selected is the procurement of a performance based services contracting arrangement. A 
competitive dialogue process has been selected which enables detailed dialogue with companies tendering for the 
services and provides an opportunity to achieve the affordability criteria and the service delivery requirements 

Costs (legal, technical and financial) of procurement have been identified and resources allocated with external support 
procured through the BLOOM framework. 

The project management arrangements include a detailed risk register outlining the individual project risks associated 
with the delivery of the project. These are reviewed weekly at the Project Team Meetings and Fortnightly at the Project 
Board meetings.

Banks, Neil Competitive Dialogue will be undertaken prior to the submission of refined and 
then detailed solutions. This phase will further develop the services to be 
delivered through the services agreement; the projected contract cost through 
the pricing schedule and the contractor performance through the performance 
management framework.    

4 3 12 08/10/2018

4 Failure to continue 
providing value for 
money for expenditure

Inability to fulfil statutory 
obligations. Cease discretionary 
services. Cannot succeed as a 
council.  Unable to achieve plans, 
loss of key staff and or services, 
further use of reserves. Waste due 
to inefficient processes.

4 3 12 Frost, Ian 5 Year sustainability plan agreed by Executive.  Reserves above minimum level. Star Chamber approach adopted to 
improve accountability and responsibility for budget management. Tailor made financial workshops for budget holders 
quarterly.  Budget timetable and reporting managed effectively. Forecasting out puts examined and challenged at SMT 
regularly.  Increasing demand for monthly performance indicator information at SMT monthly to drive efficiency and 
effectiveness. Sector advisors – treasury guidance. Reducing spend programme – monitored.
The Commercial and Commissioning Boards should drive cost and time performance information relating to value for 
money and productivity. This should include detailed business cases and options appraisals to support informed 
decision making.                                                        
Council plan projects and new areas of business activity should be subject to a structured options appraisal using the 
programme office methodology to encourage innovation and the consideration of alternative business and delivery 
models. Projects should include clear measurable, agreed outputs to demonstrate the value added by the expenditure.     
Risk information in the Corporate Risks and Issues Log should be refreshed on an ongoing basis as changes occur to 
ensure it reflects current risk management activities. A risk evaluation of the high risks (red) should be completed by 
the Senior Management Team monthly. 
Minimum reserve position and self sufficiency targets monitored and reviewed by S151 Officer on risk basis

Frost, Ian SMT are developing an Organisational Development Plan to support the drive 
for efficiency and growth. Value for Money will be a key driver for these plans. 
1. Transformation Board manages the budget. 2. In service review. 3. 
Improvement Workshops - SMT to pilot. 4. Elaine to design - 
commissioning/procurement training.

3 3 9 01/09/2017

P
age 95



ID R
is

k 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

Im
p

ac
t 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

Im
p

ac
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d

R
is

k 
S

co
re

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty

M
e

as
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

M
e

as
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 A
ss

ig
n

m
en

t

M
it

ig
at

in
g

 A
ct

io
n

s 
p

la
n

n
ed

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 Im

p
ac

t
P

o
st

 M
it

ig
at

io
n

 
L

ik
e

lih
o

o
d

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 R

is
k 

S
co

re

M
it

ig
at

io
n

 D
at

e

14 Business continuity 
plans do not meet 
business needs

The Council does not comply with 
its duties as a Category 1 
Responder under CCA. Priority 
services are not maintained,. 
Resulting in bad publicity and loss 
of confidence in management,  
delayed income collection, 
increased unbudgeted expenditure 
costs.

4 3 12 Nicholson 
Catherine

16/02/2017 – Cloud based Business continuity software has been implemented, accessible from any internet capable 
device, relevant staff have received training on its use. Departmental plans combined into central Business Continuity 
plan containing sections for dealing with Initial Incident actions, Communications, Recovery and Restoration phases, 
together with managing impact on the Council. Solway House agreed as alternative location for DDR set up site, 
control centre and priority services. ICT infrastructure and data links in place to allow restoration of required servers 
and access to data backups located at Carlisle. Telephony system transferred to BT One Phone fully mobile based 
system removing requirement for server access via Allerdale House. Contact Centre transferred to a ‘cloud’ based 
solution allowing access via any internet capable device, regardless of location. Property Services have provided a plan 
identifying space within building for incident response team and priority services.  Business Interruption insurance in 
place and Insurance cover in respect of council assets, reinstatement of data, additional increased cost of working.
Business interruption insurance relating to specified supplier investigated and amendments to cover made.
Business recovery plan template has been updated to capture additional information about resource requirements for 
priority services, details of staff to be relocated to Solway House and other potential locations and has been circulated 
to Heads of Service

Nicholson 
Catherine

1.  Apply likely costings for budget   
2.  Head of Service table top exercise held on 14/02/17 supervised by Egton 
consultant. Number of actions raised to amend and update plan. Further 
exercise to be completed     
3. Rolling program of full Departmental exercises      
4. Update Audit Committee 
5. Learn lessons from partner organisations

3 3 9 31/12/2017

48 Inability to deliver the 
council plan due to the 
consequences of 
Brexit 

Strategic priorities are not met
improvements are not made
Lives in Allerdale are not improved
Cannot deliver value for money
Reduced growth

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik Scenario planning session completed with Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager.

Ongoing monitoring of policy developments by the Policy Team and discussion at policy team management meetings. 

Frost, Ian; 
Hardy, Nik

Key Officers must remain part of discussions with stakeholders
The situation will be monitored through the Strategy, Policy and Performance 
team
Information updates from professional bodies should be shared with SMT on a 
regular basis
Identify strategy setting groups and ensure we are part of these discussions.
Involve more people in the information updates.

4 3 12 21/12/2018

51 Potential risk to the 
delivery of major 
schemes due to 
reduced levels of 
public regeneration 
funding

Inability to progress major 
regeneration schemes resulting in 
failure to safeguard or create 
employment opportunities

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik Ongoing dialogue with relevant funding bodies and stakeholders. Hardy, Nik 1. Continuation of dialogue with key stakeholders and funding bodies.
2. Identification of other possible means to delivery including alternative 
economic development models.
3. Potential private sector funding.

0 21/12/2018

53 Move to 100% 
retention of business 
rates - and the delay 
from 2019/20 to 
2020/21 - depending 
on new parliament

Impact on the medium term 
financial plan.
Potential loss of growth depending 
on re-sets
Difficulty in planning for growth 
and retaining income

3 4 12 Nicholson 
Catherine

Whole scheme has now been delayed due to the snap general election.
Awaiting Queens Speech - new legislation

Continued membership of Cumbria NNDR group
LG futures events for updates
Consultations and DCLG statements
Pilot potential will be reported to Executive Council in January 2018.

NOT awarded PILOT - but new Cumbria Wide pool agreed for 2018/19

75% retention confirmed as part of local government settlement

3 3 9 09/05/2017

54 Failure to manage and 
maintain a secure 
information systems 
network

Service outage, loss of data, 
business disruption, reduced trust 
from stakeholders, cyber crime, 
information lost or stolen, 
regulatory fines, regulatory 
investigation, failure to provide 
customer service, loss of income.

4 3 12 Wood, Paul Independent penetration testing completed annually by a third party to identify and report vulnerabilities in the system. 
Cloud based systems are in place for office 365, my allerdale, telephony. Daily off site back ups. Regular back up 
reliability testing. Revised ICT policies to improve end user awareness. Public Services Network compliance gained 
March 2017. Horizon scanning and lessons learnt from events.

Hollins, 
Keith

1. Gradually move all systems to cloud based products.
2. Implementation of Cloud based strategy
3. Regular scheduled back up testing
4. Awareness and education of all end users - (ICT business partner role) by 
31/3/18

4 2 8 22/09/2018

P
age 96



ID R
is

k 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

Im
p

ac
t 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

Im
p

ac
t

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d

R
is

k 
S

co
re

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty

M
e

as
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

M
e

as
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 A
ss

ig
n

m
en

t

M
it

ig
at

in
g

 A
ct

io
n

s 
p

la
n

n
ed

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 Im

p
ac

t
P

o
st

 M
it

ig
at

io
n

 
L

ik
e

lih
o

o
d

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 R

is
k 

S
co

re

M
it

ig
at

io
n

 D
at

e

55 Information is not 
managed in line with 
policy, procedure and 
regulatory 
requirements.  Failure 
to deliver the 
requirements of the 
Data Protection 
Regulations.

1. Breach of GDPR & financial 
implications. 2. Reputation, trust & 
confidence. 3. Fines. 4. 
Commercial sensitive information. 
5. Damage to relationship with 
partners we work with possibly 
won't work with us again. 6. 
Potential loss of staff through 
dismissal. 7. ICO investigation. 8. 
Loss/misuse of personal data. 9. 
Loss of business time. 10. Could 
be put into special measures. 11. 
Substantial fine 12. Potential 
fraud.

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik 1. GDPR framework and internal policies. 2. Process & procedures. 3. Review what we have and why we hold it. 4. 
Audit process. 5. Retention policy. 6. ICT policies. 7. Data sharing protocol. 8. Project group established.

Hardy, Nik Project Running:
1. Education/training. 2. Awareness. 3. Reviews. 4. Monitoring. 5. E-Learning. 
6. Team meetings. 7. Regular updates. 8. Procedures in place to ensure 
policies adhered to. 9. Review what we hold. 10. Learn from others. 11. 
Reminders for staff about managing data. 12. Managers consistency. 13. 
Highlighting consequences (to staff and also those whose data is stolen etc). 
14. Campaign. 15. Repetitive testing. 16. Acknowledgement of understanding.

4 2 8 31/08/2018

56 Potential Local 
Government 
Reorganisation in 
Cumbria could create 
uncertainty around the 
future and affect the 
ability of the Council to 
deliver the Council 
plan

The Council could face an 
uncertain future that may affect the 
ability of the Council to deliver 
against existing ambitions. This 
may be because of political, and 
financial uncertainty.

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik Participation in any discussions around the future of Local Government in Cumbria.

Ongoing monitoring of the wider policy context around Local Government reorganisation. 

Hardy, Nik 1. Participate in wider discussions around Local Government reorganisation in 
Cumbria

2 Ongoing monitoring of the wider policy context by the Strategy, Policy and 
Performance team.

0 28/09/2018

57 Potential Local 
Government 
Reorganisation in 
Cumbria could create 
uncertainty around the 
future and affect the 
ability of the Council to 
deliver the Council 
plan

The Council could face an 
uncertain future that may affect the 
ability of the Council to deliver 
against existing ambitions. This 
may be because of political, and 
financial uncertainty.

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik Participation in any discussions around the future of Local Government in Cumbria.

Ongoing monitoring of the wider policy context around Local Government reorganisation. 

Hardy, Nik 1. Participate in wider discussions around Local Government reorganisation in 
Cumbria

2 Ongoing monitoring of the wider policy context by the Strategy, Policy and 
Performance team.

0 28/09/2018

13 Business rates 
collected fall below 
baseline funding

Less cash income and more 
reliance on reserves. Unable to 
balance budget. Further service 
cuts.

3 3 9 Nicholson 
Catherine

In house Revs and Bens team monitor collection rates and report back to  Head of Finance to provide early warning. 
Existing award of business rate reliefs policy in place but based on system before localisation of NNDR. Application to 
pool business rates has been accepted again for 2016/17.  Cumbria wide group established with Cumbria County 
Council taking the lead role on the pool with specialist advice.
Regular meetings are held between all members of the pool to discuss the business rates income projections and to 
highlight any significant issues that are relevant to the pool and/or individual authorities. 
Monitoring currently in place is reviewed and changes/enhancements are discussed between relevant parties and 
where necessary actioned. 
The Allerdale sub-group has been set up and has now had a number of meetings to discuss potential growth, decline 
and any other relevant topics, members include revenues, planning, finance, economic growth and membership is 
reviewed to make sure it remains fit for purpose. 

Nicholson 
Catherine

 1.  Working with Revs and Bens Shared Service to develop more enhanced 
monitoring  e.g. top 20 rates payers, those in appeal etc.   
 2.  Update of discretionary rate relief planned
3. Set up Business Rates Working Group

3 2 6 01/09/2017

18 Failure to align 
adequate people 
resources to council 
strategic priorities. 

Strategic Priorities and associated 
outcomes are not delivered
Transformation programme is not 
delivered.
Services fail to grow or be as 
efficient as required.

3 3 9 Seekings, 
Andrew

Current performance management framework ensures that key issues and challenges facing the Council drives Council 
Plan and service plan priorities.  
Project approach is taken to delivering Council Plan and regular monitoring of budgets and performance is in place.
Deployment of appropriate people resources is considered as part of programme/project set up
New performance/behaviours framework in place 

Seekings, 
Andrew

 •Review OD strategy
Resource allocation considered as part of project management 
 •Review WGLL with managers group. 
 •Performance against strategic priorities monitored on a regular basis at SMT.

3 2 6 30/09/2018

P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 98



1

Appendix D – Business Plan 2017/18 - Outcome measures

The outcome measures set out in the Business Plan are mainly wider contextual measures, such as 
health or employment figures published by other organisations.  Our work will have an influence on 
these, but they are not directly related to our service provision and so they are not attributed with a 
RAG rating. 

Monitoring these outcome measures will give us an indication as to whether our efforts are 
contributing to the improvement in outcomes for our communities that we are aiming to achieve under 
the priority themes that we have set out in the Council Plan.

Strengthening our economy 
We aim to create a strong, sustainable and vibrant local economy and create jobs

Number of people out of work (aiming to decrease)

Source: ONS/DWP (Cumbria Observatory graph)
** Note: Counts in these areas are disproportionately affected by the introduction of Full Service Universal Credit 

ONS data note – “Under Universal Credit a broader span of claimants are required to look for work than 
under Jobseeker's Allowance. As Universal Credit Full Service is rolled out in particular areas, the number 
of people recorded as being on the Claimant Count is therefore likely to rise.” 
The graph shows claimant rates for JSA and out of work UC claimants and demonstrates this effect - 
rates in Allerdale and Copeland appear to have been rising quite sharply since October 2016 whilst 
other areas of Cumbria have remained at a more constant level.  The introduction of Universal Credit 
is particularly affecting figures for Allerdale and Copeland where full service UC has been 
implemented at Workington and Whitehaven Job Centres.  

Page 99



2

Number of young people out of work (aiming to decrease)

This age group currently represent approximately 20% of all claimants in Allerdale.

The claimant rate for people 
aged 18-24 in Allerdale has 
been consistently above that 
for Cumbria over the period 
shown, and is also above the 
UK rate.  
The effect of the introduction 
of Universal Credit in 
Allerdale cannot be seen as 
clearly in the rate for this age 
group, although there has 
been an upturn in rate since 
June 2017 which may be 
attributed in part to the effect 
of the introduction of full 
service Universal Credit.

Source: ONS/DWP 

Number of jobs located in Allerdale (aiming to maintain or increase) 

The graph shows the 
fluctuations in number of jobs 
in Allerdale over an eleven-
year period with a high point in 
2012.  

The total number of jobs in 
Allerdale has remained static 
between 2015 and 2016.

Source: NOMIS official labour market statistics

Page 100



3

Number of businesses in Allerdale (aiming to increase)

The total number of 
businesses in Allerdale has 
seen a rising trend between 
2012 and 2016.  
Figures for 2017 show a 
slight fall in numbers.  

Source: NOMIS official labour market statistics

Number of businesses with more than 50 employees (aiming to increase)

The total number of 
businesses with more 
than 50 employees has 
been static in Allerdale 
between 2012 and 2016.  

The 2017 figures show a 
slight increase with 5 
additional medium 
businesses (50-249 
employees) reported.  

Source: NOMIS official labour market statistics

Page 101



4

Tourist expenditure and employment (aiming to increase)

As the figures in the graph 
show, tourist expenditure fell 
off slightly in 2012, but has 
been steadily increasing since 
then with a sharper rise in 
2017.   

In a similar pattern to tourist 
expenditure, numbers 
employed in tourism in 
Allerdale fell in 2012, but 
have since shown a steadily 
increasing trend year on 
year. Again, similar to the 
picture for tourism 
expenditure the figure for 
2017 shows a steeper rise 
than in previous years.

     Source: STEAM 

Housing provision (aiming to increase)

The graph shows a rising trend 
in net additional homes delivered 
each year.  Although the figure 
fell in 2016/17 the figure for 
2017/18 is significantly higher 
than has been achieved in the 
previous years shown.  The 
target in the Council’s Local Plan 
is 304 net additional homes per 
annum.

        Source: Allerdale Borough Council  

Page 102



5

Tackling inequality 
We aim to reduce poverty and support people facing financial difficulties

Number of people out of work (aiming to decrease) 
(See Strengthening our Economy section above)

Proportion of the workforce with low or no skills (aiming to decrease)

The graph shows a 
decreasing trend in the 
percentage of the working 
age population with no 
qualifications in Allerdale, 
Cumbria and the North 
West. 
The fall in the percentage of 
those with no qualifications 
in Allerdale between 2014 
and 2016 is of a greater 
scale to that seen in the 
North West or Cumbria 
figures. 

  Source: ONS Annual Population Survey

Children living in poverty in our target wards (aiming to decrease)

Child poverty figures for 
Allerdale have followed 
a very similar pattern to 
those for Cumbria and 
England as a whole.  
Latest available figures 
suggest that child 
poverty has fallen in 
Allerdale, Cumbria and 
nationally, although it 
should be pointed out 
that the measure 
reported here is a 
relative rather than 
absolute measure.   

Source: Department for Work and Pensions (Children in low-income families local measure)

Page 103



6

There are 9 wards with child poverty rates above the Allerdale average. In our more deprived wards 
in Workington and Maryport levels of child poverty are considerably higher than the Allerdale 
average.  Moorclose, St Michael’s and Ellenborough have rates above 20%, whilst Ewanrigg and 
Moss Bay have rates above 25%.  The rates for these areas have fluctuated slightly over the time 
period shown, but overall have remained fairly constant across this time period. 

Numbers of people using Foodbanks (aiming to decrease)

In Allerdale, Foodbank 
usage shows an overall 
increasing trend from 2011 
to 2016 with a peak in 
2013.  

Figures have reduced 
slightly in 2017. In Allerdale 
the largest number of 
Foodbank vouchers issued 
in 2017 were in the wards 
of St. Michaels, Moss Bay 
and Moorclose in 
Workington, and Netherhall 
in Maryport.  

  Source: North Lakes Foodbank

Figures suggest that a common causal factor for Foodbank usage in Allerdale and Copeland relates 
to receipt of benefits, either in terms of delays to receiving benefits or changes to benefits accounting 
for 27% and 21% of crisis types in 2017 respectively.  In 26% of cases ‘Low income’ was cited as the 
crisis type.

People in fuel poverty (aiming to decrease)

The latest published figures show 
that fuel poverty has fallen slightly 
between 2014 and 2015.  
Allerdale has followed a similar 
pattern to Cumbria over the 
period shown. 

7 of Allerdale’s LSOAs have 
levels of fuel poverty above 15% 
(these are in the wards of 
Warnell, St John’s, Boltons, St 
Michael’s, Moss Bay, Crummock 
and Holme).  The LSOA with the 
highest reported level of fuel 
poverty is in Warnell ward at 
17.8%. 

Source: Department of Energy and Climate Change

The LSOAs in Allerdale with higher fuel poverty levels are in a mixture of more affluent and more deprived 
areas demonstrating the fact that fuel poverty is influenced by a range of factors (fuel costs, property type 
and energy efficiency, household income, energy costs). 

Page 104



7

Numbers of affordable homes delivered (aiming to increase)

Figures for the past 6 
years show a clear 
drop in 2013/14, but 
fairly consistent 
performance in terms 
of numbers of 
affordable homes 
delivered in Allerdale 
over the 2014-2017 
period.  The figure for 
2017/18 is a reduction 
on previous years.

Source: Allerdale Borough Council 

Over the 7 year period shown 698 affordable homes have been delivered, 29% of these in 
Cockermouth and 20% in the Lake District National Park areas of Allerdale where affordability 
issues are significant.

Page 105



8

Enhancing our towns
We aim to create thriving towns that are attractive and welcoming and retain their 

distinctive characters

Satisfaction with town centres (aiming to increase)

The graph shows an 
improving trend in terms 
of overall satisfaction with 
town centres.

In the 2016 survey, 
satisfaction varied quite 
widely, from just 28% in 
Maryport (where almost 
half, 49%, were 
dissatisfied), to 65% in 
Workington, 70% in 
Keswick and 86% in 
Cockermouth.

   Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey 

Satisfaction with cleanliness of town centres (aiming to increase)

The graph shows an 
improving level of 
satisfaction with the 
cleanliness of town 
centres across the 
Residents Surveys 
conducted in 2012, 2014 
and 2016.

In the 2016 survey, 
satisfaction varied across 
the different towns from 
92% in Cockermouth and 
Keswick to 71% in 
Wigton, 67% in 
Workington, 42% in 
Maryport.

  Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey 

Page 106



9

Empty properties (aiming to decrease)

Figures in the chart are 
taken from the Council’s 
Council Taxbase return to 
Government each October. 

The chart shows a gradual 
increase (18.5% increase) in 
the numbers of dwellings 
classed as empty for over 6 
months and a smaller 
increase in those classed as 
empty for over 2 years (13% 
increase) over the period 
shown. 

Source: DCLG Council Taxbase statistics

Page 107



10

Improving health and wellbeing 
We aim to help people live healthy and active lives and reduce health inequalities

Proportion of physically active adults (aiming to increase) 

The Active People Survey has now been replaced by the Active Lives Survey which provides a 
different measure of physical activity.  Figures from the new Active Lives Survey are therefore not 
directly comparable with previous figures from the Active People Survey.  The new survey includes 
gardening under the definition of moderate physical activity.  Gardening, however, is outside of Sport 
England's remit so they report figures excluding gardening.

Measure Allerdale
2016/17

England
2016/17

Adults (16+) achieving the recommended 150 minutes moderate 
activity per week (excluding gardening)

64.7% 60.6%

Adults (16+) currently not achieving 30 minutes of moderate 
physical activity per week (excluding gardening)

22.5% 25.6%

Source: Sport England Active Lives Survey

The first figures from the new survey show that Allerdale is performing above the England average.  
In Cumbria, Allerdale’s figures rank it second out of the 6 districts behind South Lakeland. 

Healthy weight levels in children (aiming to improve)

       Prevalence of overweight (including obese) - Reception

The graph shows that the 
England average for excess 
weight in children aged 4-5 
years has remained fairly 
static over the time period 
shown.

In Allerdale, however, the 
figures show considerable 
fluctuation, but what appears 
to be a worsening trend.  
Figures have been 
significantly above the 
England average for 2013/14, 
2014/15 and 2015/16 
(represented by a blue dot). 

Source: NHS Digital, National Child Measurement Programme (Public Health England graph)

Page 108



11

          Prevalence of overweight (including obese) – Year 6

The figures for England show 
a gradual increase in excess 
weight in children aged 10-11 
years over the period shown.

Figures for Allerdale have 
fluctuated over the period 
shown with a peak in 
2012/13.  The figure for 
2014/15 puts Allerdale’s level 
just below the England 
average, although as noted 
above the England average 
has been slowly increasing 
over the period shown. 

   Source: NHS Digital, National Child Measurement Programme (Public Health England graph)

Excess weight in adults (aiming to decrease)

The graph shows the 
percentage of adults classified 
as overweight or obese.

Whilst the England average 
has remained static over the 
time period shown, Allerdale’s 
figures have risen from 68.6% 
to 71.2% (shown by the red 
dots on the graph).

   Source: Active People Survey, Sport England (Public Health England graph)

Excess weight in adults

Page 109



12

Life expectancy gap (aiming to reduce)

This graph and the one 
following show how the gap 
in life expectancy between 
residents in our most 
deprived areas compared 
with residents in our least 
deprived areas has changed 
over time.  

The trend in life expectancy 
gap for men has been down 
over the time period shown, 
although the most recent 
data shows a slight 
increase.

Source: Public Health England

Life expectancy at birth figures for men in Allerdale have risen from 78.0 years (2009-11) to 78.9 
years (2013-15), but are still below the England average of 79.5 years (2013-15).  And data for 
2011-15 by ward shows that 3 wards are significantly below the England average (Moss Bay 75.1; 
Moorclose 75.7; Ewanrigg 76.5). 

The trend in life expectancy 
gap for women however, 
has been upwards over the 
same time period.  

Life expectancy at birth 
figures for women in 
Allerdale have risen from 
81.8 years (2009-11) to 
82.3 years (2013-15), but 
are classed as 
significantly below the 
England average of 83.1 
years (2013-15).  

Source: Public Health England

Data for 2011-15 by ward shows that 5 wards are significantly below the England average (Moss Bay 
75.3; Ewanrigg 77.9; Netherhall 78.5; Moorclose 78.8; St. Johns 79.6; Silloth 80.4).

Page 110



13

Alcohol-related harm rates (aiming to decrease)

The graph shows figures for 
hospital stays for alcohol-related 
harm expressed as a figure per 
100,000 population.  The figures 
show that for England there has 
been a fairly static rate over the 
time period shown.

For Allerdale however, the trend 
is clearly markedly downward 
over the period shown.  The red 
dots signify that the Allerdale 
figure was significantly worse 
than the England average until 
2015/16 by which time it had 
reduced to 667 per 100,000 
population (against the England 
average of 647 per 100,000). 

Source: Calculated by Public Health England: Risk Factors Intelligence (RFI) team using data from NHS Digital - 
Hospital Episode Statistics (HES) and Office for National Statistics (ONS) - Mid Year Population Estimates.

Smoking rates (aiming to decrease)

Nationally, the figures taken 
from the Annual Population 
Survey show a steady declining 
trend in terms of numbers of 
current smokers from 19.3% to 
15.5% between 2012 and 
2016.  

The figures for Allerdale show 
a similar declining trend overall 
for this period from 21.7% in 
2012 to 17.7% in 2016, 
although figures appear to 
have levelled off somewhat 
between 2013 and 2016 and 
are still above the national 

  Source: Annual Population Survey, APS (Public Health England graph)             figure.

Smoking prevalence (adults) – current smokers

Hospital stays for alcohol-related harm

Page 111



14

Rates of non-decent homes (aiming to reduce) and standards in the private rented sector 
(aiming to improve)

Reasons for failure of dwellings as a decent home (Source: Allerdale HSCS 2015-16, EHS 2014)

Reason
Dwellings

Per cent 
(of non-decent)

Per cent 
(of stock)

England per 
cent (EHS 2014)

Category 1 hazard dwellings 4,440 53.16% 11.58% 13.17%

In need of repair 2,790 33.38% 7.27% 4.89%

Lacking modern facilities 210 2.45% 0.53% 1.82%

Poor degree of thermal comfort 4,040 48.31% 10.52% 7.85%

Total failures 11,480 - - -

Total dwellings failing the 
Decent Homes Standard 8,360 100.00% 21.79% 21.81%

The table above gives details from the Allerdale Housing Stock Condition Survey 2015/16.  This 
showed that 8,360 dwellings in Allerdale fail to meet the Decent Homes Standard - this is approx. 
22% of all private sector dwellings. The HSCS also showed that:

 There has been a sharp decrease since 2011 in the proportion of dwellings with Category 1 
hazards (the HSCS carried out in 2011 estimated that a quarter of private sector dwellings had 
a Category 1 hazard).  

 This significant decrease is broadly in line with national trends: in 2009 the EHS estimated that 
22.0% of national dwellings had a Category 1 hazard, whereas in 2014 this had fallen to 
13.2%.

 Private rented stock has a higher rate of Category 1 hazards (21.0%) than owner occupation 
(9.7%). 

 Excess cold is the most common Category 1 hazard (for both owner occupied and private 
rented), followed by falls on stairs. 

 The incidence of Category 1 hazards in Keswick (24.3%) and North Allerdale (18.6%) is much 
higher than other parts of the borough.

Satisfaction with sport and leisure facilities (aiming to increase)

 
The chart shows that 
satisfaction with sport 
and leisure facilities has 
been gradually 
increasing from 2008 to 
2016 with a 
corresponding decrease 
in the proportion of 
residents who are 
dissatisfied with these 
facilities.

Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey 

Page 112



15

Creating a sustainable business summary
We aim develop a commercially focused organization committed to delivering high 

quality, sustainable services to the people, communities and businesses of Allerdale

Satisfaction with council services (aiming to increase)

% of respondents satisfied or dissatisfied with how the Council 
provides services in our area

Almost three-quarters 
(73%) of all respondents – 
as in 2014, when it was 
74% - expressed overall 
satisfaction, with the way 
the Council provides 
services in their area.

Satisfaction varied 
relatively little by locality.

Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey

Percentage of residents who believe the Council provides value for money (aiming to 
increase)

% of respondents who agree that the Council provides value for money

The Council has 
maintained a 
similar rate of 
respondents who 
agreed that the 
Council provides 
value for money – 
the figure remained 
similar in 2016 to 
that recorded in 
2014 and 2012, 
with 43% agreeing 
that it does provide 
value for money.

Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey

Page 113



16

Proportion of residents who feel they are kept informed about Council activities and 
services (aiming to increase)

% of respondents who felt they were either ‘very well informed’ or 
‘fairly well informed’ about services provided by the Council

More than half 
(58%) of those 
respondents who 
expressed a view in 
2016 said that they 
feel ‘very well 
informed’ or ‘fairly 
well informed’ about 
services provided 
by the Council, a 
reduction from 
2014, but still higher 
than both 2008 and 
2012.  

Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey 

Number of residents who feel they can influence decisions (aiming to increase)

% of respondents who agree or disagree that they can influence decisions 
affecting their local area

The 2016 results 
show that only 
29% agree that 
they can influence 
decisions 
affecting their 
local area.  This is 
very similar to 
previous years’ 
findings: 2014 
30% ‘agree’, 2012 
32% ‘agree’ and 
2008 26% ‘agree’.  

Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey 

Page 114



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 13 June 2018

Reducing Inequalities – Planned use of Priorities Fund

The Reason for the Decision To determine expenditure from the priorities 
fund to support projects which address the 
Tackling Inequality priority of the Council 
Plan and the Council’s Tackling Poverty 
Strategy.

Summary of options considered A number of potential projects were initially 
considered. The selected projects are those 
which most closely relate to the intentions of 
the Tackling Poverty Strategy and the 
Portfolio Holder.

Recommendations That the following be agreed:
1. Citizens Advice Allerdale receives 

£35,000 per year for three years 
(£105,000 total) to facilitate supporting 
Allerdale residents with Universal Credit 
and related issues; and £12,000 in 
2018/9 to support North Allerdale 
Foodbank;

2. Fare Share is supported via a one-off 
£10,000 input to develop opportunities 
for local groups to access the food 
distribution scheme;

3. North Lakes Foodbank receives £500 
per year for three years to support the 
production of recipe information leaflets 
for their clients;

4. Two small grants funds are established 
for the next three years with £17,500 
available for work skills and training 
support, and £17,000 available for small 
projects run by community groups which 
address the themes of the Tackling 
Poverty Strategy; and to supporting 
internships for young people with 
learning difficulties.

5. The remaining £59,700 is committed to 
establish an approach to community 
development work in areas with 
identifiable priorities associated with 
issues of tackling poverty. 

Page 115

Agenda Item 9



6. That the funds referred to in 
recommendations 4 and 5 be delegated 
to the Head of Strategy, Policy and 
Performance, to include overall financial 
management.

7. That for each of the funds, a 
performance management framework is 
developed by the Head of Strategy, 
Policy and Performance and for this to 
be agreed with each funded partner.

8. That the support to Affinity Credit Union 
is re-profiled.

Financial /  Resource Implications This report recommends committing the 
remainder of the Priorities Fund as described 
under paragraph 4 of the report

Legal / Governance Implications Each investment would be supported with 
relevant documentation to cover the legal 
requirements in the form of a grant 
agreement or other appropriate form of 
contract. Such agreements would specifically 
provide any conditions for grant/receipt of the 
investment, restrictions on use, expected 
outcomes, monitoring and reporting 
requirements and any other necessary 
provisions to protect the Authority and 
manage any associated risks.

Community Safety Implications No implications

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

No implications

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

Yes – assessment attached

Wards Affected ALL

The contribution this decision 
would make to the Council’s 
priorities

This will contribute to the Tackling Inequality 
priority.

Is this a Key Decision Yes

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Alan Smith, Leader of the Council

Lead Officer  Andrew Seekings, Corporate Director

Page 116



Report Implications

Community Safety N Financial Y
Legal Y Partnership Y
Social Inclusion Y Asset Management N
Equality Duty Y Health and Safety N
Employment (internal) N Employment 

(external to the Council)
Y

Background Papers

Minutes of Executive held 15 February 2017 (approval of Budget 2017-2018)
Minutes of Council held 1 March 2017 (approval of Budget 2017-2018)
Minutes of Executive held 28 September 2017 (approval of Priorities Fund 
expenditure)
Minutes of Executive held 21 February 2018 (adoption of Tackling Poverty Strategy)
Tackling Poverty Strategy 2018-2020

1.0 Introduction

1.0 The Council plan sets out the priorities for the Council in 2018/9. One of the 
priorities is to reduce inequalities, this report sets out the Council’s proposal to 
reducing inequalities. The plan states that the Council will aim to reduce 
poverty and support people facing complex difficulties.

1.1 As part of the budget agreed by Council, £451,000 was included to support 
the Council’s priorities and this report sets out proposals for expenditure from 
the Priorities Fund. This established the Corporate Priorities budget provision 
to support the Council’s priority of reducing poverty and tackling inequality.

2.0 Background

2.1 At its meeting held on 21 February 2018 the Executive adopted the Tackling 
Poverty Strategy which highlights particular issues facing some Allerdale 
residents. 

2.2 The Strategy had been reviewed and updated by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, alongside their indicative priorities for expenditure from the 
Priorities Fund. These priorities include ensuring people have access to food 
and support; improved access to advice and advocacy services; addressing 
barriers to employment; and a proposal to establish a small grants fund would 
help to underpin and support these objectives. The Executive agreed the 
areas of need put forward by Overview and Scrutiny and agreed that there 
was no ranking of priorities. Officers have been working to pull together ways 
to support the priorities and support the portfolio holder to bring forward 
recommendations.

Page 117



2.3 At its meeting held on 28 September 2017 the Executive agreed to commit 
£220,300 from the Corporate Priorities Fund to support the development of 
West Cumbria Credit Union. 

3.0 Projects

3.1 To support the delivery of the Strategy it is required the following areas of 
work are supported:

3.2 Advice and Advocacy

3.2.1 The proposal is to support Citizens Advice Allerdale (CAB) to assist with 
clients’ welfare reform related issues by employing an additional worker to 
deliver advice to clients over the next three years with £35,000 per year 
support from Allerdale Borough Council. 

3.2.2 This additional funding will allow CAB workers to support additional clients 
with benefits, debt and housing problems and challenge benefits decisions at 
both the mandatory reconsideration stage and preparation of submissions for 
benefit tribunals; increase the amount of income generated for people on low 
incomes that will improve their economic well-being; increase the capacity of 
CAB to help people on low incomes better access to advice; use knowledge of 
local organisations and support available (including foodbanks) to ensure that 
appropriate referrals are made on behalf of a client; help people on low 
incomes to experience reduced stress and anxiety, leading to improved well-
being. 

3.2.3 The Council currently supports the CAB financially to give general advice to 
residents in respect of benefits, housing and employment rights.

3.2.4 CAB are currently providing general and specialist advice services as a result 
of this. The proposed support extends that provision to meet the needs arising 
from the changes in circumstances resulting from the introduction of Universal 
Credit.

3.2.5 An additional £12,000 in 2018/9 will be provided to CAB to support North 
Lakes Foodbank with an advice worker to offer low key advice to new 
Foodbank clients in Wigton and Maryport, and if they engage with this help 
can, if applicable, offer a Foodbank voucher. There are very few voucher 
holders - agencies holding vouchers - in the smaller towns. This process is 
vital work within the smaller centres as clients do not readily have access to 
vouchers. 

3.2.6   The service CAB provides to North Lakes Foodbank was previously externally 
funded from Ways to Welfare via Cumbria County Council. The proposed 
support would allow the service to be retained and complements the principles 
of this Council’s Tackling Poverty Strategy.

Commitment - £105,000 total over three years

Page 118



3.3 Support for food projects 

3.3.1 North Lakes Foodbank
 

The Foodbank has previously provided support for people accessing their 
service by offering recipe cards with meal suggestions using the food supplied 
by the Foodbank developed by a local chef. 

Commitment - £500 per year for three years.

3.3.2 Supporting Fare Share to work with local groups

Fare Share is a membership project which takes surplus food from suppliers 
to redistribute to community groups. Recycling Lives, a metal and waste 
management company based in Preston, hold the contract to deliver Fare 
Share throughout Lancashire and Cumbria.  They successfully established 
Fare Share in Lancashire and have over 100 members but struggled to 
expand into Cumbria. The proposed support will enable a development worker 
to support local groups to sign up to the scheme and establish their 
distribution methods in this area.

3.3.3 Bottom Up Solutions Ltd has been engaged by Recycling Lives to help 
establish Fare Share in West Cumbria. This work will: 

 explore how food sourced from Fare Share can be used to develop a 
Social Prescribing Project which takes “a more than medicine approach” 
to addressing health and wellbeing inequalities among target groups;

 engage with a range of partners working in the community such as 
schools, community centres, faith groups, voluntary sector organisations, 
Housing Associations, GP’s, Local Authorities and Public Health 
practitioners to gain an in-depth understanding of the extent of the 
problem;

 include holding workshops, networking events and activities in the heart 
of target communities to engage with residents to ensure their input and 
feedback shapes programme development; 

 engage with businesses and employers to request their support and 
financial sponsorship – this will shape the design of a sustainability 
strategy linked to project activities;

 research other potential grant funding opportunities.

Commitment - £10,000 (one-off input) to support development worker 

3.4 Supporting Communities and Employment Initiatives

These general funds would be administered by Council staff using the 
application process recently developed for the myAllerdale platform. 
Applicants will complete an online form, assessed against a published set of 
criteria.

3.4.1 Community projects fund

Page 119



An initial total fund of £17,000 with a maximum grant of £1,000 would give 
local groups the opportunity to receive support for a single small project or an 
initial contribution towards a larger project where the group intends to raise 
funds through other means that support the outcomes within the Strategy.

Commitment - £17,000 total over three years

3.4.2 Work, skills and training fund

This would support individuals who need a small amount of funding to be able 
to access either a training course, for instance to gain a Construction Skills 
Certification Scheme card, or may need specialist workwear etc. to either 
begin work or access employment opportunities.

Commitment – £17,500 total over three years

3.4.3 Supported Internships

Right to Work is a Government led initiative part funded by the Department of 
Education and Cumbria County Council. The scheme offers supported 
internships specifically aimed at 16-24 year olds who have a learning disability 
and are currently within an Education Health Care Plan.  These individuals 
want to move into employment, however, they will need the support to do so.

Right to Work will help these individuals by giving them the skills they need to 
maintain employment, as well as supporting their independence. A supported 
internship will start at the beginning of the new academic year.  The individual 
will spend their first 6 weeks with Right to Work going through an assessment 
programme.  After the individual has completed the assessment programme, 
they will be matched with an employer. 

3.5 Supporting community development

3.5.1 A number of communities and areas of the borough continue to experience 
issues which are associated with poverty related circumstances. The intention 
is to develop an approach to working with communities, community groups 
and partner organisations to deliver community development work utilising the 
assets available in each area of focused activity.

Commitment - £59,700 over three years

3.6 Re-profiling support to Affinity Credit Union

3.6.1 The grant received by Affinity Credit Union to support the development of the 
Flagship Branch and rebranding and marketing has been very successful and 
seen an increase in loans of 27% in less than six months. The original 
business plan set out the funding profile below:

Year 2017/8 2018/9 2019/20 2020/21 Total

Page 120



ABC Investment 66,700 40,000 51,200 62,400 220,300

3.6.2 This was based on the on-going requirement to gradually increase staff in 
future years to manage the increase in loan applications and demand at the 
Flagship Branch. Following a review by the current Chief Operating Officer, 
Affinity has approached the Council to ask if this funding profile can be 
changed. Based on the success of the current Flagship Branch, Affinity would 
like to rebrand the other sites. In addition, an award of one years’ funding from 
Sellafield to support financial inclusion means that additional match funding is 
required now. Affinity have also asked for the funding profile to be spread over 
the next four years, not three, this tapering of funding supports the revised 
business plan and means a gradual reduction rather than losing a significant 
grant amount in year three and then nothing in the following year. 

3.6.3 Therefore it is required that the funding provided to Affinity Credit Union 
remains the same, but is reprofiled over the next four years as below:

Year 2018/9 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
ABC Investment 60,000 41,000 31,000 21,600 153,600

4.0 Alternative options

4.1 The option to specifically support the advice work for North Lakes Foodbank 
was considered, though this was superseded by the option to fund CAB for 
both areas of work.

4.2 While the option not to support any of the projects included would have been 
a possibility, this would not be consistent with the decisions taken by the 
Council and Executive in March and September 2017 and February 2018.  

5.0 Finance/Resource Implications

5.1 The Council agreed the Corporate Priorities Fund as part of the budget at its 
meeting held on 1 March 2017. Members should note the £20,000 of the 
budget was re-allocated to the Tourism and Culture Portfolio, leaving a 
balance of £431,000.

5.2 At its meeting held on 28 September 2017 the Executive agreed to commit 
£220,300 over the next four years from the Corporate Priorities Fund to 
support the development of West Cumbria Credit Union. Therefore, the 
amount of £210,700 is available for the projects outlined above.

5.3 If approved, these commitments expend the remainder of the Corporate 
Priorities budget agreed on 1 March 2017, as follows:

Page 121



Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Total

PRIMARY INVESTMENT

Citizens Advice Bureau 47,000 35,000 35,000 117,000

Fare Share 10,000 10,000

SUB TOTAL £ 57,000 35,000 35,000 127,000

SMALL-SCALE INVESTMENT

Foodbank cards 500 500 500 1,500

Work/skills/training fund 6,500 5,500 5,500 17,500

Small grants fund 6,500 5,500 5,000 17,000

SUB TOTAL £ 13,500 11,500 11,000 36,000

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT

Annual input 16,000 16,000 15,700 47,700

GRAND TOTALS £ 86,500 62,500 61,700 210,700

6.0 Legal Implications and Risks

6.1 Each investment would be supported with relevant documentation to cover the 
legal requirements in the form of a grant agreement or other appropriate form 
of contract. Such agreements would specifically provide any conditions for 
grant/receipt of the investment, restrictions on use, expected outcomes, 
monitoring and reporting requirements and any other necessary provisions to 
protect the Authority and manage any associated risks.

7.0     Recommendations

7.1 That the following expenditure be agreed:

1. Citizens Advice Allerdale receives £35,000 per year for three years (£105,000 
total) to facilitate supporting Allerdale residents with Universal Credit and 
related issues; and £12,000 in 2018/9 to support North Allerdale Foodbank;

2. Fare Share is supported via a one-off £10,000 input to develop opportunities 
for local groups to access the food distribution scheme;

3. North Lakes Foodbank receives £500 per year for three years to support the 
production of recipe information leaflets for their clients;

4. Two small grants funds are established for the next three years with £17,500 
available for work skills and training support, and £17,000 available for small 
projects run by community groups which address the themes of the Tackling 
Poverty Strategy; and to supporting internships for young people with learning 
difficulties.

Page 122



5. The remaining £59,700 is committed to establish an approach to community 
development work in areas with identifiable priorities associated with issues of 
tackling poverty. 

6. The funds referred to in recommendations 4 and 5 be delegated to the Head 
of Strategy, Policy and Performance, to include overall financial management 
of same.

7. That for each of the funds, a performance management framework is 
developed by the Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance and for this to be 
agreed with each funded partner.

8. That the support to Affinity Credit Union is re-profiled.

Andrew Seekings
Corporate Director

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 124



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 13 June 2018

Investment in The Wave - Maryport

The Reason for the Decision To increase the use of The Wave by introducing a 
fitness gym within the venue. 

To meet the savings identified in the self-
sufficiency programme.  

Summary of options considered  To make a commitment of £87,000 to 
develop a new fitness area with the venue 
and reduce the subsidy by £275,000 over 
a six year contract period 

 Not to invest into the venue and accept the 
ongoing consequences of not doing so. 

Recommendations That the Executive agree to commit £87k to be 
approved from the Strategic Priorities revenue 
budget 2018/19 towards a new fitness area within 
The Wave. 

That the Executive agree to delegate the 
extension of The Wave contract to the Head of 
Community Services in conjunction with the Head 
of Governance

Financial /  Resource Implications The maximum cost of the project is £106,200 GLL 
(Greenwich Leisure Ltd) be contributing £19,200. 
The Wave requires capital investment which will 
result in an ongoing reduction in the subsidy 
provided to GLL to operate the building. If the 
project delivers to the agreed timescales, then a 
£25k reduction will be achieved and a £50k 
reduction in each of the subsequent years, to a 
total of £275k over the 6 years, pending 
agreement of a contract extension until 2024.

Legal / Governance Implications To realise the benefits of the project, it is 
proposed to extend the management contract for 
the Wave by five years until 2024, bringing that 
contract in line with the management contract of 
Allerdale’s three leisure centres, all of which are 
operated by GLL on behalf of the Council. The 
contract extension would be negotiated with the 
benefit of professional advice and the variation 

Page 125

Agenda Item 10



would be recorded in a legal agreement. The 
associated lease would also be amended in 
similar terms.

Community Safety Implications The success of the Wave has a positive impact 
on Community Safety in the Maryport area.

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

Health and safety will be managed by GLL on a 
daily basis through their normal operating and 
emergency operating procedures. The Council 
continues to monitor and take appropriate action 
in relation to GLL managed facilities.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

The impact of the proposed scheme would be 
neutral across the protected characteristics. GLL 
will also operate under its own Equality and 
Diversity policy and statement. 

Wards Affected Ellen, Ellenborough, Ewanrigg, Flimby, 
Netherhall

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

Improving health and wellbeing through providing 
access to quality leisure activities. 

Is this a Key Decision Yes

Portfolio Holder Councillor Michael Heaslip

Lead Officer Charles Holmes, Head of Community Services, 
charles.holmes@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications

Community Safety Y Employment (external to the Council) Y

Financial Y Employment (internal) N

Legal Y Partnership Y

Social Inclusion Y Asset Management Y

Equality Duty N Health and Safety Y

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Wave Centre was developed and constructed between 2006 and 2008 to 
provide economic and regeneration benefits to the local area in and around 
Maryport. The facility has a theatre, a café area, and the visitor attractions of 
Clip N Climb and Cave at the Wave climbing and caving facilities.  

Page 126



1.2 On opening in July 2008 Carlisle Leisure Ltd (now Greenwich Leisure Ltd - 
GLL) took on the management of the facility, and in 2013 Clip N Climb was 
developed in the rear space of the building. Clip N Climb has successfully 
attracted visitors from a wide area. Cave in the Wave was added in 2015, and 
visitor numbers remain steady. A new climbing module has also been recently 
added.  

1.3 The Council continue to look at improving the sustainability of the facilities it 
supports, and with GLL are looking to develop the facility, which in turn would 
provide a reduction in the management fee. In order for this to happen, an 
alternative use is required to supplement the existing offer. These proposals 
are consistent with the ongoing plans for Maryport as outlined in the Maryport 
Development strategy.

2.0 Investment in the Wave - Maryport 

2.1 It is proposed that a fitness facility is provided at the Wave which is further 
complimented by introducing new children’s activities, fitness classes and 
inflatable play activity, as well as improvements made to the building through 
increasing storage capacity. These proposals will contribute towards the 
Council Plan priority of “Improving Health and Wellbeing – Improving access 
to quality leisure and cultural activities”

2.2 GLL will remodel the front part of the building, to the left of the entrance, 
through the installation and management of a new the fitness facility. The 
fitness facility will provide a 30-station gym, plus ancillary stretch and 
functional space. 

2.3 It is considered that the gym proposal is a good fit for the Wave. GLL have 
made the building efficient and successful from a point of view of the Clip N 
Climb and Cave at the Wave and general operations. The sales and IT 
infrastructure is in place and the building is ideal with the catering, reception 
and ancillary facilities required.  This means that the installation of the gym 
will be relatively simple and can be operational very quickly without the 
requirement for any additional staffing costs. 

2.4 The gym will be located where the dining area currently is.  Catering will still 
be available for the Clip N Climb, parties, arts, business events and users of 
the gym. GLL are looking at options for the future operation of the catering 
facilities, which they are currently managing in-house. 

2.5 The project carries a certain degree of risk for GLL in terms of anticipated 
membership uptake. Their business plan is based on moving from zero to 280 
members within 12 – 18 months at a price point of £19.95 per member per 
month.

Page 127



3.0 Additional benefits

3.1 The gym will enhance the Wave Centre as a local facility by giving it usage 
consistently across its opening hours and will complement the other activities 
available. 

3.2 Through the additional usage of the fitness area, GLL believe that this will 
also support a greater awareness of the Wave Centre’s existing activities, 
increase the usage of Clip N Climb, the Cave and corporate events and will 
help provide a much enhanced feel of a destination venue. 

3.3 This increased usage will help with the ability to reduce the cost of the facility 
and therefore the contribution made towards the running costs by the Council, 
and may move the facility into trading at a net surplus, which GLL, as a not for 
profit organisation, will use to further to develop Allerdale facilities in the long 
term. 

3.4 The project will be branded as a “Better” gym facility towards the North of the 
Borough and deliver the same value for money memberships and quality 
service as in the other GLL managed sites in Allerdale.  

3.5 It will increase physical activity levels of local people and will see the launch of 
programmes linked to increasing activity levels of target groups at risk of 
being inactive in line with the Council’s objectives.

4.0 Contracting arrangements

4.1 The contract to operate and manage the Wave commenced in July 2008 and 
is set to terminate on 31 March 2019. For the benefits outlined in this report to 
be to be realised, there will be a requirement to extend the Wave contract. It is 
proposed that the extension run co-terminus with the other contract that the 
Council has with GLL to manage the Council’s leisure facilities in Workington, 
Cockermouth and Keswick. The term of the contract would therefore be 
extended until 31 March 2024. 

4.2 The Council has been in talks with GLL regarding the terms of the proposed 
extension and the ways in which it will assist in delivering reduced costs to the 
Council and improved facilities overall. It is recommended that the negotiation 
and finalisation of the contract extension be delegated by the Executive jointly 
to the Head of Community Services and the Head of Governance. 

5.0 Customer Satisfaction and Service

5.1 GLL’s model suggests there is sufficient latent demand for this facility to meet 
their target for memberships. 

5.2 The enhancement of the Wave is consistent with the proposals outlined in the 
Maryport Delivery Plan which aims to improve facilities and increase activity in 
the Maryport Harbour area attracting more visitors and supporting the further 
development of the local economy and regeneration of the area.  

Page 128



5.3 Maryport experiences higher than average health inequalities than in other 
parts of the U.K., North West, Cumbria and Allerdale. Life expectancy and 
healthy life expectancy for some Maryport wards is below the national 
average, and the difference in life expectancy in Maryport compared to the 
best in ward in Allerdale for males is 12 years and 13.6 years for females. 

5.4 Physical activity is one of the biggest contributors to better health, and 2016 
data showed that 42.3% of adults in Maryport and the majority of the 
surrounding area were achieving 30 minutes or less of physical activity each 
week, when the recommended guidelines for health is 150 minutes per week.  

6.0 Services Delivered as Locally as Possible

6.1 The project provides for leisure facilities in Maryport therefore enhancing the 
leisure offer for the local area of Maryport and demonstrates the Council’s 
commitment in local leisure facilities for local communities. 

7.0 Finance/Resource Implications 

7.1 The cost of the project is £106,200k which is broken down as follows:

 Engineering and Installation £21k
 Equipment £74k
 Project Management and Contingency £11.2k
 Total £106,200

7.2 It is proposed that the Council provides £87k from the Strategic Priorities 
revenue budget towards the enhancement of leisure facilities at the Wave on 
an invest to save basis.  

 The remaining £19.2k will be provided by GLL

7.3 The proposal has been considered and scored by the Council’s asset 
management group and scored using the detailed matrix, which outlines the 
appropriate fit with the strategic aims of the Council as outlined in the Council 
Plan. The proposal scored 160 points (out of a possible 260 points available). 
This equates to an Amber rating and therefore passes the threshold for 
support.

7.4 The aim of the project is to revitalise The Wave Centre and bring more people 
to the venue more regularly and by doing this reduce any subsidy attached to 
the building. 

7.5 The budget set for the Wave for 2018/19 is £187k and includes an efficiency 
saving of £50k. The proposals outlined in this report will enable this efficiency 
saving to be partially met in 2018/19 (by £25k) and from 2019/20 will provide 
this annual saving of £50k. The total value of this saving over the lifetime of 
the contract is outlined below. 

Page 129



7.6 Reduction of management fee:

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total
£25k £50k £50k £50k £50k £50k £275k

8.0 Legal Implications and Risks

8.1 To realise the benefits of the project, it is proposed to extend the current 
contract for the management and operation of the Wave from its current end 
date of 31 March 2019 to 31 March 2024. This would bring that Wave contract 
in line with the contract for the Council’s other three leisure centres in 
Workington, Cockermouth and Keswick, which GLL also manage on its 
behalf. 

8.2 The current management contract expressly allows for the term to be 
extended by the Council and for the parties to negotiate and agree the terms 
of any such extended term.

8.3 The contract extension would be completed with the benefit of professional 
advice and would be recorded in a legal agreement that would include all 
necessary and appropriate provisions to protect the Council and manage any 
risks. The associated lease would also be amended in similar terms.

8.4 It is recommended that the negotiation and finalisation of the contract 
extension is delegated jointly to the Head of Community Services and the 
Head of Governance.

9.0 Recommendations

9.1 That the Executive agree to commit £87k to be approved from the Strategic 
Priorities revenue budget 2018/19 towards a new fitness area within The 
Wave. 

9.2 That the Executive agree to delegate the extension of the Wave contract to 
the Head of Community Services in conjunction with the Head of Governance.

10.0 Conclusion

10.1 This proposal for The Wave will offer a sustainable future for the facility whilst 
also contributing to regeneration and health improvements of the town. The 
Clip ‘n Climb/ Cave at the Wave facility is popular with local people and 
visitors and the new gym will fit well with helping to achieve local and health 
and wellbeing strategies has the potential to The Wave Centre into a valued 
leisure facility.

Charles Holmes
Head of Community Services

Page 130



Document is Restricted

Page 131

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Capital Outturn Report 2017/18
	Appendices for Capital Outturn Report 2017/18

	7 Revenue Outturn Report 2017/18
	Appendices for Revenue Outturn Report 2017/18

	8 Q4 Performance Report 2017/18
	Appendix 1 for Q4 Performance Report 2017/18
	Appendix 1A for Q4 Performance Report 2017/18
	Appendix 1B for Q4 Performance Report 2017/18
	Appendix 1C for Q4 Performance Report 2017/18
	Appendix 1D for Q4 Performance Report 2017/18

	9 Tackling Inequalities Priorities Fund
	10 Investment in The Wave, Maryport
	11 Future Options for Workington Town Centre

